
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 
3705 Oakdale Road                                                                          Telephone: (209) 552-3900 
Modesto, CA  95357                                                      www.sr911.org                                                                               Fax: (209) 552-3950  

 

 
The Consolidated Emergency Dispatch Agency Commission welcomes you to its meetings, which are held by announcement, and your interest is 
encouraged and appreciated.  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD:  Matters under the jurisdiction of the Commission, and not on the posted agenda, may be addressed by the general 
public at the beginning of the regular agenda and any off-agenda matters before the Commission for consideration.  However, California law prohibits 
the Commission from taking action on any matter which is not on the posted agenda unless it is determined to be an emergency by the Consolidated 
Emergency Dispatch Agency Commission for Stanislaus Regional 9-1-1.  Any member of the public wishing to address the Commission during the 
“Public Comment” period shall be permitted to be heard once for up to 5 minutes.   Please complete a Public Comment Form and give it to the Clerk of 
the Commission. 
  
The agenda is divided into two sections: 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR:  These matters include routine financial and administrative actions and are identified with an asterisk (*).  All items on the 
consent calendar will be voted on as a single action at the beginning of the meeting under the section titled “Consent Calendar” without discussion.  If 
you wish to discuss an item on the Consent Calendar, please notify the Clerk of the Commission prior to the beginning of the meeting or you may speak 
about the item during Public Comment Period. 
 
REGULAR CALENDAR:  These items will be individually discussed and include all items not on the consent calendar, all public hearings and 
correspondence. 
 
CLOSED SESSION:  Is the portion of the meeting conducted in private without the attendance of the public or press to discuss certain confidential 
matters specifically permitted by the Brown Act.  The public will be provided an opportunity to comment on any matter to be considered in closed 
session prior to the Commission adjourning into closed session.  
 
ANY MEMBER OF THE AUDIENCE DESIRING TO ADDRESS THE COMMISSION ON A MATTER ON THE AGENDA:  Please raise your hand or 
step to the podium at the time the item is announced by the Commission Chairperson.  In order that interested parties have an opportunity to speak, 
any person addressing the Commission will be limited to a maximum of 5 minutes unless the Chairperson of the Commission grants a longer period of 
time. 
 
BOARD AGENDAS AND MINUTES:  Materials related to an item on this Agenda submitted to the Commission after distribution of the agenda packet 
are available for public inspection in the Commission Clerk’s office at 3705 Oakdale Rd, Modesto, CA 95357 during normal business hours.   
 
NOTICE REGARDING NON-ENGLISH SPEAKERS:  Consolidated Emergency Dispatch Agency Commission meetings are conducted in English and 
translation to other languages is not provided.  Please make arrangements for an interpreter if necessary. 
 
REASONABLE ACCOMMODATIONS:  In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this 
meeting, please contact the Clerk of the Commission at (209) 552-3900. Notification 72 hours prior to the meeting will enable the Commission to make 
reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to this meeting.  

 
 
 
 

COMMISSION BOARD 
Sue Zwahlen, City of Modesto Mayor 

Buck Condit, Board of Supervisor, District 1 
Nick Bavaro, Councilmember, District 4  

Mani Grewal, Board of Supervisor, District 4 
 

3705 Oakdale Rd. 
Modesto, CA  95357 

Phone:  209.552.3900     Fax:  209.552.3950 

____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

                

 

CONSOLIDATED EMERGENCY DISPATCH AGENCY COMMISSION 

AGENDA 
 

June 26, 2026 
 

SPECIAL MEETING 

2:00 PM 
 

REGULAR MEETING 

3:30 p.m. 
 

Stanislaus Regional 9-1-1 

Briefing Room 

3705 Oakdale Rd, Modesto, CA 95357 

Modesto, CA 95357 

 www.sr911.org/consolidated.shtm 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

http://www.sr911.org/
http://www.sr911.org/consolidated.shtm


Consolidated Emergency Dispatch Agency Commission Agenda  
June 26, 2024 
Page 2 of 3 
 

 

 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

3705 Oakdale Road                                                                  Telephone: (209) 552-3900 
Modesto, CA  95357                                                      www.sr911.org                                                             Fax: (209) 552-3950  
 

Special Meeting 
2:00 pm 

 
1.0 Closed Session: Public Employee Appointment: Title: Director of Emergency 

Dispatch. Government Code Section 54957.  
 

Regular Meeting 
3:30 pm 

 
2.0 Pledge of Allegiance 

 
3.0 Public Comment Period 

 
4.0 Consent Calendar 

 
4.1 Approve Minutes of April 24, 2024, Meeting 

 
4.2 Update Regarding Fifth Amendment to the Joint Exercise of Powers 

Agreement between the City of Modesto and the County of Stanislaus 
for Emergency Dispatch Services and Appointment of Consolidated 
Emergency Dispatch Agency Commissioners 

 
5.0 Regular Agenda 

 
5.1 Conduct the Annual Appointment of President, Vice President, and 

Secretary to the Consolidated Emergency Dispatch Agency Commission    
   Effective June 1, 2024 

 
5.2 Consider the Approval of the Fiscal Year 2024-2025 Meeting Dates for 

the Consolidated Emergency Dispatch Agency Commission and User 
Committee Meetings 
 

5.3 Consider the Approval of the Fiscal Year 2024 Year End Adjustment 
 

5.4 Consider the Approval of the Stanislaus Regional 911 Fiscal Year 
2024/2025 Final Budget and Related Actions 

 
5.5  Authorize the Consolidated Emergency Dispatch Agency Commission 

President and Executive Director to Execute a One (1) Year 
Professional Services Agreement with Jocelyn E. Roland, PH. D. for 
Psychological Screening and Counseling Services in an Annual Amount 
Not to Exceed $21,000 

 
5.6 Authorize the Consolidated Emergency Dispatch Agency Commission  

President and Executive Director to Execute a One (1) Year Agreement  

http://www.sr911.org/


Consolidated Emergency Dispatch Agency Commission Agenda  
June 26, 2024 
Page 3 of 3 
 

 

 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

3705 Oakdale Road                                                                  Telephone: (209) 552-3900 
Modesto, CA  95357                                                      www.sr911.org                                                             Fax: (209) 552-3950  
 

with Simpson Investigation Services Group for Background 
Investigation Services in an Annual Amount Not to Exceed $20,000 

 
5.7  Authorize the Consolidated Emergency Dispatch Agency Commission 

President and Executive Director to Execute a One (1) Year Agreement 
with Rank Investigation and Protection Inc. for Background Investigation 
Services in an Annual Amount Not to Exceed $20,000 

 
5.8 Authorize the Consolidated Emergency Dispatch Agency Commission        

President and Executive Director to Execute a One (1) Year 
Professional Services Agreement with Cordico Psychological 
Corporation for Psychological Screening Services in an Annual Amount 
Not to Exceed $9,000 

 
5.9 Consider the Approval of the Computer Aided Dispatch (CAD) System 

Procurement and Authorize Staff to Pursue Procurement Through the 
Approved Procurement Option   

 
6.0 Informational 

 
6.1 Executive Director Report 

   
7.0 Commissioner Reports 

 
8.0 Correspondence 

 
9.0 Adjournment  

 

http://www.sr911.org/


 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

CONSOLIDATED EMERGENCY DISPATCH AGENCY COMMISSION 
MINUTES 

 
April 24, 2024 

 
Regular Meeting Minutes 

1:00 p.m. 
 

City-County Administration Building 
1010 10th Street, Board Chambers–Basement Level 

Modesto, CA 95354 
www.sr911.org/consolidated.shtm 

 
 

 

 

1.0 Open and Welcome 
 

Meeting called to order at 2:00 p.m. by President, Sue Zwahlen 
 
Commission Members Present: President, Mayor Sue Zwahlen; Vice President, 
Supervisor Buck Condit; Waterford City Manager, Michael Pitcock; Modesto Police 
Chief, Brandon Gillespie (for Modesto Interim Fire Chief, Kevin Wise); Modesto Deputy 
City Manager, Scotty Douglass; Stanislaus County Sheriff, Jeff Dirkse; Stanislaus 
County Assistant Executive Officer, Ruben Imperial 
 

2.0 Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag  
 

3.0 Public Comment Period  
 
None. 
 

4.0 Consent Calendar 
 

4.1 Approve Minutes of August 16, 2023, Regular Meeting 
 

Motion to Approve Consent Calendar made by Commissioner Condit, seconded 
by Commissioner Dirkse, Approved 7-0 unan.  
 
 
 
 
 

       Commission Board 
Sue Zwahlen, President, Mayor, City of Modesto 

Buck Condit, Vice President, Board of Supervisors, District 1 
Ruben Imperial, Asst. Executive Officer, Stanislaus County 

Scotty Douglass, Deputy City Manager, City of Modesto 
Michael Pitcock, City Manager, City of Waterford 

       Jeff Dirkse, Sheriff, Stanislaus County 
   Kevin Wise, Interim Fire Chief, City of Modesto 

 
3705 Oakdale Rd. 

Modesto, CA 95357 
Phone: 209.552.3900    Fax: 209.552.3950 

http://www.sr911.org/consolidated.shtm


Consolidated Emergency Dispatch Agency Commission  
Regular Meeting Minutes- April 24, 2024 
Page 2 of 6 
 

 

  5.0  Regular Agenda 
 

 5.1 Consider the Approval of the Stanislaus Regional 9-1-1 Fiscal Year 2025 
Proposed Budget and Approve the Use of Fiscal Year 2023 Surplus Funds and 
Agency Contingency Funds to Offset Fiscal Year 2025 Partner Agency 
Contributions 

 

Stanislaus Regional 9-1-1 (SR911) Interim Executive Director Kasey Young 
(Young) thanked Brooke Freeman (Freeman), SR911 Interim Business 
Manager for her support and help with the preparation of the budget. Young 
described the development and progression of the budget.  Young shared the 
budget includes the recently approved reduction of six Dispatcher positions and 
the addition of nine Call Taker positions in response to staff reports of an 
immediate need to build call-taking capacity, as informed by an International 
Academies of Emergency Dispatch study and a CalOES corrective action plan.  
Additionally, an organizational staffing study was completed in response to a 
request by SR911 to review the need for a supervisor classification. It was 
determined that adding supervisors to the organizational structure allowed for 
the addition of call-takers and deletion of other positions to bring about 
efficiencies and compacity for SR911 to meet its obligations. SR911 is detailing 
a fully funded budget based on a status quo service level, meaning no positions 
are eliminated or unfunded so that SR911 can maintain their current service 
levels while navigating through options to continue partnerships. The goal for 
the organization is to maintain the services that have been increased.  Freeman 
shared the details of the budget schedules.  Commissioner Imperial proposed a 
motion to form a work group so they can look at the one million unrestricted 
funds in greater detail and make decisions on how they would apply and use 
those funds. The commission members asked clarifying questions regarding the 
budget. Chief Executive Officer Jody Hayes answered a few budget questions 
that the commission members had.    
 

 Motion to form a work group to work with staff and to come back and make 
recommendations regarding the final budget, considering vacancy rates, 
retrained earnings, unassigned fund balance, etc.  It is also recommended the 
City Manager and CEO office assign staff to work with SR911 staff made by 
Commissioner Imperial, seconded by Commissioner Condit, Approved 7-0 
unan. 

 
5.2 Consider the Approval of the Stanislaus Regional 9-1-1 Proposed Five (5) Year 

Capital Improvement Plan 
 
Young shared that the Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) is a companion 
planning document to the annual SR911 budget process.  Young presented 
the SR911 Proposed Five (5) Year Capital Improvement Plan.    
 



Consolidated Emergency Dispatch Agency Commission  
Regular Meeting Minutes- April 24, 2024 
Page 3 of 6 
 

 

 Motion to Approve the Stanislaus Regional 9-1-1 Proposed Five (5) Year 
Capital Improvement Plan made by Commissioner Condit, seconded by 
Commissioner Gillespie, Approved 7-0 unan. 

 
5.3 Consider Authorizing Stanislaus Regional 9-1-1 to Enter into an Agreement with 

Next Generation Advanced to Replace the Stanislaus Regional 9-1-1 
Telephone System with the State Emergency Telephone Number Account 
(SETNA) Funds Using the Direct Funding Model 

 
 Young shared that California 9-1-1 Emergency Communications Branch 

remains focused on enabling Public Safety Answering Points (PSAPs) to 
provide the fastest, most reliable, and cost-effective access to emergency 
services for any 9-1-1 call in California from any communications device.  The 
current 9-1-1 system is unable to efficiently integrate with today’s newer 
technologies and lacks the reliability and monitoring capabilities needed to 
support today’s increase disaster environment. There is an urgent need to 
transform California’s 9-1-1 system into a Next Generation 9-1-1 (NG9-1-1) 
system which will provide multi-layered redundancy and a common technology 
platform for alerts and warnings.  Some of the advantages of NG9-1-1 system 
include allowing agencies to reroute 911 calls to each other during disasters. 
This will be policy-based routing to automatically roll over 911 calls to partner 
PSAPs.  It will also allow flexibility to distribute calls between multiple PSAPs or 
transfer calls out of county or out of region. SR911 current telephone system is 
in its 8th year of life.  The States recommended replacement is at 5 years. The 
current system is at 3 years beyond its recommendation.  PSAPs are required 
to select new providers that are approved by the state. SR911 staff evaluated 4 
approved State providers phone system vendors in March 2023. SR911 staff 
recommend NGA as the provider. The California Master Purchase Agreement 
will be used to select the vendor and eliminates the need to go through the RFP 
process.  SR911 is approved for the use of $933,000 from the State Emergency 
Telephone Number Account (SETNA) funds.  SR911 will use the direct funding 
model with no impact to the SR911 budget and the State will be billed directly.  
The funds are available to SR911 for the purchase of a new telephone system if 
the purchase is initiated on or before July 9, 2024.   

 
Motion to Authorize SR911 to Enter into an Agreement with Next Generation 
Advanced to Replace the Stanislaus Regional 9-1-1 Telephone System with the 
State Emergency Telephone Number Account (SETNA) Funds Using the Direct 
Funding Model made by Commissioner Dirkse, seconded by Commissioner 
Gillespie, Approved 7-0 unan. 

  
5.4   Update on the Stanislaus Regional 9-1-1 Computer Aided Dispatch (CAD)   

System and Possible Direction Regarding Replacement of Stanislaus Regional  
9-1-1 Computer Aided Dispatch System 
 
Young share that SR911’s current Dispatch Now product is two software 
versions behind, and there is no option to update it. The technology is 



Consolidated Emergency Dispatch Agency Commission  
Regular Meeting Minutes- April 24, 2024 
Page 4 of 6 
 

 

antiquated and the potential for system failure exists. SR911 is unable to 
support the functionality that other CAD systems have today. Options for future 
growth are limited and, in some cases, impossible.  The level of service to the 
community and first responders is negatively impacted due to outdated 
technology and lack of functionality. For these reasons, SR911 needed to 
expedite the timeline for a replacement CAD product to support a large multi-
discipline, multi-agency dispatch center and all the JPA partners.  SR911 began 
evaluating CAD systems to meet the dispatch centers and partners’ needs.  
Several vendors were considered. The options were narrowed down to three 
vendors: Oracle America Inc., EMERES, and Central Square Technologies.  All 
JPA partners were invited to attend demonstrations and provide feedback. As a 
result of this comprehensive evaluation, it became obvious Central Square 
Technologies would be the best fit for interoperability, implementation, and 
configuration.  Therefore, the Central Square product is recommended as the 
replacement CAD System.  Should the Commission provide direction to SR911 
staff to further pursue the Central Square CAD system, staff will work with 
leadership from City of Modesto and Stanislaus County to evaluate specific 
options for contracting these services and will return to the Commission for 
consideration and approval. The Commission Members asked clarifying 
questions regarding the CAD system.  
 
Public Comment: Daniel Phillips (Phillips), SR911 Dispatch Supervisor, shared 
the urgent need for a new CAD and the risk to the officers and fire fighters using 
the current CAD system. Phillips also recommended they go with Central 
Square.   
 
Commission Members shared comments and concerns regarding the CAD 
System. Young shared the CFO from Central Square provided SR911 a 
statement on the financial stability and liability of the company and shared it 
with the Commission Members. Commission Members discussed their thoughts 
on Central Square as the CAD vendor.  
 
Motion directing staff to pursue Central Square CAD System and work with 
leadership from the City of Modesto and Stanislaus County to evaluate specific 
options for contracting the services and returning to the Commission for 
consideration and final approval with the path forward for procurement and 
direction for pursuing a contract with Central Square made by Commissioner 
Douglass, seconded by Commissioner Pitcock. The motion passed 6-1, with 
Commissioners Zwahlen, Condit, Imperial, Douglass, Pitcock and Gillespie 
voting in favor, and Commissioner Dirkse voting against.  

 
6.0  Informational 
 

6.1    Update on New JPA Governance Structure  
 

Joe Lopez (Lopez), City Manager with the City of Modesto, gave an update on 
the new JPA Governance Structure.  Lopez shared that for the last 6-months 



Consolidated Emergency Dispatch Agency Commission  
Regular Meeting Minutes- April 24, 2024 
Page 5 of 6 
 

 

the City Manager’s Office and the Chief Executive Office have been working 
together to come up with an interim plan to carry SR911 moving forward to 
provide more efficiencies in the way they deliver services. This matter does not 
require action from CEDAC today, they just wanted to share what their proposal 
is for the new governance. Jody Hayes (Hayes), Chief Executive Officer, shared 
that the intent of the process was to focus on the different roles and 
responsibilities of the board.  In the new governance structure, it would consist 
of two Modesto City Councilmembers and two County Board Members 
recognizing equal representation of the two largest agencies that fund all these 
services. The role of the board would be to appoint and evaluate SR911 
Director, focus on the annual budget and to monitor performance. There only 
needs to be two meetings per year at a minimum and that is to review the 
budget and review performance outcomes as well as any strategic capital 
improvement plans or any other personnel actions.  The Director can call for 
special meetings to resolve any matters or call for a special meeting for midyear 
changes to the service levels.  The city and the county will each assign one 
personnel to help support the director throughout the year.  In addition, there 
will be a quarterly user forum which is a voluntary optional meeting for any 
member who receives services from SR911.  The forum will provide members 
an opportunity to review and provide feedback on performance reports, 
strategic plans, etc. The Modesto City Manager and County Chief Executive 
Officer will review annual budgets at least 60-days prior to approval as well as 
any changes to staffing allocations.  Lopez reminded the Commission Members 
that their current agreement expires July 1, 2024, and will be recommending to 
their Board an extension to that agreement for an additional 6-month while the 
City’s internal workgroup finalize recommendation on the future with SR911. 
Lopez and Hayes answered questions that the Commission Members had 
regarding the new governance structure.  The current plan is to take this item to 
the City of Modesto City Council and the Stanislaus County Board of Supervisor 
by June 2024.   

 
6.2    Executive Director Report 

 
Young shared the Operations Reports that highlight operational statistics each 
month and gave an update on staffing.    

 
7.0  Commissioner Reports 
 
  Nothing to report.   
 
8.0  Correspondence 
 
  None 
 
9.0  Adjournment 
 
  Meeting adjourned at 3:56 pm to closed session. 



Consolidated Emergency Dispatch Agency Commission  
Regular Meeting Minutes- April 24, 2024 
Page 6 of 6 
 

 

 
10.0 Closed Session: Public Employee Appointment: Pursuant to Government Code 
  Section 54957(b)(1) the Commission will consider the appointment of 

Stanislaus Regional 9-1-1 Executive Director 
  
  Public Comment:  Daniel Phillips (Phillips), SR911 Dispatch Supervisor shared 

a letter written by the SREDA members regarding Interim Director Kasey 
Young’s great leadership and on the positive changes she has made at SR911.     

 
Before adjourning to closed session Commissioner Zwahlen mentioned that she 
needed to leave due to a prior engagement and Commissioner Condit would 
take over as the lead into closed session.  

 
No reportable action. 
 
Closed Session Adjourned at 4:40 pm  

 
 
 
 
ATTESTED: By Melissa Parikh, Consolidated Emergency Dispatch Agency Commission 
Clerk 
 
The above is a summary of the minutes of the governing board of the Consolidated 
Emergency Dispatch Agency Commission.  Complete audio minutes are available from the 
Stanislaus Regional 9-1-1 Administrative Office. 



 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
3705 Oakdale Road                                                                      Telephone: (209) 552-3900 
Modesto, CA  95357                                                      www.sr911.org                                                             Fax: (209) 552-3950  
 

 
The professional connection between the community and public safety. 

 
       Kasey Young, Interim Executive Director 

________________________________________________________________________ 
 

                                               
          
 
 
AGENDA DATE: June 26, 2024 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
SUBJECT: Update Re Update Regarding Fifth Amendment to the Joint Exercise 

of Powers Agreement between the City of Modesto and the County 
of Stanislaus for Emergency Dispatch Services and Appointment of 
Consolidated Emergency Dispatch Agency Commissioners 

______________________________________________________________________ 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The County Chief Executive Officer and Modesto City Manager convened a workgroup to 
consider changes to the structure of the Consolidated Emergency Dispatch Agency 
Commission (CEDAC).  The workgroup included executive staff, City Attorney and County 
Counsel representatives. The workgroup met for approximately six months and formed 
initial recommendations regarding the future composition of the commission, as well as 
recommendations to further define roles and responsibilities. 
 
On June 4th, 2024, the Modesto City Council and the County Board of Supervisors 
approved the 5th amendment to the Joint Powers Agreement between the City of Modesto 
and the County of Stanislaus for Emergency Dispatch Services. The amendment 
extended the agreement to December 31, 2024, modified the governing body structure 
of the Commission, updated quorum, and action requirements, and provided Agency 
member liaisons to assist the Dispatch Director. 
 
The revised representation on the Commission consists of two members from both the 
Modesto City Council and the Stanislaus County Board of Supervisors. CEDAC’s primary 
role is to appoint and evaluate the Stanislaus Regional 9-1-1 (SR911) Director, approve 
the annual budget to establish service levels, approve performance measures, approve 
the annual performance outcomes report from the SR911 Director, approve strategic 
plans, and approve the five-year capital improvement plan (updated annually).  
 
CEDAC will meet at least two times per calendar year. The first meeting will occur in 
February or March to review and approve a budget for the following fiscal year. The 
second meeting will occur in September or October to review the performance outcomes 
from the preceding fiscal year. Special meetings may be called to consider midyear 
changes to service levels if needed and to resolve any matters requested by the SR911 
Director. 
 

CEDAC (JPA) Item 4.2 

Vote Required: Yes No

http://www.sr911.org/


   

Page 2 of 2 
 

Under the new amended agreement, the City and County will identify a single 
representative from each jurisdiction to serve as liaisons to support the SR911 Director 
throughout the year.  Identified liaisons will work with the SR911 Director as needed to 
guide the development of operational policies, strategic plans, capital improvement plans, 
monitor performance outcomes, and consider the need for changes in service levels. 
 
At minimum, a quarterly user forum, to which all users of dispatch services will be invited, 
will be convened by the SR911 Director. The forum will provide users an opportunity to 
review and provide feedback on performance reports, strategic plans, the Capital 
Improvement Plan, operational policies, and service capacity. 
 
Please refer to the attached chart as a visual representation of the updated governance 
structure. 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
 
There is no fiscal impact associated with this item. 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Commission to consider the new CEDAC governance structure. 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
CONTACT PERSON:   Jody Hayes, Chief Executive Officer 
    Stanislaus County, (209) 525-6333 
     

Joe Lopez, City Manager  
City of Modesto, (209) 577-5223 

_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
ATTACHMENTS: A-1:  Fifth Amendment to the Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement   

Between the City of Modesto and the County of Stanislaus for 
Emergency Dispatch Services (4 pages) 

   A-2: New JPA Governance Structure (1 page) 
   A-3: Board of Supervisors Agenda Item (8 pages) 
   A-4: Modesto City Council Agenda Item (3 pages) 
 











Q
ua

rt
er

ly
 U

se
r F

or
um

Al
l u

se
rs

 in
vi

te
d 

(o
pt

io
na

l m
ee

tin
g)

1.
Di

re
ct

or
 to

 h
os

t u
se

r f
or

um
 o

nc
e 

pe
r

qu
ar

te
r, 

or
 m

or
e 

fr
eq

ue
nt

ly
 if

 n
ee

de
d

2.
O

pp
or

tu
ni

ty
 to

 re
vi

ew
 a

nd
 p

ro
vi

de
fe

ed
ba

ck
 o

n 
Q

ua
rt

er
ly

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

re
po

rt
s,

 st
ra

te
gi

c 
pl

an
s,

 C
ap

ita
l

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t P

la
n,

 o
pe

ra
tio

na
l p

ol
ic

ie
s

an
d 

se
rv

ic
e 

ca
pa

ci
ty

Ag
en

cy
 L

ia
is

on
s

1 
- A

ss
ig

ne
d 

an
nu

al
ly

 b
y 

M
od

es
to

 C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

Re
ps

1 
- A

ss
ig

ne
d 

an
nu

al
ly

 b
y 

Bo
ar

d 
of

 S
up

er
vi

so
rs

 R
ep

s
1.

Da
y-

to
-d

ay
 o

ve
rs

ig
ht

 a
nd

 su
pp

or
t f

or
 S

R
91

1 
Di

re
ct

or
2.

W
or

k 
w

ith
 S

R 
91

1 
Di

re
ct

or
 to

 g
ui

de
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f o

pe
ra

tio
na

l p
ol

ic
ie

s,
st

ra
te

gi
c 

pl
an

s a
nd

 C
ap

ita
l I

m
pr

ov
em

en
t

Pl
an

3.
M

on
ito

r p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 o
ut

co
m

es
 a

nd
ch

an
ge

s t
o 

se
rv

ic
e 

le
ve

ls 
as

 n
ee

de
d

4.
Pr

ov
id

e 
co

m
m

en
ts

 o
n 

SR
 9

11
 D

ire
ct

or
an

nu
al

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 e
va

lu
at

io
n

SR
 9

11
 B

oa
rd

2 
- M

od
es

to
 C

ity
 C

ou
nc

ilm
em

be
rs

2 
- C

ou
nt

y 
Bo

ar
d 

M
em

be
rs

1.
Ap

po
in

t/
Ev

al
ua

te
 S

R 
91

1 
Di

re
ct

or
2.

Ap
pr

ov
e 

an
nu

al
 b

ud
ge

t t
o 

es
ta

bl
ish

 se
rv

ic
e 

le
ve

ls
3.

Ap
pr

ov
e 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 m
ea

su
re

s a
nd

 a
nn

ua
l p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 o

ut
co

m
es

 re
po

rt
 fr

om
 S

R 
91

1 
Di

re
ct

or
4.

Ap
pr

ov
e 

St
ra

te
gi

c p
la

ns
5.

Ap
pr

ov
e 

5-
ye

ar
 C

ap
ita

l I
m

pr
ov

em
en

t P
la

n 
(u

pd
at

ed
 a

nn
ua

lly
)

6.
M

in
im

um
 2

 m
ee

tin
gs

 p
er

 y
ea

r (
Br

ow
n 

Ac
t)

o
Bu

dg
et

 re
vi

ew
/a

pp
ro

va
l (

Fe
b/

M
ar

ch
)

o
An

nu
al

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 o
ut

co
m

es
 (S

ep
t/

O
ct

)
7.

Sp
ec

ia
l m

ee
tin

gs
o

Co
ns

id
er

 m
id

ye
ar

 ch
an

ge
s t

o 
se

rv
ic

e 
le

ve
ls 

if 
ne

ed
ed

 (a
dd

in
g/

de
le

tin
g/

re
cl

as
sin

g 
st

af
f)

o
Re

so
lv

e 
an

y 
m

at
te

rs
 re

qu
es

te
d 

by
 S

R 
91

1 
Di

re
ct

or

Bu
dg

et
/S

ta
ffi

ng
 R

ev
ie

w
 fo

r M
od

es
to

 C
ity

 M
an

ag
er

 a
nd

 C
ou

nt
y 

Ch
ie

f E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
O

ffi
ce

r
1.

Re
vi

ew
 a

nn
ua

l b
ud

ge
t (

60
 d

ay
s p

rio
r t

o 
ap

pr
ov

al
)

2.
Re

vi
ew

 c
ha

ng
es

 to
 st

af
fin

g 
al

lo
ca

tio
n 

(6
0 

da
ys

 p
rio

r t
o 

ap
pr

ov
al

)

SR
 9

11
 D

ire
ct

or

SR
 9

11
 S

ta
ff



THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE COUNTY OF STANISLAUS
AGENDA ITEM

DEPT: Chief Executive Office BOARD AGENDA:5.B.12
AGENDA DATE:  June 4, 2024

CONSENT:

CEO CONCURRENCE: YES 4/5 Vote Required:  No

SUBJECT:

Approve the Fifth Amendment to the Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement Between the 
City of Modesto and the County of Stanislaus for Emergency Dispatch Services and 
Approve the Board of Supervisors' Commission Assignment

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

1. Approve the Fifth Amendment to the Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement 
between the City of Modesto and the County of Stanislaus for Emergency 
Dispatch Services. The Fifth Amendment will change the term of the agreement
and update the makeup of the Consolidated Emergency Dispatch Agency 
Commission.

2. Authorize the Chief Executive Officer to execute the Fifth Amendment to the Joint 
Exercise of Powers Agreement between the City of Modesto and the County of 
Stanislaus for Emergency Dispatch Services and sign on behalf of the County.

3. Approve assigning Supervisor Buck Condit and Supervisor Mani Grewal to the 
commission with Supervisor Vito Chiesa as the alternate. 

DISCUSSION:

The City of Modesto (Modesto) and the County of Stanislaus (County) entered into a 
joint exercise of powers agreement (JPA) for emergency dispatch services effective 
September 1, 1999. The agency is governed by a seven-member Consolidated 
Emergency Dispatch Agency Commission (“Commission”) consisting of members of 
both Parties of the Agreement, as noted in Section 8.1 of the JPA. The JPA identifies 
Modesto and the County as "member" agencies and provides that the agreement can 
be amended at any time if executed by both members. 

The County Chief Executive Officer and Modesto City Manager convened a workgroup 
to consider changes to the Consolidated Emergency Dispatch Agency Commission 
(CEDAC) structure. The workgroup includes executive staff, the City Attorney and 
County Counsel representatives. It has met for approximately eight months and has 
formed initial recommendations regarding the commission's future composition and
recommendations to further define roles and responsibilities.

The workgroup is proposing to revise representation on the Commission to consist of 
two members from the Modesto City Council and the Stanislaus County Board of 
Supervisors. CEDAC’s primary role will be to appoint and evaluate the SR911 Director's 
performance, approve the annual budget to establish service levels, approve 



Page 2 of 3

performance measures, approve the annual performance outcomes report from the 
SR911 Director, approve strategic plans, and approve the five-year capital improvement 
plan (updated annually). 

CEDAC is proposed to meet at least two times per calendar year. The first meeting will 
occur in February or March to review and approve a budget for the following fiscal year. 
The second meeting will occur in September or October to review the performance 
outcomes from the preceding fiscal year. Special meetings may be called to consider 
midyear changes to service levels if needed and to resolve any matters requested by 
the SR911 Director.

The workgroup also recommends that the City and County identify a single 
representative from each jurisdiction to serve as liaisons to support the SR 911 Director. 
Identified liaisons will work with the SR911 Director as needed to guide the 
development of operational policies, strategic plans, capital improvement plans, monitor 
performance outcomes, and consider the need for changes in service levels. The 
County liaison will serve at the pleasure of the two county board members serving on
the commission.

At a minimum, a quarterly user forum, to which all users of dispatch services will be 
invited, will be convened by the SR911 Director. The forum will provide users an 
opportunity to review and provide feedback on performance reports, strategic plans, the 
Capital Improvement Plan, operational policies, and service capacity.

Please refer to the attached chart as a visual representation of these recommendations.

In October 2021, Modesto provided written notice of its intent to terminate the JPA 
agreement effective January 1, 2024. At its November 28, 2023, meeting, the Board of 
Supervisors approved an amendment to extend the term of the agreement until June 
30, 2024, addressing sections 4.4, 5, and 6 (Board Resolution 2023-0615). A Fifth 
Amendment to the JPA between the City of Modesto and the County of Stanislaus is 
recommended to implement the recommended changes to the composition of CEDAC 
and to extend the current agreement through December 31, 2024. The City of Modesto 
and the County recommend the amendment to provide additional time to evaluate long-
term plans for dispatch services in the community and will bring further updates by 
December 2024. 

Modesto will seek approval of the amendment from the Modesto City Council in June 
2024. The amendment can be fully executed upon approval by the Board of Supervisors 
and the Modesto City Council.

POLICY ISSUE:

Section 18 of the Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement between the City of Modesto and 
the County of Stanislaus for Emergency Dispatch Services states that the agreement 
may be amended by a supplemental agreement executed by both members at any time. 
Any such amendment requires approval by a majority vote of the respective governing 
body that exercises authority over each member.

FISCAL IMPACT:

There is no fiscal impact associated with the recommended Board action.



Page 3 of 3

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS’ PRIORITY:

The recommended actions are consistent with the Board’s priority of Supporting a
Strong and Safe Community and Delivering Efficient Public Services by continually 
working towards improvement in the way emergency dispatch services are provided to 
the community.

STAFFING IMPACT:

There is no staffing impact associated with the recommended Board action. 

CONTACT PERSON:

Jody Hayes, Chief Executive Officer Telephone: (209) 525-6333

ATTACHMENT(S):

1. Proposed Governance Structure
2. Fifth Amendment



CITY OF MODESTO

COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT

DATE OF MEETING:

June 4, 2024

Date: June 4, 2024

TO:           Mayor and City Council 

THROUGH: Joseph P. Lopez, City Manager

FROM: Scotty Douglass, Deputy City Manager

SUBJECT: Fifth Amendment to the Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement between the City of 
Modesto and the County of Stanislaus for Emergency Dispatch Services and 
Appointment of Consolidated Emergency Dispatch Agency Commissioners

CONTACT: Scotty Douglass, Deputy City Manager, sdouglass@modestogov.com, 
209-577-9149

DESCRIPTION: 
Consider approving the Fifth Amendment to the Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement between 
the City of Modesto and the County of Stanislaus for Emergency Dispatch Services to extend 
the agreement to December 31, 2024, modify the governing body structure of the Commission, 
update quorum and action requirements and provide for Agency Member Liaison to assist the 
Dispatch Director and appointing Councilmembers as Commissioners to the Consolidated 
Emergency Dispatch Agency. (Funding Source: Not Applicable) 

STRATEGIC PLAN ELEMENT:
The recommended action supports the following 2020-2025 City of Modesto Strategic Plan 
Initiatives: Goal A: Improve community safety and quality of life through a combination of 
prevention and intervention efforts that address safety and its underlying issues. 

BACKGROUND:
On September 1, 1999, the City of Modesto (City) and the County of Stanislaus (County) 
entered into a Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement (JPA) for Emergency Dispatch Services. 
This JPA was established for the purpose of establishing and operating the Stanislaus Regional 
911 (SR911) dispatch center located at 3705 Oakdale Road. This JPA is guided by the 
Consolidated Emergency Dispatch Agency Commission (CEDAC), which is composed of City, 
County and other representatives.

On August 23, 2016, by Resolution 2016-329, Council approved the First Amendment of the 
Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement between the City of Modesto and the County of Stanislaus 
for Emergency Dispatch Services amending the Term and Termination sections to make clear 
that the Agreement would continue until terminated by either Modesto or the County pursuant to 
Section 6 of the Agreement.  Section 6.1 was amended to require that any Member can 



City Council, June 4, 2024
Fifth Amendment to the Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement between the City of Modesto and 

the County of Stanislaus for Emergency Dispatch Services and Appointment of 
Consolidated Emergency Dispatch Agency Commissioners

Page 2 of 3

terminate the Agreement at any time by providing a written notice of intent to terminate at least 
twenty-four (24) months in advance of the desired termination date.

On October 27, 2021, by Resolution No. 2021-413, Council authorized the City Manager to 
provide the Consolidated Emergency Dispatch Agency Commission and County of Stanislaus 
with a written notice of an intent to terminate the Joint Exercise Powers of Authority Agreement 
between the City of Modesto and the County of Stanislaus for emergency dispatch services 
effective January 1, 2024, in accordance with Section 6.1 of the agreement in order to evaluate 
the future of emergency dispatch services.

On May 3, 2022, by Resolution No. 2022-203, Council approved a Second Amendment of the 
Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement between the City of Modesto and the County of Stanislaus 
for Emergency Dispatch Services, amending sections of the agreement related to the 
Commission Members, the Dispatch Advisory Board, and Technical Advisory Committee to 
more efficiently align with the responsibilities of the public officials engaging with the operational 
leadership of SR911.

On December 6, 2022, by Resolution No. 2022-457, Council approved a Third Amendment to 
the Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement between the City of Modesto and the County of 
Stanislaus for Emergency Dispatch Services, amending portions of Section 8 to allow 
appointment of the most appropriate agency officials to serve on the Commission.

DISCUSSION:
On December 8, 2023, by Resolution No. 2023-517, Council approved the Fourth Amendment 
of the Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement between the City of Modesto and the County of 
Stanislaus for Emergency Dispatch Services extending the expiration date of the term to June 
30, 2024, to continue exploring alternative service delivery and governance models.  At this 
time, City and County staff continue to explore service delivery and governance models and 
additional time is needed. Moreover, the attached Fifth Amendment will extend the JPA 
agreement to December 31, 2024. 

The proposed amendment also includes a change to the governing body structure of the 
Commission changing from seven members to four (4) members. It is proposed that the 
Commission consist of two (2) members of the Modesto City Council, selected by the City 
Council and one (1) alternate, who shall also be a member of the Modesto City Council and two 
(2) members of the County’s Board of Supervisors, selected by the Board of Supervisors and 
one (1) alternate who will also be a member of the County’s Board of Supervisors. This would 
change the quorum of the governing body from four (4) commissioners to three (3). All actions 
by the Commission will also require three (3) affirmative votes.

And lastly, the proposed Fifth Amendment states that Modesto and the County shall each 
assign one (1) Agency Member Liaison on an annual basis. The Agency Members Liaisons 
shall perform the following functions:

 Provide Day-to-day oversight and support for the Dispatch Director.
 Work with the Dispatch Director to guide development of operational policies, strategic 

plans, and Capital Improvement Plans.



City Council, June 4, 2024
Fifth Amendment to the Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement between the City of Modesto and 

the County of Stanislaus for Emergency Dispatch Services and Appointment of 
Consolidated Emergency Dispatch Agency Commissioners

Page 3 of 3

 Monitor performance outcomes and changes to service levels as needed; and
 Provide the Commission with feedback related to the Dispatch Director’s performance 

during the Director’s evaluation.”

As proposed, approval of the Fifth Amendment will provide sufficient time for both parties to 
reach resolution on the future delivery of emergency dispatch services and governance of 
SR911. 

FISCAL IMPACT:
The recommended action will have no fiscal impact as the JPA operates under a separate 
budget that is valid through the end of the calendar year – December 31, 2024.

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION:
This item has not been presented to a committee or commission.

RECOMMENDED COUNCIL ACTION: 
Resolution approving the Fifth Amendment to the Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement between 
the City of Modesto and the County of Stanislaus for Emergency Dispatch Services to extend 
the agreement to December 31, 2024, modify the governing body structure of the Commission, 
update quorum and action requirements and provide for Agency Member Liaison to assist the 
Dispatch Director, authorizing the City Manager or his designee to execute the Agreement, and 
appointing Mayor Zwahlen and Councilmember Bavaro as Commissioners to the Consolidated 
Emergency Dispatch Agency and Councilmember Wright as an Alternate Commissioner.

Approved by:
Scotty Douglass, Deputy City Manager

Joseph P. Lopez, City Manager

Attachments:
1. Resolution – Fifth Amendment to SR911 JPA Agreement
2. SR911 Fifth Amendment to the JPA Agreement



 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
3705 Oakdale Road                                                                      Telephone: (209) 552-3900 
Modesto, CA  95357                                                      www.sr911.org                                                                  Fax: (209) 552-3950  

 
The professional connection between the community and public safety. 

 
       Kasey Young, Interim Executive Director 

________________________________________________________________________ 
 

                                               
          
 
 
AGENDA DATE: June 26, 2024 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 

SUBJECT: Conduct the Annual Appointment of President, Vice-President, and 
Secretary to the Consolidated Emergency Dispatch Agency 
Commission Effective June 1, 2024 

______________________________________________________________________ 
 
DISCUSSION:  
 
The JPA Agreement identifies the transition of elected members of the Commission in 
Section 10.1.  “The Commission shall annually appoint a President of the Agency from 
among the Commissioners and shall appoint a Secretary of the Agency who need not 
be a member of the Commission.  It may elect a Vice-President from among the 
Commissioners”.   
 
The duties of each officer are detailed below: 
 

• President - The President shall coordinate the work of officers and 
committees of the Agency in order that the Agency’s purposes may be 
promoted; preside at all meetings of the Agency; appoint such ad hoc 
committees as may be desirable, subject to the approval of the Commission; 
perform such other duties as assigned to him by the Commission; and may 
be an approved signatory on legal or formal documents of the Agency.  
(Section 10.1.1) 
 

• Vice-President - The Vice President shall assist the President in the 
performance of his/her duties; perform the duties of the President in the 
absence or inability of that officer to act; perform such duties as may be 
assigned to him by the Commission; and may be an approved signatory on 
legal or formal documents of the Agency.  (Section 10.1.2) 
 

• Secretary - The Secretary shall keep, or cause to be kept, accurate records of 
the proceedings of all meetings of the Agency; be responsible to prepare, or 
cause to be prepared, meeting schedules, notices, and agendas; make such 
records of the proceedings available to the Commission for their approval at 
each meeting; keep Members and agencies informed for meeting 
proceedings and activities of the Agency; conduct all necessary 
correspondence of the Agency; be responsible for preparing, or causing to be 
prepared, any annual reports required by law; prepare such notices and 
reports as may be requested by the Commission; prepare, or cause to be 

CEDAC (JPA) Item 5.1 

Vote Required: Yes No

http://www.sr911.org/


Page 2 of 2 
 

prepared, periodic reports on the financial status of the Agency; and be 
responsible for coordinating the Agency audits, as required by this 
Agreement.  (Section 10.1.3) 

 
Existing practice has the responsibilities of Secretary administered jointly by 
Stanislaus Regional 9-1-1 administrative staff and the Stanislaus County 
Clerk of the Board of Supervisors’ Office, or their respective designees. 

______________________________________________________________________ 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: None 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 

1. Elect Commission members to serve as President and Vice President for fiscal 
year 2024-2025, effective, June 1, 2024, with the term expiring on May 31, 2025.   

 
2. Approve the existing practice with the shared responsibilities of the Secretary 

administered jointly between Stanislaus Regional 9-1-1 administrative staff and 
the Stanislaus County Clerk of the Board of Supervisors’ Office, or their 
respective designees, continuing in compliance with all aspects and expectations 
required of the position. 

______________________________________________________________________ 
 
CONTACT PERSON: Kasey Young, Interim Executive Director 

Stanislaus Regional 911, (209) 552-3903 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

 
ATTACHMENTS: None 
 

 
 
  



 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
3705 Oakdale Road                                                                      Telephone: (209) 552-3900 
Modesto, CA  95357                                                      www.sr911.org                                                                   Fax: (209) 552-3950  
 

 
The professional connection between the community and public safety 

  
       Kasey Young, Interim Executive Director 

________________________________________________________________________ 
 

                                               
          
 

 
AGENDA DATE: June 26, 2024 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
SUBJECT: Consider the Approval of the Fiscal Year 2024-2025 Meeting Dates 

for the Consolidated Emergency Dispatch Agency Commission and 
User Committee Meetings 

______________________________________________________________________ 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The Consolidated Emergency Dispatch Agency Commission (Commission) meeting 
dates are calendared in advance to allow Commission members to plan attendance at 
regular meetings.  The original Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement between the City of 
Modesto and the County of Stanislaus for Emergency Dispatch Services (JPA 
Agreement) stipulated that “the Commission, by resolution, may provide for the holding 
of regular Commission meetings” in accordance with Brown Act requirements.   
 
CEDAC is proposed to meet at least two times per calendar year. The first meeting will 
occur in February or March to review and approve a budget for the following fiscal year. 
The second meeting will occur in September or October to review the performance 
outcomes from the preceding fiscal year. Special meetings may be called to consider 
midyear changes to service levels if needed and to resolve any matters requested by 
the SR911 Director. 
 
A quarterly user forum, to which all users of dispatch services will be invited, will be 
convened by the SR911 Director. The forum will provide users an opportunity to review 
and provide feedback on performance reports, strategic plans, the Capital Improvement 
Plan, operational policies, and service capacity. 
 
Below is the recommended meeting schedule for Fiscal Year 2024-2025: 
 

Commission Meetings User Committee Meetings 

October 23rd, 2024 September 10th, 2024 
May 28th, 2025 January 22nd, 2025 
 April 8th, 2025 

 
 
 
 
 

CEDAC (JPA) Item 5.2 

Vote Required: Yes No

http://www.sr911.org/


 

Page 2 of 2 

 

______________________________________________________________________ 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Approve the Fiscal Year 2024-2025 Meeting Dates for the Consolidated Emergency 
Dispatch Agency Commission and User Committee. 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
CONTACT PERSON: Kasey Young, Interim Executive Director 
    Stanislaus Regional 9-1-1, (209) 552-3903 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
ATTACHMENTS:   None 

 
  



 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
3705 Oakdale Road                                                                      Telephone: (209) 552-3900 
Modesto, CA 95357                                                            www.sr911.org                                                             Fax: (209) 552-3950  
 

 
The professional connection between the community and public safety. 

 
       Kasey Young, Interim Executive Director 

________________________________________________________________________ 
 

                        
      
 
 
AGENDA DATE: June 26th, 2024 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
SUBJECT: Consideration the Approval of the Fiscal Year 2024 Year-End Budget 

Adjustment 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
DISCUSSION:  
 
During year end analysis, the actual costs for services and supplies, which include normal 
operating supplies and county cost allocation plan charges, were trending higher than 
budgeted.  The budget reflected $64,000 less than the actual costs.   
 

  Budget 
YE 

Projection Difference 
CAP 435,428  475,889  (40,461) 
Other 
S&S 969,608  992,900  (23,292) 
Total 1,405,036  1,468,789  (63,753) 

 
It is recommended to authorize SR911 to reduce appropriations in salaries and benefits 
and increase appropriations in services and supplies to cover the additional costs that we 
not included in the budget.  There is salary savings to cover these additional costs with 
no impact to the member agencies. 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
The amount of the adjustment is $64,000 and will be transferred from salaries and 
benefits to services and supplies.  There is no additional cost to member agencies. 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 

1. Accept the Stanislaus Regional 911 analysis of Fiscal Year 2024 year-end budget 
adjustment required to end the year in a positive position. 
 

2. Authorize the Auditor-Controller to make the necessary adjustments as 
recommended in the attached budget journal. 

 

CEDAC (JPA) Item 5.3 

Vote Required: Yes No

http://www.sr911.org/


 
 

Page 2 of 2 

 

______________________________________________________________________ 
 
CONTACT PERSON: Kasey Young, Interim Executive Director 

Stanislaus Regional 911, (209) 552-3903 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  A-1: Budget Journal (1 page) 
 
 
  



B
u

d
g

e
t 

A
d

ju
s
tm

e
n

t 
T

e
m

p
la

te

B
u

d
g

e
t 

E
n

tr
y
 I

d
e

n
ti

fi
e

r 
(F

o
r 

d
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

t 
tr

a
c
k

in
g

 o
n

ly
)

SO
 B

F 
06

/2
6/

24
 

JV
 2

32
4-

1
5

*
S

C
_

F
U

N
D

[.
.

] 
(4

 c
h

a
r)

*
S

C
_

C
O

S
T

 

C
E

N
T

E
R

[.
.]

 (
7

 c
h

a
r)

*
S

C
_

A
C

C
O

U
N

T
[.

.]
  

(5
 c

h
a

r)

*
S

C
_

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

[.
.]

  

(7
 c

h
a

r)

*
S

C
_

L
O

C
A

T
I
O

N
[.

.

] 
 (

6
 c

h
a

r)

*
S

C
_

M
I
S

C
[.

.]
  

(6
 c

h
a

r)

*
S

C
_

I
N

T
E

R
F
U

N
D

[.
.]

  

(4
 c

h
a

r)

*
S

C
_

F
U

T
U

R
E

[.
.]

 

(5
 c

h
a

r)

I
n

c
re

a
s
e

 t
o

 E
x

p
e

n
s
e

, 

D
e

c
re

a
s
e

 t
o

 R
e

v
e

n
u

e

D
e

c
re

a
s
e

 t
o

 E
x

p
e

n
s
e

, 

I
n

c
re

a
s
e

 t
o

 R
e

v
e

n
u

e

N
e

t 

I
n

c
re

a
s
e

/
(D

e
c
re

a
s
e

)
C

o
m

m
e

n
t

79
00

SR
06

11
1

61
60

0
00

00
00

0
00

00
00

00
00

00
00

00
00

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  2

3
,8

2
8 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 2

3
,8

2
8 

In
cr

ea
se

 M
ai

n
te

n
an

ce
 

eq
u

ip
m

en
t

79
00

SR
06

11
1

61
07

0
00

00
00

0
00

00
00

00
00

00
00

00
00

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  7

7
0 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
7

7
0 

In
cr

ea
se

 C
ri

m
e 

an
d

 F
id

el
it

y 

In
su

ra
n

ce

79
00

SR
06

11
1

63
00

0
00

00
00

0
00

00
00

00
00

00
00

00
00

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  3

1
,4

8
2 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 3

1
,4

8
2 

In
cr

ea
se

 P
ro

fe
ss

io
n

al
 &

 

sp
ec

ia
l s

er
vi

ce
s

79
00

SR
06

11
1

65
66

0
00

00
00

0
00

00
00

00
00

00
00

00
00

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  3
,5

0
0 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

3
,5

0
0 

In
cr

ea
se

 S
p

ec
ia

l d
ep

ar
tm

en
ta

l 

ex
p

en
se

79
00

SR
06

11
1

63
09

0
00

00
00

0
00

00
00

00
00

00
00

00
00

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  4
,4

2
0 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

4
,4

2
0 

In
cr

ea
se

 A
u

d
it

in
g 

&
 

ac
co

u
n

ti
n

g

79
00

SR
06

11
1

50
00

0
00

00
00

0
00

00
00

00
00

00
00

00
00

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 6

4
,0

0
0 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  (
6

4
,0

0
0)

D
ec

re
as

e 
Sa

la
ri

es
 a

n
d

 

B
en

ef
it

s
T
o
ta

l
6
4
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

6
4
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

E
x

p
la

na
ti

on
:

I
nc

re
as

e
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

ti
on

s 
in

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s 

an
d
 S

up
pl

ie
s 

an
d
 D

e
cr

e
as

e
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

ti
on

s 
in

 S
al

ar
ie

s 
an

d
 B

e
ne

fi
ts

 t
o 

co
ve

r 
ad

d
it

io
na

l 
co

st
s 

as
 a

pp
ro

ve
d
 b

y 
C

E
D

A
C

 C
om

m
is

si
on

 0
6

/2
6

/2
4

R
e
qu

e
st

in
g 

D
e
pa

rt
m

e
nt

C
E

O
A

ud
it

or
-C

on
tr

ol
le

r'
s 

O
ff

ic
e

B
ro

ok
e
 F

re
e
m

an

Pr
e
pa

re
d
 b

y
A

pp
ro

ve
d
 B

y
A

pp
ro

ve
d
 B

y

6
/1

7
/2

0
2

4

D
at

e
D

at
e

D
at

e



 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
3705 Oakdale Road                                                                                                                                      Telephone: (209) 552-3900 
Modesto, CA 95357                                                           www.sr911.org                                                              Fax: (209) 552-3950  
 

 
The professional connection between the community and public safety. 

 
       Kasey Young, Interim Executive Director 

________________________________________________________________________ 
 

                        
      
 
 
AGENDA DATE: June 26th, 2024 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
SUBJECT: Consider the Approval of the Stanislaus Regional 911 Fiscal Year 

2024/2025 Final Budget and Related Actions 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
DISCUSSION:  
 
The Commission will consider and approve the Final Budget as necessary in order to 
support decision-making and budget planning for each participating agency in advance 
of Fiscal Year 2025. Details of the Final Budget are outlined below and identified in the 
attached schedules. 
 
The budget is designed and allocated to support six fixed-post dispatch stations. During 
the fiscal year, operational demands for individual agency partners may necessitate a 
higher level of service for individual operations and events. SR911 staff will continue to 
evaluate options and alternatives.   
 
Salaries and Employee Benefits: 
 
The Fiscal Year 2025 SR911 Final Budget has 58 allocated full-time equivalent (FTE) 
positions.  
 
The 2025 Budget represents a $267,819 increase over the 2024 Final Budget with no 
vacancy rate being applied for a total of $8,712,264, which amounts to an increase in 
salaries of 3.2%. A ten percent vacancy rate reduction of $780,710 is recommended, 
reducing the total salary budget to $7,931,554. 
 
Staff will return to the Commission to restore the applied vacancy rate amount if the 
department outperforms the vacancy rate. As of June, Fiscal Year 2024 has an average 
vacancy rate of 26.7% and as of June there are 5 dispatch vacancies and 2 administrative 
vacancies remaining with an actual vacancy rate of 12.1%. SR911 has a current hiring 
success rate of 92% over the last two fiscal years (July 2022 – April 2024) which is 
significantly higher than the 17% from 2018-2022. 
 

CEDAC (JPA) Item 5.4 

Vote Required: Yes No

http://www.sr911.org/


 
 

Page 2 of 4 

 

 
 
Services and Supplies:  
 
SR911 services and supplies expense will increase 22.1% from the prior year to 
$1,716,091. This is due to cost-of-living increases for normal expenses as well as the 
County’s CAP charges which are reflected in Schedule 4. 
 
The approved SR911 Fiscal Year 2024 CAP charge budget was underbudgeted by 
$59,598 from what the County issued. Accounting for this variance, CAP charges 
increased by $284,025, or 49.5%. $189,800, or 66.8%, of the increase in CAP charges is 
associated with increases in insurance.  
 
Other Expenses:   
 
Depreciation expense will remain the same at $400,000 in Fiscal Year 2025.  This is 
based on actual expenses calculated from the Agency’s fixed asset listing and is an 
accounting entry. Depreciation expense is not charged to the participating agencies in 
recognition that the Agency partners have already funded the capital costs of purchasing 
these assets.  
 
Fixed Assets:  
 
The 2025 Final Budget contains $483,443 in Fixed Assets from the Capital Improvement 
Plan in Fiscal Year 2023 and Fiscal Year 2024 that have not been spent. These amounts 
are based on year-end projections and may fluctuate due to project status. These costs 
are funded with committed fund balance which nets to no charges to partners in Fiscal 
Year 2025. 
 
Prior Year Budget Surplus: 
 
The Fiscal Year 2024 Budget included the Fiscal Year 2023 Budget Surplus in the amount 
of $267,660. The actual budget surplus was $129,141. Due to the surplus estimated for 
Fiscal Year 2024 in the amount of $294,813, it is recommended to not apply these funds 
to the current fiscal year and let them drop to the fund balance.  
 

0.0%

5.0%

10.0%

15.0%

20.0%

25.0%

30.0%

35.0%

40.0%

Jul-23 Aug-23 Sep-23 Oct-23 Nov-23 Dec-23 Jan-24 Feb-24 Mar-24 Apr-24

Fiscal Year 2024 Vacancy Rate

Vacancy Rate Average



 
 

Page 3 of 4 

 

 
Contingency Reserve: 
 
The Fiscal Year 2024 Budget included $44,623 of Contingency Reserve. This was 25% 
of the total contingency. Due to the large budget surplus estimated for Fiscal Year 2024, 
it is recommended to not apply these funds. 
 
Fund Balance: 
 
As of July 1, 2023, the SR911 Retained Earnings/Fund Balance was $1,974,494. 
$466,364 of the Retained Earnings are earmarked for 2023 approved fixed asset projects, 
$178,491 are assigned to the contingency fund leaving a balance of $1,329,639 in 
undesignated fund balance.  
 
City and County staff have confirmed the fund balance as of July 1, 2023. In researching 
the SR911 fund balance, records show SR911 has always carried a portion of the fund 
balance that has been undesignated. 
 
JPA Section 7.1 states “After completion of its purpose as set forth in Section 2 hereof, 
any surplus money on hand will be returned to the Members in proportion to their 
respective contributions to such surplus, as required by section 6512.1 of the government 
code.” It is recommended the balance is refunded and cashed out to agencies as outlined, 
with an option to keep the balance on deposit if the agency chooses to apply the refund 
toward the costs associated with a replacement CAD system. 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
The Fiscal Year 2025 Final Budgeted Costs total $10,531,088 with the 10% vacancy 
rate applied. This represents an overall increase of $573,749s compared to the Final 
Budget for Fiscal Year 2024. The charges to contributing partners are decreased by 
depreciation, miscellaneous revenues, and cost reimbursements. The charges to 
contributing partners for Fiscal Year 2025 is $9,600,645, which represents a $402,589 
increase from Fiscal Year 2024 Final Budget. 
 
Details are provided in the attached Schedules. 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 

1. Accept the Fiscal Year 2025 Final Budget as presented. 
 

2. Approve the 10% vacancy rate. 
 

3. Approve the refund of $1,329,639 fund balance to partner agencies per JPA 
section 7.1.  
 

4. Direct and approve any changes the Commission chooses to make to the Fiscal 
Year 2025 Final Budget, then formally adopt the Fiscal Year 2025 Final Budget. 

 



 
 

Page 4 of 4 

 

______________________________________________________________________ 
 
CONTACT PERSON: Kasey Young, Interim Executive Director 

Stanislaus Regional 911, (209) 552-3903 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  Schedule 1 – Final Budget Summary 

Schedule 2 – Budget Detail: Salaries 
Schedule 3 – Budget Detail: Services and Supplies 
Schedule 4 – Budget Detail: CAP Charges 
Schedule 5 – Budget Detail: Professional Services 
Schedule 6 – Budget Detail: Depreciation and Fixed Assets 
Schedule 7 – Cost Distribution  
Schedule 8 – County Subsidies 
Schedule 9 – Historical Incident Counts 

 

 
 
 
  



 
S

c
h

e
d

u
le

 1

S
ta

n
is

la
u

s
 R

e
g

io
n

a
l 

9
1
1

F
is

c
a
l 

Y
e
a
r 

2
0
2
5
 F

in
a

l 
B

u
d

g
e

t 
S

u
m

m
a
ry

C
o

lu
m

n
 A

C
o

lu
m

n
 B

C
o

lu
m

n
 C

C
o

lu
m

n
 C

 -
 A

C
o

lu
m

n
 C

 -
 A

C
o

lu
m

n
 C

 -
 B

C
o

lu
m

n
 C

 -
 B

F
Y

 2
0
2

4
 F

in
a

l
F

Y
 2

0
2

4
 Y

e
a
r 

E
n

d
F

Y
 2

0
2

5
 F

in
a

l
C

h
a

n
g

e
C

h
a

n
g

e
C

h
a

n
g

e
C

h
a

n
g

e

It
e

m
B

u
d

g
e

t
P

ro
je

c
ti

o
n

B
u

d
g

e
t

$
%

$
%

S
a

la
ri

e
s
 &

 E
m

p
lo

y
e

e
 B

e
n
e

fi
ts

8
,4

4
4

,4
4
5

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

7
,3

3
7

,3
5
8

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

8
,7

1
2

,2
6
4

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

2
6
7

,8
1
9

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
3

.2
%

1
,3

7
4

,9
0
6

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

1
8
.7

%

L
e
s
s
: 

D
is

p
a
tc

h
 V

a
c
a
n

c
y
 R

a
te

 (
1

5
%

 o
f 

d
is

p
a
tc

h
e
rs

 F
Y

2
4
, 

1
0
%

 F
Y

2
5
)

(7
5
4

,6
6
2

)
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

(7
8
0

,7
1
0

)
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

(2
6
,0

4
8

)
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
3

.5
%

(7
8
0

,7
1
0

)
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

N
e

t 
S

a
la

ri
e

s
 a

n
d

 B
e

n
e

fi
ts

7
,6

8
9

,7
8
3

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

7
,3

3
7

,3
5
8

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

7
,9

3
1

,5
5
4

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

2
4
1

,7
7
1

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
3

.1
%

5
9
4

,1
9
6

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
8

.1
%

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 &

 S
u

p
p

lie
s

1
,4

0
5

,0
3
6

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

1
,4

6
8

,7
9
3

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

1
,7

1
6

,0
9
1

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

3
1
1

,0
5
5

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
2

2
.1

%
2

4
7

,2
9
8

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
1

6
.8

%

O
th

e
r 

E
x
p

e
n

s
e
s
 -

 D
e

p
re

c
ia

ti
o

n
4

0
0

,0
0
0

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
3

2
6

,3
4
1

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
4

0
0

,0
0
0

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
0

.0
%

7
3
,6

5
9

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

2
2
.6

%

F
ix

e
d
 A

s
s
e

ts
 (

b
a
la

n
c
e

 o
f 

F
Y

 2
3
 &

 2
4
)

4
6
2

,5
2
0

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
6

8
4

,8
1
8

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
4

8
3

,4
4
3

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
2

0
,9

2
3

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

4
.5

%
(2

0
1

,3
7
4

)
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

-2
9
.4

%

T
o

ta
l 

S
R

9
1
1

 B
u

d
g

e
te

d
 C

o
s

ts
9

,9
5
7

,3
3
9

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

9
,8

1
7

,3
1
0

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

1
0
,5

3
1

,0
8
8

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
5

7
3

,7
4
9

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
5

.8
%

7
1
3

,7
7
8

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
7

.3
%

A
c

c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 A

d
ju

s
tm

e
n

ts
:

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

D
e

p
re

c
ia

ti
o

n
(4

0
0

,0
0
0

)
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

(3
2
6

,3
4
1

)
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

(4
0
0

,0
0
0

)
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

0
.0

%
(7

3
,6

5
9

)
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
2

2
.6

%

M
is

c
e

lla
n
e

o
u

s
 R

e
v
e

n
u

e
s

(4
0
,0

0
0

)
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
(6

2
,0

1
5

)
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
(4

0
,0

0
0

)
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
0

.0
%

2
2
,0

1
5

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-3
5
.5

%

S
ta

te
 R

e
v
e

n
u

e
s
-C

o
s
t 

R
e

im
b

u
rs

e
m

e
n
t

(7
,0

0
0

)
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

(7
,0

0
0

)
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

0
.0

%
(7

,0
0
0

)
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

G
ro

s
s
 C

h
a

rg
e
s

 t
o

 P
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
n

g
 A

g
e

n
c

ie
s

9
,5

1
0

,3
3
9

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

9
,4

2
8

,9
5
4

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

1
0
,0

8
4

,0
8
8

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
5

7
3

,7
4
9

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
6

.0
%

6
5
5

,1
3
4

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
6

.9
%

O
th

e
r 

F
u

n
d

in
g

 S
o

u
rc

e
s

:
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

C
o

m
m

it
te

d
 F

u
n
d

 B
a

la
n
c
e

 f
o

r 
F

Y
 2

3
 &

 2
4
 F

A
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
(6

1
,6

0
6

)
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
(4

8
3

,4
4
3

)
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

(4
8
3

,4
4
3

)
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

N
/A

(4
2
1

,8
3
7

)
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

6
8
4

.7
%

B
u

d
g

e
t 

S
u

rp
lu

s
 A

p
p
lie

d
(2

6
7

,6
6
0

)
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

2
6
7

,6
6
0

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-1

0
0

.0
%

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

A
g

e
n

c
y
 C

o
n
ti
n

g
e

n
c
y
 F

u
n
d

 C
o

n
tr

ib
u
ti
o

n
(4

4
,6

2
3

)
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
4

4
,6

2
3

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-1
0
0

.0
%

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

C
h

a
rg

e
s

 t
o

 P
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
n

g
 A

g
e

n
c

ie
s

9
,1

9
8

,0
5
6

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

9
,3

6
7

,3
4
8

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

9
,6

0
0

,6
4
5

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

4
0
2

,5
8
9

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
4

.4
%

2
3
3

,2
9
7

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
2

.5
%

F
Y

 2
0
2

4
 F

in
a

l
F

Y
 2

0
2

5
 F

in
a

l
C

h
a

n
g

e
C

h
a

n
g

e

B
u

d
g

e
t

B
u

d
g

e
t

$
%

M
o

d
e

s
to

 P
o

lic
e

 D
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n
t

3
,2

8
7

,1
5
9

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

3
,4

8
0

,5
2
8

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

1
9
3

,3
7
0

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
5

.9
%

S
ta

n
is

la
u
s
 C

o
u
n

ty
 S

h
e
ri

ff
 -

 U
n

in
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
d

1
,9

0
8

,4
9
1

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

1
,9

8
0

,3
2
7

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

7
1
,8

3
6

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

3
.8

%

C
it
y
 o

f 
R

iv
e

rb
a
n

k
3

4
1

,3
0
1

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
3

5
9

,5
6
1

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
1

8
,2

6
0

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

5
.4

%

C
it
y
 o

f 
P

a
tt

e
rs

o
n

3
6
1

,2
8
6

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
3

6
3

,6
8
6

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
2

,4
0
0

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
0

.7
%

C
it
y
 o

f 
W

a
te

rf
o

rd
1

1
6

,4
8
3

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
1

4
7

,6
4
7

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
3

1
,1

6
4

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

2
6
.8

%

C
it
y
 o

f 
H

u
g
h

s
o
n

6
9
,7

8
7

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

8
3
,8

1
1

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

1
4
,0

2
5

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

2
0
.1

%

S
ta

n
is

la
u
s
 C

o
u
n

ty
 P

ro
b
a

ti
o

n
 D

e
p
a

rt
m

e
n
t

3
2
0

,9
6
0

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
3

2
1

,6
1
1

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
6
5
1

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
0

.2
%

M
o

d
e

s
to

 F
ir

e
 D

e
p
a

rt
m

e
n
t 

**
1

,4
6
8

,0
0
2

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

1
,5

4
6

,2
6
1

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

7
8
,2

6
0

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

5
.3

%

C
e

re
s
 F

ir
e

 D
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n
t 

**
1

5
6

,3
3
8

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
1

5
2

,0
3
6

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
(4

,3
0
3

)
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

-2
.8

%

S
ta

n
is

la
u
s
 C

o
n
s
o

lid
a
te

d
 F

ir
e

 D
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n
t 

**
1

8
7

,9
8
4

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
1

9
5

,9
8
5

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
8

,0
0
1

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
4

.3
%

O
a

k
d
a

le
 F

ir
e

 D
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n
t

1
0
9

,5
5
3

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
1

1
8

,3
1
9

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
8

,7
6
6

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
8

.0
%

P
a

tt
e

rs
o

n
 F

ir
e

 D
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n
t

9
5
,4

6
2

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

1
0
1

,3
0
9

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
5

,8
4
7

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
6

.1
%

H
u

g
h

s
o
n

 F
ir

e
 D

e
p
a

rt
m

e
n
t 

**
3

2
,7

4
5

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

3
1
,4

9
7

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

(1
,2

4
9

)
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

-3
.8

%

N
e

w
m

a
n
 F

ir
e

 D
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n
t

3
8
,3

2
9

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

4
4
,1

2
6

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

5
,7

9
7

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
1

5
.1

%

T
u

rl
o

c
k
 R

u
ra

l 
F

ir
e

 D
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n
t 

**
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
0

.0
%

W
o

o
d

la
n
d

 F
ir

e
 D

e
p
a

rt
m

e
n
t 

**
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
0

.0
%

D
e

n
a

ir
 F

ir
e

 D
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n
t 

**
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
0

.0
%

W
e

s
tp

o
rt

 F
ir

e
 D

e
p
a

rt
m

e
n
t 

**
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
0

.0
%

M
o

u
n

ta
in

 V
ie

w
 F

ir
e

 D
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n
t 

**
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
0

.0
%

O
E

S
 -

 F
ir

e
 W

a
rd

e
n

7
0
4

,1
7
5

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
6

7
3

,9
4
0

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
(3

0
,2

3
6

)
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-4

.3
%

C
h

a
rg

e
s

 t
o

 P
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
n

g
 A

g
e

n
c

ie
s

9
,1

9
8

,0
5
6

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

9
,6

0
0

,6
4
5

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

4
0
2

,5
8
9

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
4

.4
%

**
 C

o
u
n

ty
 s

u
b
s
id

iz
e

d
 a

g
e

n
c
ie

s

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

S
ch

e
d
u
le

 1



 
S

c
h

e
d

u
le

 2

S
ta

n
is

la
u

s
 R

e
g

io
n

a
l 

9
1
1

F
is

c
a

l 
Y

e
a

r 
2

0
2

5
 F

in
a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

A
ll
o

c
a

ti
o

n
 D

e
ta

il

S
a
la

ri
e

s
 a

n
d

 E
m

p
lo

y
e
e

 B
e
n

e
fi

ts

A
c
c

o
u

n
t

D
e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

F
Y

 2
0
2

4
 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

(A
)

F
Y

 2
0
2

4
 Y

E
 

P
ro

je
c

ti
o

n
 (

E
)

F
Y

 2
0
2

5
 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

(F
)

(F
) 

- 
(A

) 

C
h

a
n

g
e

%
 C

h
a
n

g
e

N
o

te
s

5
0

0
0

0
S

a
la

ri
e
s
 a

n
d

 w
a
g

e
s
**

*
4
,2

9
7
,6

7
9

$
  

  
 

3
,5

0
4
,0

1
2

$
  

  
 

4
,9

3
3
,7

4
7

$
  

  
 

6
3

6
,0

6
8

$
  

  
  
  

1
4

.8
%

S
a
la

ry
 p

ro
je

c
ti
o
n

 d
a
ta

b
a
s
e

5
0

0
1

0
O

v
e
rt

im
e
/c

o
m

p
 t

im
e
 p

a
id

2
9

2
,0

0
0

8
2

6
,3

0
8

2
9

2
,0

0
0

0
0
.0

%

5
0

0
2

0
E

x
tr

a
 h

e
lp

1
2

0
,0

0
0

2
0

8
,7

2
3

1
2

0
,0

0
0

0
0
.0

%
P

T
 C

a
ll-

T
a
k
e

rs
, 
P

T
 D

is
p
a

tc
h

e
rs

, 
P

T
 C

u
s
to

d
ia

n
 o

f 
R

e
c
o
rd

s

5
0

1
0

0
C

o
m

p
 t

im
e
 t

a
k
e
n

8
5

,0
0
0

4
7

,9
5
5

8
5

,0
0
0

0
0
.0

%
T

im
e
 o

ff
 s

u
b
s
ti
tu

te
 b

y
 c

h
o
ic

e

5
0

1
3

0
F

ls
a
 p

a
y

4
4

,0
0
0

5
0

,8
9
9

4
4

,0
0
0

0
0
.0

%
P

a
y
 f
o

r 
R

e
g

u
la

r 
h

o
u

rs
 o

v
e
r 

4
2
 p

e
r 

w
e
e

k
. 
 C

a
la

n
d
a

r 
d

ic
ta

te
s
.

5
0

2
1

0
V

a
c
a

ti
o
n

/h
o
lid

a
y
 c

a
s
h
-o

u
t

1
1

5
,0

0
0

1
4

4
,1

1
3

1
1

5
,0

0
0

0
0
.0

%
D

is
p
a
tc

h
 s

ta
ff
 w

o
rk

in
g

 o
n
 h

o
lid

a
y
s
.

5
0

2
2

0
T

e
rm

in
a

ti
o
n

 c
a

s
h
-o

u
t

5
8

,0
0
0

1
6

7
,1

1
2

5
8

,0
0
0

0
0
.0

%

5
0

2
6

0
E

m
p
lo

y
e
e

 C
h
o

ic
e
 B

o
n

u
s
 P

la
n

1
0

3
,5

5
4

9
7

,4
8
8

8
5

,0
0
0

(1
8

,5
5
4

)
-1

7
.9

%
F

Y
2
4

 b
u
d

g
e

t 
- 

in
 S

a
la

ri
e
s
 a

n
d

 W
a
g

e
s
 &

 h
a
d

 v
a
c
a

n
c
y
 r

a
te

 d
e

d
u

c
te

d

5
2

0
0

0
R

e
ti
re

m
e
n

t
1
,2

1
2
,9

9
9

9
8

2
,1

5
7

1
,3

6
0
,1

0
4

1
4

7
,1

0
5

1
2

.1
%

5
2

0
1

0
F

ic
a

3
6

8
,2

1
2

3
6

3
,6

7
3

3
8

1
,4

5
5

1
3

,2
4
3

3
.6

%
S

a
la

ry
 p

ro
je

c
ti
o
n

 d
a
ta

b
a
s
e

 +
 P

T
/O

T
 s

a
la

ri
e
s
 a

llo
c
a
ti
o
n

5
2

0
2

0
D

e
fe

rr
e
d

 c
o

m
p
 -

 p
a
rt

-t
im

e
2
,2

8
0

2
,2

5
9

2
,4

0
0

1
2

0
5
.3

%
2
%

 f
o

r 
P

a
rt

-T
im

e
 S

ta
ff
 -

 P
A

R
S

5
3

0
0

0
G

ro
u

p
 h

e
a
lt
h

 i
n
s
u

ra
n

c
e

8
6

8
,4

6
3

8
3

5
,8

3
3

1
,1

0
1
,4

4
0

2
3

2
,9

7
7

2
6

.8
%

5
3

0
2

0
U

n
e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
in

s
u
ra

n
c
e

8
,1

9
0

6
,1

4
2

6
,5

0
0

(1
,6

9
0
)

-2
0

.6
%

C
A

P
 C

h
a

rg
e

 f
ro

m
 R

is
k
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t.
  

  

5
3

0
5

1
E

m
p
lo

y
e
e

 b
e
n

e
fi
ts

 a
d
m

in
 f

e
e

2
,6

8
8

0
0

(2
,6

8
8
)

-1
0

0
.0

%

5
3

0
8

1
L
o

n
g

 T
e
rm

 d
is

a
b

lil
ty

1
,4

8
1

7
4

5
1
,2

9
7

(1
8

4
)

-1
2

.4
%

5
4

0
0

0
W

o
rk

e
rs

 c
o

m
p
e

n
s
a

ti
o
n

 i
n
s
u

ra
n

c
e

7
0

,9
6
1

7
5

,4
6
8

9
5

,5
1
7

2
4

,5
5
6

3
4

.6
%

C
A

P
 C

h
a

rg
e

 f
ro

m
 R

is
k
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t

5
5

0
0

0
A

u
to

 a
llo

w
a
n

c
e

1
6

,8
0
0

9
,7

1
8

1
2

,0
0
0

(4
,8

0
0
)

-2
8

.6
%

5
5

0
8

0
P

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a

l 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t
6
,7

0
0

2
,4

0
0

6
,1

0
0

(6
0

0
)

-9
.0

%

5
5

1
3

0
D

e
fe

rr
e
d

 c
o

m
p
 m

g
m

t/
c
o

n
fi
d
e

n
ti
a
l

1
1

,6
9
5

8
,6

9
1

1
2

,7
0
4

1
,0

0
9

8
.6

%

5
5

1
4

0
C

a
fe

te
ri

a
 p

ln
 h

lt
h
 b

e
n
 c

a
s
h

o
u

t
4
,0

8
0

3
,6

6
1

0
(4

,0
8

0
)

-1
0

0
.0

%

S
a
la

ri
e

s
 &

 E
m

p
lo

y
e
e

 B
e
n

e
fi

ts
7
,6

8
9
,7

8
2

$
  

  
 

7
,3

3
7
,3

5
8

$
  

  
 

8
,7

1
2
,2

6
4

$
  

  
 

1
,0

2
2
,4

8
2

$
  

  
 

1
3

.3
%

*F
Y

2
3

 h
a
d

 a
n
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 d

e
p
a

rt
m

e
n

t 
v
a
c
a

n
c
y
 r

a
te

 o
f 

2
3
.6

%

**
F

Y
2
4

 h
a
s
 a

n
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 d

e
p
a

rt
m

e
n

t 
v
a
c
a

n
c
y
 r

a
te

 o
f 

2
6
.8

%
 a

s
 o

f 
A

p
ri

l 
2
0

2
4

**
*F

Y
2
4

 B
u
d

g
e

t 
in

c
lu

d
e
s
 a

 1
5

%
 D

is
p
a

tc
h

e
r 

v
a
c
a

n
c
y
 r

a
te

 o
f 

$
7
5

4
,6

6
2
 a

n
d
 F

Y
2
5

 h
a
s
 a

 1
0

%
 v

a
c
a

n
c
y
 r

a
te

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d

S
ch

e
d
u
le

 2



 
S

c
h

e
d

u
le

 3

S
ta

n
is

la
u

s
 R

e
g

io
n

a
l 
9
1
1

F
is

c
a
l 
Y

e
a
r 

2
0
2
5
 F

in
a
l 
B

u
d

g
e
t 

A
ll
o

c
a
ti

o
n

 D
e
ta

il

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d

 S
u

p
p

li
e
s

A
c
c
o

u
n

t
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

F
Y

 2
0
2
4
 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

(A
)

F
Y

 2
0
2
4
 Y

E
 

P
ro

je
c
ti

o
n

 (
E

)

F
Y

 2
0
2
5
 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

(F
)

(F
) 

- 
(A

) 

$
 C

h
a
n

g
e

%
 C

h
a
n

g
e

N
o

te
s

6
0
2
0
0

D
ry

 g
o
o
d
s
 a

n
d
 c

lo
th

in
g

-
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

5
4

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

-
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

6
0
4
0
0

C
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s

2
0
3
,0

6
0

  
  
  
  
  
 

1
9
5
,8

3
5

  
  
  
  
  
 

2
0
9
,1

5
1

  
  
  
  
  
 

6
,0

9
1

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

3
.0

%
A

n
n
u
a
l 
a
c
ti
v
it
y.

 A
T

&
T

, 
F

ro
n
ti
e
r 

C
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
, 
V

e
ri
z
o
n
 W

ir
e
le

s
s

6
0
8
0
0

C
le

a
n
in

g
 &

 S
a
n
it
a
ry

 S
u
p
p
lie

s
8
,7

4
4

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
1
,9

2
6

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

9
,0

0
7

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

2
6
3

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

3
.0

%
J
a
n
it
o
ri
a
l 
S

u
p
p
lie

s
. 
 

6
0
8
5
0

J
a
n
it
o
ri
a
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

1
6
,0

9
8

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
6
,3

0
4

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
6
,3

0
4

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

C
h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 A

c
c
o
u
n
t 
- 

m
o
v
e
d
 f
ro

m
 6

0
8
6
0

6
0
8
6
0

C
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
J
a
n
it
o
ri
a
l

1
5
,5

2
8

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

(1
5
,5

2
8
)

  
  
  
  
  
  

-1
0
0
.0

%
C

h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 A

c
c
o
u
n
t 
- 

m
o
v
e
d
 t
o
 6

0
8
5
0

6
1
0
0
0

In
s
u
ra

n
c
e

3
5
,1

8
2

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

3
2
,8

4
9

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

7
6
,3

7
6

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

4
1
,1

9
4

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
1
7
.1

%
C

A
P

 C
h
a
rg

e
 f
ro

m
 R

is
k
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

6
1
0
3
0

L
ia

b
ili

ty
 i
n
s
u
ra

n
c
e

8
4
9

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

6
7
5

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

2
2
9

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

(6
2
0
)

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

-7
3
.0

%
C

A
P

 C
h
a
rg

e
 f
ro

m
 R

is
k
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t;
 m

o
v
e
d
 o

u
t 
C

&
F

 i
n
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 t
o
 a

c
c
t 
6
1
0
7
0

6
1
0
7
0

C
ri
m

e
 a

n
d
 F

id
e
lit

y 
In

s
u
ra

n
c
e

7
7
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

5
2
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

5
2
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

P
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 i
n
 6

1
0
3
0

6
1
0
9
3

L
o
s
s
 E

x
p
e
n
s
e
  

5
0
,9

7
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

4
6
,3

7
6

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
7
8
,2

2
0

  
  
  
  
  
 

1
2
7
,2

5
0

  
  
  
  
  
 

2
4
9
.7

%
C

A
P

 C
h
a
rg

e
 f
ro

m
 R

is
k
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
(i
n
c
l 
6
1
1
1
0
+

6
1
1
2
0
+

6
1
0
9
3
)

6
1
1
2
0

A
u
to

 L
ia

b
 s

e
lf
 i
n
s
u
ra

n
c
e

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

7
,1

7
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

7
,1

7
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

N
e
w

 a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
- 

p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 i
n
 6

1
0
9
3

6
1
6
0
0

M
a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
-e

q
u
ip

m
e
n
t

7
4
,1

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

9
7
,9

2
7

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

7
7
,3

6
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

3
,2

6
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

4
.4

%
R

a
d
io

 c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 I
T

 s
u
p
p
lie

s
.

6
1
8
0
0

M
a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
-S

tr
u
c
tu

re
s

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
3
,3

2
8

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

O
ff
ic

e
 B

u
ild

in
g
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

6
2
2
0
0

M
e
m

b
e
rs

h
ip

s
2
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
0
,1

8
5

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

2
,0

6
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

6
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

3
.0

%
N

E
N

A
\A

P
C

O
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

h
ip

s

6
2
2
1
0

A
n
n
u
a
l 
L
ic

e
n
s
e
 f
o
r 

s
o
ft
w

a
re

 
8
1
,9

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

8
6
,6

9
7

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

8
4
,3

5
7

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

2
,4

5
7

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

3
.0

%
S

o
ft
w

a
re

 m
a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n
ts

6
2
4
0
0

M
is

c
. 
E

x
p
e
n
s
e

1
0
,4

5
5

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

(1
3
,5

1
0
)

  
  
  
  
  
  

1
4
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

(1
0
,3

1
5
)

  
  
  
  
  
  

-9
8
.7

%
A

-8
7
 R

o
ll 

F
o
rw

a
rd

 (
C

o
s
t 
P

la
n
) 

F
ro

m
 A

u
d
it
o
r-

C
o
n
tr

o
lle

r 

6
2
6
0
0

O
ff
ic

e
 s

u
p
p
lie

s
2
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
3
,6

4
3

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

2
0
,6

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

6
0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

3
.0

%
S

ta
p
le

s
 &

 B
la

is
d
e
ll 

O
ff
ic

e
 S

u
p
p
lie

s

6
2
7
3
0

P
o
s
ta

g
e

1
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

8
0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
,2

2
7

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

2
2
7

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

2
2
.7

%
C

A
P

 C
h
a
rg

e
 f
ro

m
 G

S
A

. 
 M

a
ili

n
g
 o

f 
ra

d
io

 e
q
u
ip

m
e
n
t 
to

 v
e
n
d
o
r

6
2
7
9
0

S
u
b
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
s

2
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

5
,6

7
2

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

2
,0

6
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

6
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

3
.0

%
P

e
n
a
l 
C

o
d
e
 U

p
d
a
te

s
. 
 P

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a
l 
M

e
m

b
e
rs

h
ip

s

6
2
9
9
0

O
ff
ic

e
 E

q
u
ip

m
e
n
t 
- 

N
o
n
 A

s
s
e
t

1
5
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

3
,8

7
4

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
5
,4

5
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

4
5
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

3
.0

%
D

is
p
a
tc

h
 c

h
a
ir
s
 t
o
 b

e
 r

e
p
la

c
e
d
. 
 I
T

 E
q
u
ip

m
e
n
t

6
3
0
0
0

P
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
l 
&

 s
p
e
c
ia

l 
s
e
rv

ic
 (

N
o
n
-C

A
P

)
3
9
9
,1

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
 

4
2
4
,7

7
5

  
  
  
  
  
 

4
1
4
,3

6
9

  
  
  
  
  
 

1
5
,2

6
9

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

3
.8

%
P

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a
l 
C

o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
ts

, 
C

o
n
tr

a
c
ts

6
3
0
0
0

P
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
l 
&

 s
p
e
c
ia

l 
s
e
rv

ic
 (

C
A

P
)

2
8
3
,0

4
0

  
  
  
  
  
 

3
0
8
,7

0
4

  
  
  
  
  
 

3
5
4
,2

0
5

  
  
  
  
  
 

7
1
,1

6
5

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

2
5
.1

%
C

A
P

 C
h
a
rg

e
s
 f
ro

m
 C

o
u
n
ty

6
3
0
9
0

A
u
d
it
in

g
 &

 a
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g

3
7
,5

3
2

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

4
1
,9

5
2

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

6
1
,6

6
5

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

2
4
,1

3
3

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

6
4
.3

%
C

A
P

 C
h
a
rg

e
s
 a

n
d
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
A

u
d
it
. 
  

6
3
2
2
0

F
in

g
e
rp

ri
n
t 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
in

g
1
,5

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
,6

2
9

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
,5

4
5

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

4
5

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

3
.0

%
L
iv

e
 S

c
a
n
 f
o
r 

B
a
c
k
g
ro

u
n
d
 S

c
re

e
n
in

g
s

6
5
1
0
0

R
e
n
ts

 &
 l
e
a
s
e
s
-e

q
u
ip

m
e
n
t

6
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

4
,6

1
7

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

6
,1

8
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
8
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

3
.0

%
M

o
-C

a
l 
C

o
p
ie

rs
. 
 A

d
m

in
 a

n
d
 O

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 (

in
c
l 
6
6
0
7
0
)

6
5
3
0
0

R
e
n
t 
L
a
n
d
, 
S

tr
u
c
tu

re
s
 &

 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

5
5
,1

7
6

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

5
6
,3

1
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

5
6
,8

3
2

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
,6

5
6

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

3
.0

%
P

e
r 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
ts

. 
 R

a
d
io

 T
ra

n
s
m

is
s
io

n
 s

it
e
 r

e
n
ta

ls
. 
 M

t 
O

s
o
 a

n
d
 F

o
w

le
r 

P
e
a
k

6
5
6
6
0

S
p
e
c
ia

l 
D

e
p
t 
E

x
p
e
n
s
e

7
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
0
,2

9
3

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

3
,1

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

(3
,9

0
0
)

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-5
5
.7

%
C

A
P

 C
h
a
rg

e
 f
ro

m
 G

S
A

. 
C

e
n
tr

a
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
.

6
5
7
8
0

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 &

 t
ra

in
in

g
1
5
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
0
,2

3
6

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
5
,4

5
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

4
5
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

3
.0

%
C

o
n
fe

re
n
c
e
s
 a

n
d
 S

e
m

in
a
rs

 (
in

c
l 
6
6
1
8
0
)

6
6
0
7
0

B
o
tt
le

d
 W

a
te

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e

1
,4

6
3

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
,2

2
8

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
,2

2
8

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

N
e
w

 A
c
c
o
u
n
t 
- 

p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 i
n
 6

5
1
0
0

6
6
1
8
0

C
o
n
fe

re
n
c
e
s
 &

 s
e
m

in
a
rs

1
6
1

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

2
5
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

2
5
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

N
e
w

 A
c
c
o
u
n
t 
- 

p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 i
n
 6

7
0
4
0
 &

 6
5
7
8
0

6
6
2
1
0

L
ic

e
n
s
e
s
 &

 f
e
e
s

1
,2

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

3
4
1

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
,2

3
6

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

3
6

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

3
.0

%
D

E
R

 G
e
n
e
ra

to
r 

P
e
rm

it
. 
W

e
b
 N

e
tw

o
rk

 S
o
lu

ti
o
n
s
.

6
6
2
6
0

G
a
s
o
lin

e
,o

il 
&

 f
u
e
l-
v
e
h
ic

le
1
,3

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

2
,7

7
6

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

5
,3

2
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

4
,0

2
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

3
0
9
.2

%
C

A
P

 C
h
a
rg

e
s
 f
ro

m
 F

le
e
t 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
. 
Im

p
a
la

, 
F

-1
5
0
 T

ru
c
k

6
7
0
4
0

O
th

e
r 

tr
a
v
e
l 
e
x
p
e
n
s
e
s

1
5
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
6
,8

0
2

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

9
,2

5
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

(5
,7

5
0
)

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-3
8
.3

%
C

o
n
fe

re
n
c
e
s
 a

n
d
 S

e
m

in
a
rs

 -
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 e

x
p
e
n
s
e
s
 i
n
c
ls

 6
7
0
4
2
, 
6
7
0
5
1
, 
6
7
0
5
6
, 
6
7
0
5
9
, 
6
7
0
6
5
,6

7
0
6
8

6
7
0
4
2

C
a
r 

re
n
ta

l
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
,5

1
4

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
,4

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
,4

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

N
e
w

 A
c
c
o
u
n
t 
- 

p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 i
n
 6

7
0
4
0
 &

 6
5
7
8
0

6
7
0
5
1

A
ir
 F

a
re

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

3
3

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

N
e
w

 A
c
c
o
u
n
t 
- 

p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 i
n
 6

7
0
4
0
 &

 6
5
7
8
0

6
7
0
5
4

M
e
a
ls

 -
 L

u
n
c
h

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

(1
6
)

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

N
e
w

 A
c
c
o
u
n
t 
- 

p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 i
n
 6

7
0
4
0
 &

 6
5
7
8
0

6
7
0
5
5

M
e
a
ls

 -
 D

in
n
e
r

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

(1
1
)

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

N
e
w

 A
c
c
o
u
n
t 
- 

p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 i
n
 6

7
0
4
0
 &

 6
5
7
8
0

6
7
0
5
6

P
e
r 

D
ie

m
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

4
,4

8
3

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

3
,2

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

3
,2

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

N
e
w

 A
c
c
o
u
n
t 
- 

p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 i
n
 6

7
0
4
0
 &

 6
5
7
8
0

6
7
0
5
8

L
o
d
g
in

g
9
2
2

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

N
e
w

 A
c
c
o
u
n
t 
- 

p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 i
n
 6

7
0
4
0
 &

 6
5
7
8
0

6
7
0
5
9

P
a
rk

in
g

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

5
1
1

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

3
5
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

3
5
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

N
e
w

 A
c
c
o
u
n
t 
- 

p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 i
n
 6

7
0
4
0
 &

 6
5
7
8
0

6
7
0
6
5

T
a
x
i,
 P

u
b
lic

 T
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

a
ti
o
n

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
8
7

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

2
5
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

2
5
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

N
e
w

 A
c
c
o
u
n
t 
- 

p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 i
n
 6

7
0
4
0
 &

 6
5
7
8
0

6
7
0
6
8

M
ile

a
g
e

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
,4

9
7

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
,2

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
,2

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

N
e
w

 A
c
c
o
u
n
t 
- 

p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 i
n
 6

7
0
4
0
 &

 6
5
7
8
0

6
7
2
0
0

U
ti
lit

ie
s
 (

N
o
n
-C

A
P

)
5
4
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

6
,4

0
5

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

(5
4
,0

0
0
)

  
  
  
  
  
  

-1
0
0
.0

%
P

G
&

E
 B

ill
in

g
s
. 
 

6
7
2
0
0

U
ti
lit

ie
s
 (

C
A

P
)

8
,4

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

5
0
,0

0
8

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

6
8
,8

3
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

6
0
,4

3
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

7
1
9
.4

%
 C

A
P

 C
h
a
rg

e
s
 f
ro

m
 G

S
A

 -
 c

la
s
s
if
ie

d
 i
n
c
o
rr

e
c
tl
y 

in
 C

A
P

 b
u
d
g
e
t 
in

 F
Y

2
4

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 &

 S
u

p
p

li
e
s

1
,4

0
5
,0

3
6

$
  
  
  

1
,4

6
8
,7

9
3

$
  
  
  

1
,7

1
6
,0

9
1

$
  
  
  

3
1
1
,0

5
5

$
  
  
  
  
 

2
2
.1

%

S
ch

e
d
u
le

 3



 
S

c
h
e
d
u
le

 4

S
ta

n
is

la
u

s
 R

e
g

io
n

a
l 

9
1
1

F
is

c
a
l 

Y
e
a
r 

2
0
2
5
 F

in
a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

A
ll

o
c
a
ti

o
n

 D
e
ta

il

C
A

P
 C

h
a
rg

e
s

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
#

L
o

c
a
ti

o
n

 #
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

F
Y

 2
0
2
4
 

S
R

9
1
1
 

B
u

d
g

e
t*

 (
 E

 )

F
Y

 2
0
2
4
 

Is
s
u

e
d

 C
A

P
 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

(F
)

F
Y

 2
0
2
5
 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

(H
)

(H
) 

- 
(F

) 

$
  

C
h

a
n

g
e

%
 C

h
a
n

g
e

(H
) 

- 
(E

) 
 

$
 C

h
a
n

g
e

%
 C

h
a
n

g
e

N
o

te
s

6
3
0
0
0

0
7
4
1
2
7

C
A

P
 C

h
g
s
-A

D
A

 C
h
a
rg

e
s

2
,2

0
0

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
2
,2

4
0

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
2
,4

7
0

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
2
3
0

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
1
0
.2

7
%

2
7
0

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
1
2
.2

7
%

6
3
0
0
0

0
7
4
1
3
3

C
A

P
 C

h
g
s
-O

ra
c
le

 E
R

P
(C

lo
u
d
)

3
,2

0
0

0
0

0
(3

,2
0
0
)

-1
0
0
.0

0
%

6
3
0
0
0

0
7
4
1
3
0

C
A

P
 C

h
g
s
 -

 I
T

C
 C

h
a
rg

e
s

1
1
1
,0

0
0

1
2
1
,5

6
1

1
4
0
,9

6
3

1
9
,4

0
2

1
5
.9

6
%

2
9
,9

6
3

2
6
.9

9
%

6
3
0
0
0

0
7
4
1
7
6

C
A

P
 C

h
g
s
 -

F
le

e
t 

G
P

S
 M

o
n
it
o
ri

n
g

0
0

2
7
0

2
7
0

2
7
0

6
3
0
0
0

0
7
4
3
0
6

C
A

P
 C

h
g
s
-F

a
c
il
it
ie

s
 M

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 L

a
b
o
r

2
3
,0

0
0

5
0
,4

9
0

3
1
,0

6
0

(1
9
,4

3
0
)

-3
8
.4

8
%

8
,0

6
0

3
5
.0

4
%

6
3
0
0
0

0
7
4
3
0
7

C
A

P
 C

h
g
s
-F

a
c
il
it
ie

s
 M

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 S

u
p
p
li
e
s

2
5
,0

0
0

1
1
,5

1
0

1
1
,8

4
0

3
3
0

2
.8

7
%

(1
3
,1

6
0
)

-5
2
.6

4
%

6
3
0
0
0

0
7
4
2
5
0

C
A

P
 C

h
g
s
-C

o
u
n
ty

 C
o
u
n
s
e
l

1
4
,4

4
0

1
0
,2

7
5

2
8
,1

9
6

1
7
,9

2
1

1
7
4
.4

1
%

1
3
,7

5
6

9
5
.2

6
%

6
3
0
0
0

0
7
4
3
0
2

C
A

P
 C

h
g
s
-P

u
rc

h
a
s
in

g
9
,2

0
0

5
,5

7
0

9
,3

6
0

3
,7

9
0

6
8
.0

4
%

1
6
0

1
.7

4
%

6
3
0
0
0

0
7
4
3
0
4

C
A

P
 C

h
g
s
-H

R
 a

n
d
 R

M
5
3
,0

0
0

6
9
,3

7
8

6
9
,7

6
0

3
8
2

0
.5

5
%

1
6
,7

6
0

3
1
.6

2
%

6
3
0
0
0

0
7
4
8
8
0

C
A

P
 C

h
g
s
-C

E
O

 O
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s

4
2
,0

0
0

4
0
,1

5
0

6
0
,2

8
6

2
0
,1

3
6

5
0
.1

5
%

1
8
,2

8
6

4
3
.5

4
%

T
o

ta
l 

- 
A

c
c
o

u
n

t 
6
3
0
0
0
 C

A
P

 C
h

a
rg

e
s

2
8
3
,0

4
0

$
  

  
  

  
3
1
1
,1

7
4

$
  

  
  

  
3
5
4
,2

0
5

$
  

  
  

  
4
3
,0

3
1

$
  

  
  

  
  

1
3
.8

3
%

7
1
,1

6
5

$
  

  
  

  
  

2
5
.1

4
%

6
1
0
0
0

0
7
4
7
0
0

In
s
u
ra

n
c
e

3
5
,1

8
2

$
  

  
  

  
  

3
5
,6

8
3

$
  

  
  

  
  

7
6
,3

7
6

$
  

  
  

  
  

4
0
,6

9
3

$
  

  
  

  
  

1
1
4
.0

4
%

4
1
,1

9
4

$
  

  
  

  
  

1
1
7
.0

9
%

6
1
0
3
0

0
7
5
0
4
0

F
id

u
c
ia

ry
 l
ia

b
il
it
y
 i
n
s
u
ra

n
c
e

8
4
9

2
3
2

2
2
9

(3
)

-1
.2

9
%

(6
2
0
)

-7
3
.0

3
%

6
1
0
7
0

0
7
4
7
0
4

C
ri

m
e
 &

 F
id

e
li
ty

 I
n
s
u
ra

n
c
e

0
5
9
2

5
2
0

(7
2
)

-1
2
.1

6
%

5
2
0

6
1
0
9
3

0
7
4
0
6
0

S
e
lf
 I

n
s
u
re

d
 G

e
n
 L

ia
b
il
it
y

5
0
,9

7
0

4
4
,5

9
0

1
7
8
,2

2
0

1
3
3
,6

3
0

2
9
9
.6

9
%

1
2
7
,2

5
0

2
4
9
.6

6
%

6
1
1
2
0

0
7
4
0
5
0

A
u
to

 l
ia

b
il
it
y
 s

e
lf
 i
n
s
u
ra

n
c
e

0
3
,8

7
0

7
,1

7
0

3
,3

0
0

8
5
.2

7
%

7
,1

7
0

6
1
6
0
0

0
7
4
1
7
2

F
le

e
t 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 M

a
in

t 
&

 R
e
p
a
ir

4
,1

0
0

0
4
,9

0
0

4
,9

0
0

8
0
0

1
9
.5

1
%

6
1
6
0
0

0
7
4
1
7
4

F
le

e
t 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 -

 L
ia

b
il
it
y

0
0

3
6
0

3
6
0

3
6
0

6
2
4
0
0

0
7
4
1
1
0

G
S

A
 M

a
il
ro

o
m

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

0
1
3
0

1
4
0

1
0

7
.6

9
%

1
4
0

6
2
4
0
0

0
7
4
8
8
1

A
-8

7
 C

o
s
t 

P
la

n
 R

o
ll
 F

o
rw

a
rd

1
0
,4

5
5

(1
7
,7

2
9
)

0
1
7
,7

2
9

-1
0
0
.0

0
%

(1
0
,4

5
5
)

-1
0
0
.0

0
%

6
2
7
3
0

0
7
4
1
0
0

P
o
s
ta

g
e

1
0
0

0
3
0
0

3
0
0

2
0
0

2
0
0
.0

0
%

6
3
0
9
0

0
7
4
3
0
1

A
u
d
it
o
r 

C
o
n
tr

o
ll
e
r

3
2
,5

3
2

4
6
,7

1
0

5
6
,5

1
5

9
,8

0
5

2
0
.9

9
%

2
3
,9

8
3

7
3
.7

2
%

6
3
2
2
0

n
/a

F
in

g
e
rp

ri
n
t 

P
ro

c
e
s
s
in

g
 

1
,5

0
0

0
0

0
(1

,5
0
0
)

-1
0
0
.0

0
%

6
5
6
6
0

0
7
4
1
2
0

G
S

A
 M

e
s
s
e
n
g
e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

7
,0

0
0

3
,5

7
0

3
,1

0
0

(4
7
0
)

-1
3
.1

7
%

(3
,9

0
0
)

-5
5
.7

1
%

6
6
2
6
0

0
7
4
1
7
3

F
le

e
t 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 -

 F
u
e
l

1
,3

0
0

0
5
,3

2
0

5
,3

2
0

4
,0

2
0

3
0
9
.2

3
%

6
7
2
0
0

0
7
4
1
2
3

G
S

A
 S

a
lv

a
g
e
 D

is
p
o
s
a
l

2
,5

1
0

3
,0

5
0

5
4
0

2
1
.5

1
%

3
,0

5
0

6
7
2
0
0

0
7
4
2
7
0

U
ti
li
ti
e
s

8
,4

0
0

5
3
,0

8
0

6
5
,7

8
0

1
2
,7

0
0

2
3
.9

3
%

5
7
,3

8
0

6
8
3
.1

0
%

T
o

ta
l 

- 
M

is
c
 C

A
P

 C
h

a
rg

e
s

1
5
2
,3

8
8

$
  

  
  

  
1
7
3
,2

3
8

$
  

  
  

  
4
0
1
,9

8
0

$
  

  
  

  
2
2
8
,7

4
2

$
  

  
  

  
1
3
2
.0

4
%

2
4
9
,5

9
2

$
  

  
  

  
1
6
3
.7

9
%

5
3
0
2
0

U
n
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

In
s
u
ra

n
c
e

8
,1

9
0

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
6
,7

5
0

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
6
,5

0
0

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
(2

5
0
)

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-3
.7

0
%

(1
,6

9
0
)

$
  

  
  

  
  

 
-2

0
.6

3
%

5
4
0
0
0

W
o
rk

e
rs

 C
o
m

p
 I

n
s
u
ra

n
c
e

7
0
,9

6
1

8
3
,0

1
5

9
5
,5

1
7

1
2
,5

0
2

1
5
.0

6
%

2
4
,5

5
6

3
4
.6

0
%

T
o

ta
l 

P
a
y
ro

ll
 C

A
P

 C
h

a
rg

e
s

7
9
,1

5
1

$
  

  
  

  
  

8
9
,7

6
5

$
  

  
  

  
  

1
0
2
,0

1
7

$
  

  
  

  
1
2
,2

5
2

$
  

  
  

  
  

1
3
.6

5
%

2
2
,8

6
6

$
  

  
  

  
  

2
8
.8

9
%

T
o

ta
l 

C
A

P
 C

h
a
rg

e
s
*

5
1
4
,5

7
9

$
  

  
  

  
5
7
4
,1

7
7

$
  

  
  

  
8
5
8
,2

0
2

$
  

  
  

  
2
8
4
,0

2
5

$
  

  
  

  
4
9
.4

7
%

3
4
3
,6

2
3

$
  

  
  

  
6
6
.7

8
%

*F
Y

 2
0
2
4
 b

u
d
g
e
t 

d
id

 n
o
t 

in
c
lu

d
e
 a

ll
 C

A
P

 C
h
a
rg

e
s
 t

h
a
t 

w
e
re

 i
s
s
u
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 C

E
O

's
 O

ff
ic

e
 -

 v
a
ri

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
$
5
9
,5

9
8
 

In
c
re

a
s
e
 i
s
 d

u
e
 t

o
 a

d
d
it
io

n
 o

f 
o
n
e
 S

ta
ff

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 A

n
a
ly

s
t 

a
n
d
 o

n
e
 E

q
u
ip

m
e
n
t 

T
e
c
h
n
ic

ia
n
 

p
o
s
it
io

n
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 c

o
s
t 

in
c
re

a
s
e
s
 i
n
 v

e
h
ic

le
 p

a
rt

s
 a

n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s

In
c
re

a
s
e
 i
s
 d

u
e
 t

o
 l
a
b
o
r 

c
o
s
t 

in
c
re

a
s
e
s
 a

n
d
 c

o
s
t 

in
c
re

a
s
e
s
 f

o
r 

g
o
o
d
s
 a

n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s

In
c
re

a
s
e
 i
s
 d

u
e
 t

o
 s

u
p
p
li
e
r 

p
ri

c
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 b

u
t 

is
 n

o
t 

li
m

it
e
d
 t

o
: 

C
it
y
 o

f 
M

o
d
e
s
to

, 

M
o
d
e
s
to

 I
rr

ig
a
ti
o
n
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

a
n
d
 P

a
c
if
ic

 G
a
s
 &

 E
le

c
tr

ic

A
u

to
 L

ia
b

il
it

y
: 

 A
u
to

 L
ia

b
il
it
y
 c

o
s
ts

 t
o
 a

ll
o
c
a
te

 t
o
 d

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
ts

 i
s
 i
n
c
re

a
s
in

g
 b

y
 7

5
%

 m
o
s
tl
y
 d

u
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 G

L
 b

u
d
g
e
t 

in
c
re

a
s
e
d
 p

a
y
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

a
u
to

 c
la

im
 l
o
s
s
e
s
, 

le
g
a
l 
d
e
fe

n
s
e
, 

e
x
c
e
s
s
 i
n
s
u
ra

n
c
e
, 

a
c
tu

a
ri

a
l 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
, 

a
n
d
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
/g

e
n
e
ra

l 
C

o
u
n
ty

 o
v
e
rh

e
a
d
. 

T
h
e
 s

p
li
t 

to
 G

L
/A

u
to

 i
s
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 7

 y
rs

 o
f 

lo
s
s
 h

is
to

ri
e
s
, 

w
it
h
 a

 

h
ig

h
e
r 

p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 s

p
li
t 

to
 A

u
to

 i
n
 F

Y
2
5
 t

h
a
n
 p

ri
o
r 

y
e
a
r.

  
A

u
to

 p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 i
s
 9

.7
5
%

 i
n
 F

Y
2
5
 v

s
 8

.4
5
%

 i
n
 F

Y
2
4
. 

 A
u
to

 c
o
s
ts

 a
re

 d
is

tr
ib

u
te

d
 o

n
 e

x
p
e
ri

e
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 e

x
p
o
s
u
re

 a
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g
 f

o
r 

7
0
%

 o
f 

th
e
 a

ll
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 e

x
p
o
s
u
re

 3
0
%

 a
s
 f

o
ll
o
w

s
: 

(1
) 

E
x
p
e
ri

e
n
c
e
 i
s
 d

e
ri

v
e
d
 b

y
 c

a
p
tu

ri
n
g
 7

 y
rs

 o
f 

a
c
tu

a
l 
p
a
id

 o
u
t 

lo
s
s
e
s
 b

y
 

d
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t.

  
C

u
m

u
la

ti
v
e
 l
o
s
s
e
s
 f

o
r 

S
R

9
1
1
 f

ro
m

 6
/3

0
/1

6
 t

o
 6

/3
0
/2

2
 t

o
ta

le
d
 $

3
,2

0
4
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
s
e
 r

e
m

a
in

e
d
 t

h
e
 s

a
m

e
 i
n
 F

Y
E

 6
/3

0
/2

3
. 

(2
) 

E
x
p
o
s
u
re

 i
s
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 b

y
 c

a
p
tu

ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 t

o
ta

l 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

h
o
u
rs

 r
e
p
o
rt

e
d
 a

s
 f

u
ll
-t

im
e
 e

q
u
iv

a
le

n
ts

 (
F

T
E

).
 F

T
E

 w
il
l 
b
e
 d

iv
id

e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
ty

’s
 t

o
ta

l 
F

T
E

. 
S

R
9
1
1
 F

T
E

 l
e
v
e
l 
re

m
a
in

e
d
 t

h
e
 

s
a
m

e
 i
n
 2

0
2
2
 a

n
d
 2

0
2
3
. 

C
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
l 

In
s
u

ra
n

c
e
: 

 T
h
e
 m

e
th

o
d
o
lo

g
y
 i
s
  

b
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 R

e
a
l 
&

 P
e
rs

o
n
a
l 
P

ro
p
e
rt

y
 S

c
h
e
d
u
le

 &
 F

ix
e
d
 A

s
s
e
t 

M
o
d
u
le

 d
a
ta

 (
in

 r
e
la

ti
o
n
 t

o
 v

e
h
ic

le
s
) 

to
 a

rr
iv

e
 a

t 
a
 t

o
ta

l 
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 b

y
 d

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 

(p
re

m
iu

m
s
 d

is
tr

ib
u
te

d
/p

ro
ra

te
d
 a

c
c
o
rd

in
g
ly

).
  

S
R

9
1
1
 t

o
ta

l 
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 i
n
 F

Y
2
5
 t

o
 $

2
2
.7

 m
il
li
o
n
 f

ro
m

 $
2
0
.1

 m
il
li
o
n
 i
n
 

F
Y

2
4
. 

 T
h
e
 t

o
ta

l 
c
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
in

s
u
ra

n
c
e
 g

re
w

 b
y
 1

0
4
%

 i
n
 F

Y
2
5
 o

v
e
r 

th
a
t 

w
h
ic

h
 w

a
s
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 F

Y
2
4
 C

A
P

 s
h
e
e
ts

. 
 T

h
e
 C

o
u
n
ty

 W
id

e
 C

o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
p
re

m
iu

m
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

 a
m

o
u
n
t 

in
 t

h
e
 F

Y
2
4
 C

A
P

s
 w

a
s
 $

1
.9

 m
il
li
o
n
. 

 T
h
e
 a

c
tu

a
ls

 f
o
r 

F
Y

2
4
 w

e
re

 $
2
.3

 m
il
li
o
n
 c

lo
s
e
r 

to
 t

h
e
 H

ig
h
 E

s
ti
m

a
te

 w
e
 h

a
d
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 f

o
r 

th
a
t 

y
e
a
r’
s
 

b
u
d
g
e
t 

b
u
t 

d
id

 n
o
t 

b
u
d
g
e
t 

to
. 

 T
h
is

 y
e
a
r 

th
e
 H

ig
h
 E

s
ti
m

a
te

 i
s
 $

3
.9

 m
il
li
o
n
. 

 T
h
is

 i
s
 1

0
4
%

 h
ig

h
e
r 

th
a
n
 w

h
a
t 

w
a
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 F

Y
2
4
 C

A
P

S
 a

n
d
 7

4
%

 h
ig

h
e
r 

th
a
n
 w

h
a
t 

w
e
 a

c
tu

a
ll
y
 p

a
id

 i
n
 F

Y
2
4
.

In
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 C

A
P

 c
h
a
rg

e
s
 d

ir
e
c
tl
y
 r

e
la

te
d
 t

o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
s
 i
n
 s

ta
ff

 l
a
b
o
r 

c
o
s
t

In
c
re

a
s
e
s
 a

re
 d

u
e
 t

o
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
p
o
s
it
io

n
s
 f

o
r 

IT
C

 M
a
n
a
g
e
d
 M

o
d
e
l,
  

n
o
 l
o
n
g
e
r 

u
s
in

g
 f

u
n
d
 

b
a
la

n
c
e
, 

C
o
s
ts

 i
n
c
re

a
s
in

g
 h

ig
h
e
r 

th
a
n
 e

s
c
a
la

to
r 

a
m

o
u
n
ts

 (
in

fl
a
ti
o
n
) 

G
e
n

e
ra

l 
L

ia
b

il
it

y
: 

 T
h
e
 A

u
to

 L
ia

b
il
it
y
 a

n
d
 G

e
n
e
ra

l 
L
ia

b
il
it
y
 c

h
a
rg

e
s
 a

re
 c

o
m

b
in

e
d
 i
n
to

 o
n
e
 b

u
d
g
e
t,

 C
o
u
n
ty

 o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 -

 G
e
n
e
ra

l 
L
ia

b
il
it
y
 S

e
lf
-I

n
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 F

u
n
d
. 

F
o
r 

F
Y

2
5
, 

th
e
 G

e
n
e
ra

l 
L
ia

b
il
it
y
 c

h
a
rg

e
s
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n
t 

9
0
.2

5
%

 o
f 

th
e
 t

o
ta

l 
c
h
a
rg

e
s
 f

o
r 

th
is

 b
u
d
g
e
t 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 A

u
to

 L
ia

b
il
it
y
 c

h
a
rg

e
s
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n
t 

9
.7

5
%

 o
f 

th
e
 t

o
ta

l 

c
h
a
rg

e
s
 f

o
r 

th
is

 b
u
d
g
e
t.

  
 T

h
e
re

 a
re

 s
e
v
e
ra

l 
fa

c
to

rs
 t

h
a
t 

a
c
c
o
u
n
t 

fo
r 

th
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 t

o
 S

R
9
1
1
: 

 G
L
 c

o
s
ts

 t
o
 a

ll
o
c
a
te

 t
o
 d

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
ts

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 b

y
 4

9
%

 f
ro

m
 p

ri
o
r 

y
e
a
r 

d
u
e
 t

o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 p

a
y
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

c
la

im
 l
o
s
s
e
s
, 

le
g
a
l 
d
e
fe

n
s
e
, 

e
x
c
e
s
s
 i
n
s
u
ra

n
c
e
, 

a
c
tu

a
ri

a
l 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
, 

a
n
d
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
/g

e
n
e
ra

l 
C

o
u
n
ty

 o
v
e
rh

e
a
d
. 

T
h
e
 G

L
 

E
x
c
e
s
s
 i
n
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 p

re
m

iu
m

 i
s
 i
n
c
re

a
s
in

g
 i
n
 F

Y
2
5
 b

y
 6

0
%

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 G

L
 E

x
c
e
s
s
 I

n
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 p

re
m

iu
m

 c
h
a
rg

e
d
 t

o
 d

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
ts

 i
n
 F

Y
2
4
, 

a
n
d
 a

 4
8
%

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 a

c
tu

a
l 
p
re

m
iu

m
 p

a
id

. 
  

G
L
 c

o
s
ts

 a
re

 d
is

tr
ib

u
te

d
 o

n
 e

x
p
e
ri

e
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 e

x
p
o
s
u
re

 a
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g
 f

o
r 

7
0
%

 o
f 

th
e
 a

ll
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 e

x
p
o
s
u
re

 3
0
%

 a
s
 f

o
ll
o
w

s
: 

(1
) 

E
x
p
e
ri

e
n
c
e
 i
s
 d

e
ri

v
e
d
 b

y
 c

a
p
tu

ri
n
g
 7

 y
rs

 o
f 

a
c
tu

a
l 
p
a
id

 o
u
t 

lo
s
s
e
s
 b

y
 t

h
e
 d

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t.

  
S

R
9
1
1
 h

a
d
 a

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 l
o
s
s
e
s
 i
n
 F

Y
 2

2
/2

3
. 

C
u
m

u
la

ti
v
e
 f

ro
m

 6
/3

0
/1

7
 t

o
 6

/3
0
/2

3
 t

o
ta

le
d
 $

9
2
.7

k
 v

s
 c

u
m

u
la

ti
v
e
 f

ro
m

 6
/3

0
/1

6
 t

o
 6

/3
0
/2

2
 t

o
ta

le
d
 $

1
,8

4
6
. 

(2
) 

E
x
p
o
s
u
re

 i
s
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 b

y
 c

a
p
tu

ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 t

o
ta

l 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

h
o
u
rs

 r
e
p
o
rt

e
d
 a

s
 

fu
ll
-t

im
e
 e

q
u
iv

a
le

n
ts

 (
F

T
E

).
 F

T
E

 w
il
l 
b
e
 d

iv
id

e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
ty

’s
 t

o
ta

l 
F

T
E

. 
T

h
e
 d

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t’
s
 F

T
E

 l
e
v
e
l 
re

m
a
in

e
d
 t

h
e
 s

a
m

e
 i
n
 2

0
2
2
 a

n
d
 2

0
2
3
. 

T
h
is

 i
s
 a

 d
ir

e
c
t 

c
h
a
rg

e
 f

ro
m

 S
O

 f
o
r 

L
iv

e
s
c
a
n
 -

 n
o
t 

c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 a

 C
A

P
 c

h
a
rg

e

In
c
re

a
s
e
 i
s
 d

u
e
 t

o
 f

u
e
l 
p
ri

c
e
s

S
e
e
 b

e
lo

w
 f

o
r 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 j
u
s
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n

S
e
e
 b

e
lo

w
 f

o
r 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 j
u
s
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n

W
a
s
 c

o
m

b
in

e
d
 w

it
h
 6

1
0
3
0
 -

 c
o
m

b
in

e
d
 d

e
c
re

a
s
e
 i
s
 1

1
.8

%

W
a
s
 c

o
m

b
in

e
d
 w

it
h
 6

1
0
7
0
 -

 c
o
m

b
in

e
d
 d

e
c
re

a
s
e
 i
s
 1

1
.8

%

S
e
e
 b

e
lo

w
 f

o
r 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 j
u
s
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n

S
ch

e
d
u
le

 4



 
S

c
h
e
d
u
le

 5

S
ta

n
is

la
u

s
 R

e
g

io
n

a
l 

9
1

1

F
is

c
a

l 
Y

e
a

r 
2

0
2

5
 F

in
a

l 
B

u
d

g
e

t 
A

ll
o

c
a

ti
o

n
 D

e
ta

il

P
ro

fe
s

s
io

n
a

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s

F
Y

 2
0

2
3

F
Y

 2
0

2
4

F
Y

 2
0

2
4

F
Y

 2
0

2
5

%

A
c

c
o

u
n

t 
#

V
e

n
d

o
r

E
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t/

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

B
u

d
g

e
t

B
u

d
g

e
t

Y
E

 P
ro

je
c

ti
o

n
B

u
d

g
e

t
C

h
a

n
g

e
N

o
te

s

6
3

0
0

0
M

is
s
io

n
 C

ri
ti
c
a

l(
M

C
S

)
U

P
S

 A
n

n
u

a
l 
M

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

-
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

9
,1

0
0

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

9
,1

1
0

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

9
,3

8
3

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

3
.1

1
%

N
o
 l
o

n
g

 t
e

rm
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
- 

3
%

 h
ig

h
e

r 
th

a
n

 a
c
tu

a
l 
F

Y
2

4
 i
n

v
o

ic
e

6
3

0
0

0
D

r.
 J

o
c
e

ly
n

 R
o

la
n

d
P

re
-e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
p

s
y
c
h

 i
n

te
rv

ie
w

s
9

,0
0

0
9

,0
0

0
4

,6
6

4
9

,0
0

0
0

.0
0

%
$

4
7

5
 p

e
r 

a
p

p
li
c
a

n
t

6
3

0
0

0
D

r.
 J

o
c
e

ly
n

 R
o

la
n

d
C

o
u

n
s
e

li
n

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
/D

e
b

ri
e

fi
n

g
1

2
,0

0
0

1
2

,0
0

0
1

2
,0

0
0

1
2

,0
0

0
0

.0
0

%
M

o
n

th
ly

 R
e

ta
in

e
r

6
3

0
0

0
H

o
lt
 o

f 
C

a
li
fo

rn
ia

M
a

in
te

n
a

n
c
e

 g
e

n
e

ra
to

r 
a

t 
M

t.
 O

s
o

5
,0

0
0

5
,0

0
0

1
,0

8
4

5
,0

0
0

0
.0

0
%

A
n

n
u

a
l 
M

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

6
3

0
0

0
C

e
n

tr
a

l 
S

q
u

a
re

C
A

D
 s

o
ft

w
a

re
 m

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

1
8

9
,0

0
0

1
8

9
,0

0
0

2
0

0
,1

6
6

2
0

3
,0

6
5

7
.4

4
%

N
o
 l
o

n
g

 t
e

rm
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
- 

3
%

 h
ig

h
e

r 
th

a
n

 a
c
tu

a
l 
F

Y
2

4
 i
n

v
o

ic
e

6
3

0
0

0
T

a
it
\H

a
rr

is
P

2
5

 S
y
s
te

m
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 A

g
re

e
m

e
n

t
7

4
,0

0
0

7
5

,0
0

0
7

0
,0

5
6

7
5

,0
0

0
0

.0
0

%
8

0
0

 M
H

z
 R

a
d

io
 S

y
s
te

m
 S

u
p

p
o

rt

6
3

0
0

0
C

o
n

ti
n

e
n

ta
l 
L

a
n

d
s
c
a

p
e

G
ro

u
n

d
s
 M

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

5
,0

0
0

5
,0

0
0

1
0

,0
0

0
5

,0
0

0
0

.0
0

%
S

h
a

re
 w

it
h

 O
E

S
 f

o
r 

3
7

0
5

 O
a

k
d

a
le

 R
o

a
d

6
3

0
0

0
A

v
te

c
D

is
p

a
tc

h
 R

a
d

io
 S

y
s
te

m
 M

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

5
0

,0
0

0
5

0
,0

0
0

4
7

,9
9

8
5

0
,9

2
1

1
.8

4
%

3
%

 h
ig

h
e

r 
th

a
n

 a
c
tu

a
l 
F

Y
2

4
 i
n

v
o

ic
e

6
3

0
0

0
S

im
p

s
o

n
B

a
c
k
g

ro
u

n
d

 I
n

v
e

s
ti
g

a
ti
o

n
s

2
0

,0
0

0
2

0
,0

0
0

1
7

,0
0

0
2

0
,0

0
0

0
.0

0
%

D
is

p
a

tc
h

e
r 

A
p

p
li
c
a

n
ts

6
3

0
0

0
R

a
n

k
B

a
c
k
g

ro
u

n
d

 I
n

v
e

s
ti
g

a
ti
o

n
s

2
0

,0
0

0
2

0
,0

0
0

1
4

,4
6

3
2

0
,0

0
0

0
.0

0
%

D
is

p
a

tc
h

e
r 

A
p

p
li
c
a

n
ts

6
3

0
0

0
C

h
a

m
p

io
n

M
a

in
te

n
a

n
c
e

 A
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

- 
A

C
 u

n
it
s

5
,0

0
0

5
,0

0
0

1
0

,5
0

6
5

,0
0

0
0

.0
0

%
In

c
lu

d
e

s
 m

in
o

r 
re

p
a

ir
s

T
o

ta
l 

C
o

n
tr

a
c

ts
3

8
9

,0
0

0
$

  
  

  
  

3
9

9
,1

0
0

$
  

  
  

  
  

3
9

7
,0

4
7

$
  

  
  

  
  

4
1

4
,3

6
9

$
  

  
  

  
  

3
.8

3
%

6
5

1
0

0
M

o
-C

a
l 
S

o
lu

ti
o

n
s

C
o
p

ie
r 

L
e

a
s
e

s
6

,0
0

0
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

6
,0

0
0

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

4
,5

0
0

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

6
,1

8
0

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

3
.0

0
%

A
d

m
/O

p
s
. 

 L
e

a
s
e

 +
 o

v
e

ra
g

e
 c

h
a

rg
e

s

T
o

ta
l 

L
e

a
s

e
s

(e
x

p
e

n
s

e
)

6
,0

0
0

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
6

,0
0

0
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
4

,5
0

0
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
6

,1
8

0
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
3

.0
0

%

6
5

3
0

0
M

t.
 O

s
o

 -
 M

o
e

ll
e

r
L

e
a

s
e

 o
f 

tr
a

n
s
m

is
s
io

n
 s

it
e

 o
n

 M
t.

 O
s
o

1
8

,2
4

7
$

  
  

  
  

  
1

9
,1

5
9

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
1

8
,3

3
4

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
1

9
,7

3
4

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
3

.0
0

%
3

%
 E

s
c
a

la
to

r 
R

a
te

6
5

3
0

0
F

o
w

le
r 

P
e

a
k
-W

e
id

h
o

fe
r

L
e

a
s
e

 o
f 

tr
a

n
s
m

is
s
io

n
 s

it
e

 o
n

 F
o

w
le

r 
P

e
a

k
3

4
,9

6
8

3
6

,0
1

7
3

7
,9

7
6

3
7

,0
9

8
3

.0
0

%
A

c
tu

a
ls

 +
 C

o
u

n
ty

 E
s
c
a

la
to

r 
R

a
te

 o
f 

3
%

T
o

ta
l 

R
e
a

l 
P

ro
p

e
rt

y
 L

e
a

s
e

s
5

3
,2

1
5

$
  

  
  

  
  

5
5

,1
7

6
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

5
6

,3
1

0
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

5
6

,8
3

2
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

3
.0

0
%

6
2

2
1

0
S

ta
n

c
il
\H

ig
h

e
r 

G
ro

u
n

d
M

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

 o
n

 v
o

ic
e

 r
e

c
o

rd
e

r
6

,7
0

0
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

6
,9

0
0

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

5
,0

1
0

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

7
,1

0
7

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

3
.0

0
%

V
o

ic
e

 R
e

c
o

rd
e

r 
s
o

ft
w

a
re

6
2

2
1

0
B

id
d

le
 C

o
n

s
u

lt
in

g
 G

ro
u

p
C

ri
ti
C

a
ll
 t

e
s
ti
n

g
 S

o
ft

w
a

re
1

,4
0

0
1

,4
0

0
5

,6
7

2
1

,4
4

2
3

.0
0

%
A

n
n

u
a

l 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

 -
 C

ri
ti
C

a
ll
 T

e
s
ti
n

g
 s

o
ft

w
a

re

6
2

2
1

0
W

a
v
e

c
re

s
t 

C
o
m

p
u

ti
n

g
P

ro
x
y
 s

o
ft

w
a

re
 -

 i
n

te
rn

e
t 

fi
lt
e

ri
n

g
 &

 r
e

p
o

rt
in

g
9

0
0

9
0

0
9

2
7

3
.0

0
%

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 C
u
rr

e
n

t 
IT

 N
e

tw
o

rk

6
2

2
1

0
E

S
R

I
G

IS
 S

o
ft

w
a

re
 l
ic

e
n

s
e

4
,0

0
0

4
,0

0
0

6
,7

7
5

4
,1

2
0

3
.0

0
%

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 C
u
rr

e
n

t 
IT

 N
e

tw
o

rk
-M

a
p

p
in

g

6
2

2
1

0
F

ro
n

tl
in

e
Q

A
 a

n
d

 Q
I 

C
lo

u
d

 b
a

s
e

d
 s

o
ft

w
a

re
1

,6
0

0
0

0
0

D
is

p
a

tc
h

 Q
A

 a
n

d
 Q

I 
S

o
fw

a
re

 -
 n

o
 l
o

n
g

e
r 

u
s
in

g

6
2

2
1

0
S

N
M

P
 V

e
n

d
o

r
S

N
M

P
 S

o
ft

w
a

re
 (

N
e
w

o
rk

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t)

5
,5

0
0

5
,5

0
0

5
,6

6
5

3
.0

0
%

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 C
u
rr

e
n

t 
R

a
d

io
 N

e
tw

o
rk

6
2

2
1

0
W

V
M

W
a

re
V

M
W

a
re

 M
a

in
te

n
a

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
3

,4
0

0
3

,5
0

0
2

,2
9

1
3

,6
0

5
3

.0
0

%
S

u
p

p
o

rt
 C

u
rr

e
n

t 
IT

 N
e

tw
o

rk

6
2

2
1

0
P

o
w

e
rD

M
S

P
la

n
 I

t 
S

o
ft

w
a

re
3

,0
0

0
3

,0
0

0
3

,1
9

5
3

,0
9

0
3

.0
0

%
P

o
w

e
rF

T
O

 S
u

b
s
c
ri

p
ti
o

n

6
2

2
1

0
P

o
w

e
rD

M
S

P
u

b
li
c
 S

a
fe

ty
 S

o
lu

ti
o

n
s

3
,0

0
0

2
,0

0
0

3
,1

1
5

2
,0

6
0

3
.0

0
%

P
o

w
e

rT
im

e
 S

u
b

s
c
ri

p
ti
o

n

6
2

2
1

0
P

o
w

e
rD

M
S

P
u

b
li
c
 S

a
fe

ty
 S

o
lu

ti
o

n
s

0
1

2
,0

0
0

1
1

,5
3

2
1

2
,3

6
0

3
.0

0
%

P
o

w
e

rL
in

e
 &

 P
o

w
e

rP
o

li
c
y
 P

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a

l 
S

u
b

s
c
ri

p
ti
o

n
s

6
2

2
1

0
T

e
lc

io
n

/B
ig

 G
re

e
n

 I
T

N
im

b
le

 M
a

in
te

n
a

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
5

,5
0

0
5

,5
0

0
3

,5
8

8
5

,6
6

5
3

.0
0

%
S

u
p

p
o

rt
 C

u
rr

e
n

t 
IT

 N
e

tw
o

rk

6
2

2
1

0
B

it
 D

e
fe

n
d

e
r

A
n

n
u

a
l 
L

ic
e

n
s
e

 R
e

n
e

w
a

l 
a

n
d

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

1
,0

0
0

1
,0

0
0

1
,0

3
0

3
.0

0
%

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 C
u
rr

e
n

t 
IT

 N
e

tw
o

rk

6
2

2
1

0
C

y
b
lo

c
k

A
n

n
u

a
l 
L

ic
e

n
s
e

 R
e

n
e

w
a

l 
a

n
d

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

1
,3

0
0

1
,3

0
0

1
,3

3
9

3
.0

0
%

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 C
u
rr

e
n

t 
IT

 N
e

tw
o

rk

6
2

2
1

0
C

is
c
o

/T
e

lc
io

n
/B

ig
 G

re
e

n
 I

T
A

n
n

u
a

l 
L

ic
e

n
s
e

 R
e

n
e

w
a

l 
a

n
d

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

1
0

,2
0

0
1

0
,2

0
0

1
0

,5
0

6
3

.0
0

%
S

u
p

p
o

rt
 C

u
rr

e
n

t 
IT

 N
e

tw
o

rk

6
2

2
1

0
V

e
e

a
m

B
a

c
k
u

p
 s

o
ft

w
a

re
3

,6
0

0
3

,6
0

0
3

,7
0

8
3

.0
0

%
S

u
p

p
o

rt
 C

u
rr

e
n

t 
IT

 N
e

tw
o

rk

6
2

2
1

0
C

is
c
o

/T
e

lc
io

n
/B

ig
 G

re
e

n
 I

T
C

o
h

e
s
it
y
 B

a
c
k
 -

 R
a

n
s
o

m
w

a
re

 S
o

ft
w

a
re

0
1

7
,0

0
0

1
9

,6
6

7
1

7
,5

1
0

3
.0

0
%

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 C
u
rr

e
n

t 
IT

 N
e

tw
o

rk

6
2

2
1

0
S

p
lu

n
k

S
o

ft
w

a
re

 t
o

 a
rc

h
iv

e
, 

m
a

n
a

g
e

, 
a

n
d

 s
to

re
 f

ir
e

w
a

ll
 l
o

g
s

4
,1

0
0

4
,1

0
0

4
,4

6
2

4
,2

2
3

3
.0

0
%

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 C
u
rr

e
n

t 
IT

 N
e

tw
o

rk

T
o

ta
l 

S
o

ft
w

a
re

5
5

,2
0

0
$

  
  

  
  

  
8

1
,9

0
0

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
6

5
,3

0
7

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
8

4
,3

5
7

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
3

.0
0

%

S
ch

e
d
u
le

 5



 
S

c
h
e
d
u
le

 6

S
ta

n
is

la
u

s
 R

e
g

io
n

a
l 
9

1
1

F
is

c
a

l 
Y

e
a

r 
2

0
2

5
 F

in
a

l 
B

u
d

g
e

t 
A

ll
o

c
a

ti
o

n
 D

e
ta

il

O
th

e
r 

E
x

p
e

n
s

e
s

/F
ix

e
d

 A
s

s
e

ts

F
Y

 2
0

2
4

F
Y

 2
0

2
3

F
Y

 2
0

2
4

F
Y

 2
0

2
4

 Y
E

F
Y

 2
0

2
5

A
c

c
o

u
n

t
D

e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

B
u

d
g

e
t

A
c

tu
a

l
Y

T
D

 A
c

tu
a

l
P

ro
je

c
ti

o
n

B
u

d
g

e
t

N
o

te
s

:

7
2

8
0

0
D

e
p

re
c
ia

ti
o

n
 &

 A
m

o
rt

iz
a

ti
o

n
4

0
0

,0
0

0
$

  
  
  
  
 

3
6

7
,4

1
3

$
  
  
  
  
 

2
7

1
,9

5
1

$
  
  
  
  
 

3
2

6
,3

4
1

$
  
  
  
  
 

4
0

0
,0

0
0

O
th

e
r 

C
h

a
rg

e
s

4
0

0
,0

0
0

$
  
  
  
  
 

2
7

1
,9

5
1

$
  
  
  
  
 

3
2

6
,3

4
1

$
  
  
  
  
 

4
0

0
,0

0
0

8
1

0
0

0
E

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t
4

6
2

,5
2

0
$

  
  
  
  
 

-
$

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

2
6

6
,2

3
6

$
  
  
  
  
 

6
8

4
,8

1
8

$
  
  
  
  
 

4
8

3
,4

4
3

S
e

e
 d

e
ta

il 
b

e
lo

w

F
ix

e
d

 A
s

s
e

ts
4

6
2

,5
2

0
$

  
  
  
  
 

-
$

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

2
6

6
,2

3
6

$
  
  
  
  
 

6
8

4
,8

1
8

$
  
  
  
  
 

4
8

3
,4

4
3

A
p

p
ro

v
e

d
 F

ix
e

d
 A

s
s

e
ts

 f
u

n
d

e
d

 w
it

h
 C

o
m

m
it

te
d

 F
u

n
d

 B
a

la
n

c
e

 

a
s
 o

f 
0

6
.1

7
.2

4

P
ro

je
c

t 
#

P
ro

je
c

t 
T

it
le

F
is

c
a

l 
Y

e
a

r 

A
p

p
ro

v
e

d

A
p

p
ro

v
e

d
 

B
u

d
g

e
t

R
e

m
a

in
in

g
 

B
a

la
n

c
e

1
C

A
D

 S
w

it
c
h

e
s
/R

o
u

te
rs

2
0

2
3

 $
  
  
  
  
  
7

5
,3

0
0

 
 $

  
  
  
  
  
7

5
,3

0
0

 

2
R

a
d

io
 R

o
u

te
rs

2
0

2
3

  
  
  
  
  
  
 5

5
,1

7
7

 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 -

  
 

3
B

a
tt
e

ri
e

s
2

0
2

3
  
  
  
  
  
  
 1

4
,4

0
0

 
  
  
  
  
  
  
 1

4
,4

0
0

 

4
M

ic
ro

w
a

v
e

s
2

0
2

3
  
  
  
  
  
 2

7
7

,1
6

7
 

  
  
  
  
  
 2

6
2

,8
3

3
 

5
U

P
S

 –
 O

a
k
d

a
le

 S
it
e

2
0

2
3

  
  
  
  
  
  
 1

9
,2

0
0

 
  
  
  
  
  
  
 1

9
,2

0
0

 

6
E

n
c
ry

p
ti
o

n
 K

e
y
 L

o
a

d
e

r 
2

0
2

3
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 7

,3
2

0
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 7

,3
2

0
 

7
W

ir
e

 R
e

p
la

c
e

m
e

n
t-

M
t.
 O

s
o

2
0

2
3

  
  
  
  
  
  
 1

5
,9

2
4

 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 -

  
 

8
B

a
c
k
u

p
 R

a
d

io
 E

n
c
ry

p
ti
o

n
2

0
2

3
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 1

,8
7

6
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 1

,8
7

6
 

9
F

ir
e

w
a

lls
2

0
2

4
2

0
0

,2
9

6
  
  
  
  
  
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 -

  
 

1
0

U
P

S
-P

a
tt
e

rs
o

n
2

0
2

4
1

8
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
 1

8
,0

0
0

 

1
1

U
P

S
-W

a
te

rf
o

rd
2

0
2

4
1

8
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
 1

8
,0

0
0

 

1
2

B
a

c
k
u

p
 R

a
d

io
s

2
0

2
4

7
6

,1
2

8
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 -

  
 

1
3

B
a

c
k
u

p
 R

a
d

io
 E

n
c
ry

p
ti
o

n
2

0
2

4
1

0
,0

0
4

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
 1

0
,0

0
4

 

1
4

L
E

D
 L

ig
h

ti
n

g
-D

is
p

a
tc

h
2

0
2

4
6

2
,2

9
2

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
 5

6
,5

1
0

 

1
5

P
o

rt
a

b
le

 R
a

d
io

2
0

2
4

1
0

,8
0

0
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 -

  
 

1
6

C
o

h
e

s
it
y
 B

a
c
k
u

p
 R

a
n

s
o

m
w

a
re

2
0

2
4

6
7

,0
0

0
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 -

  
 

T
o

ta
l

4
8

3
,4

4
3

$
  
  
  
  
 

n
o

t 
s
ta

rt
e

d

S
ta

tu
s

n
o

t 
s
ta

rt
e

d

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
-M

t.
O

s
o

 o
n

ly

n
o

t 
s
ta

rt
e

d

p
e

n
d

in
g

 s
h

ip
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
e

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t

p
e

n
d

in
g

 q
u

o
te

s

n
o

t 
s
ta

rt
e

d

c
o

m
p

le
te

d

n
o

t 
s
ta

rt
e

d

c
o

m
p

le
te

d

n
o

t 
s
ta

rt
e

d

c
o

m
p

le
te

d

n
o

t 
s
ta

rt
e

d

p
e

n
d

in
g

 i
n

s
ta

lla
ti
o

n

c
o

m
p

le
te

d

c
o

m
p

le
te

d

S
ch

e
d
u
le

 6



 
S

c
h
e
d
u
le

 7

S
ta

n
is

la
u

s
 R

e
g

io
n

a
l 
9
1
1

F
is

c
a
l 
Y

e
a
r 

2
0
2
5
 F

in
a
l 
B

u
d

g
e
t

7
5
%

 f
o

r 
6
 F

ix
e
d

 P
o

s
ts

 /
 2

5
%

 C
A

D
 I
n

c
id

e
n

ts
 C

o
s
t 

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

T
o
ta

l 
C

o
s
t 
(D

is
p
a
tc

h
, 
C

a
ll
 T

a
k
e
rs

 &
 O

v
e
rh

e
a
d
)

11
,3

11
,7

98
$

   
   

L
e
s
s
 1

0
%

 V
a
c
a
n
c
y
 R

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n

(7
80

,7
10

)
$

   
   

   
 

L
e
s
s
 R

e
v
e
n
u
e
 a

n
d
 A

c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g
 A

d
ju

s
tm

e
n
ts

(4
47

,0
00

)
$

   
   

   
 

L
e
s
s
 O

th
e
r 

F
u
n
d
in

g
 S

o
u
rc

e
s

(4
83

,4
43

)
$

   
   

   
 

F
in

a
l 
A

ll
o

c
a
te

d
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 C

o
s
t 

to
 6

.0
 R

a
d

io
 C

h
a
n

n
e
ls

9
,6

0
0
,6

4
5

$
  
  
  

 

7
5
%

 F
ix

e
d
 P

o
s
t 
- 

C
o
s
t 
D

is
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n

7,
20

0,
48

4
$

   
   

  

2
5
%

 C
A

D
 I
n
c
id

e
n
ts

 -
 C

o
s
t 
D

is
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n

2,
40

0,
16

1
$

   
   

  

M
P

D
 C

h
a

n
n

e
ls

 -
 2

 F
ix

e
d

 P
o

s
ts

 (
3

3
.3

3
%

)
2
,4

0
0
,1

6
1

$
  
  
  

 
F

Y
 2

0
2
5

F
Y

 2
0
2
4

C
h

a
n

g
e

P
o

s
t 

$
%

 P
o

s
t

In
c
id

e
n

ts
%

 I
n

c
id

e
n

ts
In

c
id

e
n

t 
$

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

F
Y

 2
0
2
4

M
O

D
E

S
T

O
 P

.D
.

2
,4

0
0
,1

6
1

$
  
  
  

 
10

0.
00

%
13

3,
46

5
   

   
   

   
   

45
.0

1%
1,

08
0,

36
7

$ 
   

3
,4

8
0
,5

2
8

$
  
  
  
  
  

3,
28

7,
15

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
1
9
3
,3

6
9

$
  
  
  
  
  

C
H

A
N

N
E

L
 T

O
T

A
L

S
2
,4

0
0
,1

6
1

$
  
  
  

 
10

0.
00

%
13

3,
46

5
   

   
   

   
   

45
.0

1%
1,

08
0,

36
7

$ 
   

3
,4

8
0
,5

2
8

$
  
  
  
  
  

3,
28

7,
15

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
19

3,
36

9
$ 

   
   

   
 

S
h

e
ri

ff
 C

h
a
n

n
e
ls

 2
 F

ix
e
d

 P
o

s
ts

 (
3
3
.3

3
%

)*
2
,4

0
0
,1

6
1

$
  
  
  

 
F

Y
 2

0
2
5

F
Y

 2
0
2
4

C
h

a
n

g
e

P
o

s
t 

$
%

 P
o

s
t

In
c
id

e
n

ts
%

 I
n

c
id

e
n

ts
In

c
id

e
n

t 
$

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

F
Y

 2
0
2
4

C
O

U
N

T
Y

 S
H

E
R

IF
F

 (
U

N
IN

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
D

)
1
,4

5
9
,5

1
0

$
  
  
  

 
60

.8
1%

64
,3

40
   

   
   

   
   

  
21

.7
0%

52
0,

81
7

$ 
   

   
1
,9

8
0
,3

2
7

$
  
  
  
  
  

1,
90

8,
49

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
7
1
,8

3
6

$
  
  
  
  
  
  

C
IT

Y
 O

F
 R

IV
E

R
B

A
N

K
2
6
4
,9

9
8

  
  
  
  
  
  

11
.0

4%
11

,6
82

   
   

   
   

   
  

3.
94

%
94

,5
63

   
   

   
   

3
5
9
,5

6
1

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

34
1,

30
1

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1
8
,2

6
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

C
IT

Y
 O

F
 P

A
T

T
E

R
S

O
N

2
6
8
,0

3
8

  
  
  
  
  
  

11
.1

7%
11

,8
16

   
   

   
   

   
  

3.
99

%
95

,6
48

   
   

   
   

3
6
3
,6

8
6

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

36
1,

28
6

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2
,4

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

C
IT

Y
 O

F
 W

A
T

E
R

F
O

R
D

1
0
8
,8

1
7

  
  
  
  
  
  

4.
53

%
4,

79
7

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
1.

62
%

38
,8

31
   

   
   

   
1
4
7
,6

4
7

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

11
6,

48
3

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
3
1
,1

6
4

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

C
IT

Y
 O

F
 H

U
G

H
S

O
N

6
1
,7

6
9

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

2.
57

%
2,

72
3

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

92
%

22
,0

42
   

   
   

   
8
3
,8

1
1

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

69
,7

87
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1
4
,0

2
5

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

P
R

O
B

A
T

IO
N

*
2
3
7
,0

2
9

  
  
  
  
  
  

9.
88

%
10

,4
49

   
   

   
   

   
  

3.
52

%
84

,5
82

   
   

   
   

3
2
1
,6

1
1

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

32
0,

96
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
6
5
1

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

C
H

A
N

N
E

L
 T

O
T

A
L

S
2
,4

0
0
,1

6
1

$
  
  
  

 
1
0
0
.0

0
%

1
0
5
,8

0
7

3
5
.6

8
%

8
5
6
,4

8
2

$
  
  
  

 
3
,2

5
6
,6

4
4

$
  
  
  
  
  

3
,1

1
8
,3

0
8

$
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
1
3
8
,3

3
5

$
  
  
  
  
  

* 
P

ro
b
a
ti
o
n
 u

s
e
s
 S

O
 c

h
a
n
n
e
ls

, 
th

e
re

fo
re

, 
th

e
 S

O
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
s
 t
h
e
 c

o
s
t 
b
e
n
e
fi
t.

F
ir

e
 C

h
a

n
n

e
ls

 -
 2

 F
ix

e
d

 P
o

s
ts

 (
3

3
.3

3
%

 o
f 

c
o

s
t)

2
,4

0
0
,1

6
1

$
  
  
  

 
F

Y
 2

0
2
5

F
Y

 2
0
2
4

C
h

a
n

g
e

C
o

u
n

ty
A

g
e
n

c
y

P
o

s
t 

$
%

 P
o

s
t

In
c
id

e
n

ts
%

 I
n

c
id

e
n

ts
In

c
id

e
n

t 
$

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

F
Y

 2
0
2
4

S
u

b
s
id

y
A

ll
o

c
a
ti

o
n

M
O

D
E

S
T

O
 F

IR
E

**
1,

36
0,

14
4

$
   

   
  

56
.6

7%
3
2
,4

3
5

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
0
.9

4
%

2
6
2
,5

5
4

$
  
  
  

 
1
,6

2
2
,6

9
8

$
  
  
  
  
  

1,
54

0,
57

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
8
2
,1

2
8

$
  
  
  
  
  
  

7
6
,4

3
7

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
1
,5

4
6
,2

6
1

$
  
  
  
  
  

 

C
E

R
E

S
 F

IR
E

**
22

7,
66

2
   

   
   

   
 

9.
49

%
5
,4

2
9

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
.8

3
%

4
3
,9

4
6

  
  
  
  
  
 

2
7
1
,6

0
9

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

27
7,

39
3

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
(5

,7
8

4
)

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
1
9
,5

7
3

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
5
2
,0

3
6

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

S
T

A
N

IS
L
A

U
S

 C
O

N
S

O
L
ID

A
T

E
D

**
23

0,
84

9
   

   
   

   
 

9.
62

%
5
,5

0
5

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
.8

6
%

4
4
,5

6
2

  
  
  
  
  
 

2
7
5
,4

1
1

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

26
4,

16
8

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1
1
,2

4
3

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

7
9
,4

2
6

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
1
9
5
,9

8
5

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

O
A

K
D

A
L
E

 F
IR

E
99

,1
75

   
   

   
   

   
4.

13
%

2
,3

6
5

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

0
.8

0
%

1
9
,1

4
4

  
  
  
  
  
 

1
1
8
,3

1
9

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

10
9,

55
3

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
8
,7

6
6

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  

1
1
8
,3

1
9

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

P
A

T
T

E
R

S
O

N
 F

IR
E

84
,9

17
   

   
   

   
   

3.
54

%
2
,0

2
5

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

0
.6

8
%

1
6
,3

9
2

  
  
  
  
  
 

1
0
1
,3

0
9

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

95
,4

62
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

5
,8

4
7

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  

1
0
1
,3

0
9

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

B
U

R
B

A
N

K
-P

A
R

A
D

IS
E

 F
IR

E
**

47
,1

76
   

   
   

   
   

1.
97

%
1
,1

2
5

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

0
.3

8
%

9
,1

0
7

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

5
6
,2

8
3

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

65
,3

57
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

(9
,0

7
4
)

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

5
6
,2

8
3

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
-

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  

S
A

L
ID

A
 F

IR
E

**
52

,9
21

   
   

   
   

   
2.

20
%

1
,2

6
2

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

0
.4

3
%

1
0
,2

1
6

  
  
  
  
  
 

6
3
,1

3
7

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

89
,3

54
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

(2
6

,2
1
8

)
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

6
3
,1

3
7

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
-

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  

O
A

K
D

A
L
E

 R
U

R
A

L
 F

IR
E

**
45

,9
18

   
   

   
   

   
1.

91
%

1
,0

9
5

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

0
.3

7
%

8
,8

6
4

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

5
4
,7

8
2

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

57
,0

37
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

(2
,2

5
5
)

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

5
4
,7

8
2

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
-

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  

H
U

G
H

S
O

N
 F

IR
E

**
40

,6
35

   
   

   
   

   
1.

69
%

9
6
9

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

0
.3

3
%

7
,8

4
4

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

4
8
,4

7
8

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

50
,4

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

(1
,9

2
2
)

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
6
,9

8
2

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
3
1
,4

9
7

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  

W
E

S
T

 S
T

A
N

IS
L
A

U
S

 F
IR

E
**

45
,7

51
   

   
   

   
   

1.
91

%
1
,0

9
1

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

0
.3

7
%

8
,8

3
1

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

5
4
,5

8
2

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

53
,2

38
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1
,3

4
4

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

5
4
,5

8
2

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
-

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  

K
E

Y
E

S
 F

IR
E

**
37

,6
15

   
   

   
   

   
1.

57
%

8
9
7

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

0
.3

0
%

7
,2

6
1

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

4
4
,8

7
6

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

42
,3

21
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

2
,5

5
6

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

4
4
,8

7
6

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
-

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  

N
E

W
M

A
N

 F
IR

E
36

,9
86

   
   

   
   

   
1.

54
%

8
8
2

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

0
.3

0
%

7
,1

4
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

4
4
,1

2
6

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

38
,3

29
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

5
,7

9
7

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  

4
4
,1

2
6

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  

T
U

R
L

O
C

K
 R

U
R

A
L

 *
*

20
,2

96
   

   
   

   
   

0.
85

%
4
8
4

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

0
.1

6
%

3
,9

1
8

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

2
4
,2

1
4

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

26
,7

87
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

(2
,5

7
3
)

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

2
4
,2

1
4

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
-

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  

W
O

O
D

L
A

N
D

 F
IR

E
**

24
,4

06
   

   
   

   
   

1.
02

%
5
8
2

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

0
.2

0
%

4
,7

1
1

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

2
9
,1

1
7

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

26
,3

06
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

2
,8

1
1

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

2
9
,1

1
7

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
-

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  

D
E

N
A

IR
 F

IR
E

**
24

,4
06

   
   

   
   

   
1.

02
%

5
8
2

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

0
.2

0
%

4
,7

1
1

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

2
9
,1

1
7

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

26
,3

54
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

2
,7

6
3

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

2
9
,1

1
7

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
-

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  

W
E

S
T

P
O

R
T

 F
IR

E
**

11
,8

26
   

   
   

   
   

0.
49

%
2
8
2

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

0
.1

0
%

2
,2

8
3

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
4
,1

0
8

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

17
,4

57
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

(3
,3

4
9
)

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
4
,1

0
8

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
-

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  

M
T

N
 V

IE
W

 F
IR

E
**

9,
47

7
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

39
%

2
2
6

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

0
.0

8
%

1
,8

2
9

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
1
,3

0
7

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

12
,5

04
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

(1
,1

9
7
)

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
1
,3

0
7

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
-

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  

C
H

A
N

N
E

L
 T

O
T

A
L

S
2,

40
0,

16
1

$
   

   
  

10
0.

00
%

57
,2

36
   

   
   

   
   

  
19

.3
0%

46
3,

31
2

$ 
   

   
2,

86
3,

47
3

$ 
   

   
   

2
,7

9
2
,5

8
9

$
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
7
0
,8

8
4

$
  
  
  
  
  
  

6
7
3
,9

4
0

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

2
,1

8
9
,5

3
3

$
  
  
  
  
  

 

G
ra

n
d

 T
o

ta
ls

7
,2

0
0
,4

8
4

$
  
  
  

 
2
9
6
,5

0
8

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
0
0
.0

0
%

2
,4

0
0
,1

6
1

$
  
  

9
,6

0
0
,6

4
5

$
  
  
  
  
  

9
,1

9
8
,0

5
7

$
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
4
0
2
,5

8
8

$
  
  
  
  
  

6
7
3
,9

4
0

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

2
,1

8
9
,5

3
3

$
  
  
  
  
  

 

**
 R

e
c
e
iv

e
s
 C

o
u
n
ty

 s
u
b
s
id

y

S
ch

e
d
u
le

 7



S
c
h
e
d
u
le

 8

S
ta

n
is

la
u

s
 R

e
g

io
n

a
l 
9

1
1

F
ir

e
 A

g
e

n
c

y
 P

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
s

 a
n

d
 C

o
s

t 
A

ll
o

c
a

ti
o

n
 S

u
b

s
id

ie
s

In
c

o
rp

o
ra

te
d

/U
n

in
c

o
rp

o
ra

te
d

 P
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

s

A
c

tu
a

l 
S

u
b

s
id

ie
s

T
o

ta
l

T
o

ta
l

T
o

ta
l

T
o

ta
l

C
it

y
/A

g
e
n

c
y

C
o

u
n

ty

S
e
rv

ic
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

C
o

u
n

t
C

o
u

n
t

%
C

o
u

n
t

%
$

$
%

$
%

$
$

%
$

%
$

$
$

M
O

D
E

S
T

O
 F

IR
E

2
0
9
,8

5
2

  
  

1
9
9
,9

6
7

  
  

9
5
.3

%
9
,8

8
5

  
  
  
  

4
.7

%
1
,5

4
0
,5

7
0

$
  
  

1
,4

6
8
,0

0
2

$
  
  
  
 

9
5
.3

%
7
2
,5

6
8

$
  
  
  

4
.7

%
1
,6

2
2
,6

9
8

$
  
  

1
,5

4
6
,2

6
1

$
  
  
  
  
  
 

9
5
.3

%
7
6
,4

3
7

$
  
  
  
  
  
 

4
.7

%
8
2
,1

2
8

$
  
  
  
  
  
 

7
8
,2

6
0

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

3
,8

6
9

$
  
  
  
  
  
  

C
E

R
E

S
 F

IR
E

*
5
4
,3

3
5

  
  
  

4
0
,4

1
7

  
  
  

7
4
.4

%
1
3
,9

1
8

  
  
  

2
5
.6

%
2
7
7
,3

9
3

  
  
  
  
 

1
5
6
,3

3
8

  
  
  
  
  
  

5
6
.4

%
1
2
1
,0

5
5

  
  
  

4
3
.6

%
2
7
1
,6

0
9

$
  
  
  
 

1
5
2
,0

3
6

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

5
6
.0

%
1
1
9
,5

7
3

  
  
  
  
  
 

4
4
.0

%
(5

,7
8
4
)

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

(4
,3

0
3
)

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

(1
,4

8
2
)

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

S
T

A
N

IS
L
A

U
S

 C
O

N
S

O
L
ID

A
T

E
D

4
6
,4

4
4

  
  
  

3
3
,0

5
0

  
  
  

7
1
.2

%
1
3
,3

9
4

  
  
  

2
8
.8

%
2
6
4
,1

6
8

  
  
  
  
 

1
8
7
,9

8
4

$
  
  
  
  
  

7
1
.2

%
7
6
,1

8
3

$
  
  
  

2
8
.8

%
2
7
5
,4

1
1

$
  
  
  
 

1
9
5
,9

8
5

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

7
1
.2

%
7
9
,4

2
6

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

2
8
.8

%
1
1
,2

4
3

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

8
,0

0
1

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

3
,2

4
2

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

O
A

K
D

A
L
E

 F
IR

E
*

2
0
,6

7
5

  
  
  

2
0
,6

7
5

  
  
  

1
0
0
.0

%
-

  
  
  
  
  
  

0
.0

%
1
0
9
,5

5
3

  
  
  
  
 

1
0
9
,5

5
3

  
  
  
  
  
  

1
0
0
.0

%
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

0
.0

%
1
1
8
,3

1
9

$
  
  
  
 

1
1
8
,3

1
9

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
0
0
.0

%
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

0
.0

%
8
,7

6
6

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

8
,7

6
6

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

P
A

T
T

E
R

S
O

N
 F

IR
E

2
0
,4

1
3

  
  
  

2
0
,4

1
3

  
  
  

1
0
0
.0

%
-

  
  
  
  
  
  

0
.0

%
9
5
,4

6
2

  
  
  
  
  
 

9
5
,4

6
2

$
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
0
0
.0

%
-

$
  
  
  
  
  
  

0
.0

%
1
0
1
,3

0
9

$
  
  
  
 

1
0
1
,3

0
9

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
0
0
.0

%
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

0
.0

%
5
,8

4
7

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

5
,8

4
7

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

B
U

R
B

A
N

K
-P

A
R

A
D

IS
E

 F
IR

E
8
,3

4
9

  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  

0
.0

%
8
,3

4
9

  
  
  
  

1
0
0
.0

%
6
5
,3

5
7

  
  
  
  
  
 

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

0
.0

%
6
5
,3

5
7

  
  
  
  

1
0
0
.0

%
5
6
,2

8
3

$
  
  
  
  
 

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

0
.0

%
5
6
,2

8
3

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
0
0
.0

%
(9

,0
7
4
)

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

(9
,0

7
4
)

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

S
A

L
ID

A
 F

IR
E

1
9
,1

6
6

  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  

0
.0

%
1
9
,1

6
6

  
  
  

1
0
0
.0

%
8
9
,3

5
4

  
  
  
  
  
 

-
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

0
.0

%
8
9
,3

5
4

$
  
  
  

1
0
0
.0

%
6
3
,1

3
7

$
  
  
  
  
 

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

0
.0

%
6
3
,1

3
7

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
0
0
.0

%
(2

6
,2

1
8
)

  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

(2
6
,2

1
8
)

  
  
  
  
  
 

O
A

K
D

A
L
E

 R
U

R
A

L
 F

IR
E

9
,6

5
2

  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  

0
.0

%
9
,6

5
2

  
  
  
  

1
0
0
.0

%
5
7
,0

3
7

  
  
  
  
  
 

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

0
.0

%
5
7
,0

3
7

  
  
  
  

1
0
0
.0

%
5
4
,7

8
2

$
  
  
  
  
 

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

0
.0

%
5
4
,7

8
2

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
0
0
.0

%
(2

,2
5
5
)

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

(2
,2

5
5
)

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

H
U

G
H

S
O

N
 F

IR
E

1
0
,2

2
0

  
  
  

6
,6

4
0

  
  
  
  

6
5
.0

%
3
,5

8
0

  
  
  
  

3
5
.0

%
5
0
,4

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
 

3
2
,7

4
5

$
  
  
  
  
  
  

6
5
.0

%
1
7
,6

5
5

$
  
  
  

3
5
.0

%
4
8
,4

7
8

$
  
  
  
  
 

3
1
,4

9
7

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

6
5
.0

%
1
6
,9

8
2

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

3
5
.0

%
(1

,9
2
2
)

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

(1
,2

4
9
)

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

(6
7
3
)

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

W
E

S
T

 S
T

A
N

IS
L
A

U
S

 F
IR

E
7
,8

0
3

  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  

0
.0

%
7
,8

0
3

  
  
  
  

1
0
0
.0

%
5
3
,2

3
8

  
  
  
  
  
 

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

0
.0

%
5
3
,2

3
8

  
  
  
  

1
0
0
.0

%
5
4
,5

8
2

$
  
  
  
  
 

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

0
.0

%
5
4
,5

8
2

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
0
0
.0

%
1
,3

4
4

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
,3

4
4

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

K
E

Y
E

S
 F

IR
E

1
0
,9

3
6

  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  

0
.0

%
1
0
,9

3
6

  
  
  

1
0
0
.0

%
4
2
,3

2
1

  
  
  
  
  
 

-
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

0
.0

%
4
2
,3

2
1

$
  
  
  

1
0
0
.0

%
4
4
,8

7
6

$
  
  
  
  
 

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

0
.0

%
4
4
,8

7
6

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
0
0
.0

%
2
,5

5
6

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

2
,5

5
6

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

N
E

W
M

A
N

 F
IR

E
*

1
0
,2

4
4

  
  
  

1
0
,2

4
4

  
  
  

1
0
0
.0

%
-

  
  
  
  
  
  

0
.0

%
3
8
,3

2
9

  
  
  
  
  
 

3
8
,3

2
9

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
0
0
.0

%
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

0
.0

%
4
4
,1

2
6

$
  
  
  
  
 

4
4
,1

2
6

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
0
0
.0

%
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

0
.0

%
5
,7

9
7

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

5
,7

9
7

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

T
U

R
L
O

C
K

 R
U

R
A

L
 

5
,0

3
8

  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  

0
.0

%
5
,0

3
8

  
  
  
  

1
0
0
.0

%
2
6
,7

8
7

  
  
  
  
  
 

-
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

0
.0

%
2
6
,7

8
7

$
  
  
  

1
0
0
.0

%
2
4
,2

1
4

$
  
  
  
  
 

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

0
.0

%
2
4
,2

1
4

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
0
0
.0

%
(2

,5
7
3
)

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

(2
,5

7
3
)

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

W
O

O
D

L
A

N
D

 F
IR

E
4
,6

9
9

  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  

0
.0

%
4
,6

9
9

  
  
  
  

1
0
0
.0

%
2
6
,3

0
6

  
  
  
  
  
 

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

0
.0

%
2
6
,3

0
6

  
  
  
  

1
0
0
.0

%
2
9
,1

1
7

$
  
  
  
  
 

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

0
.0

%
2
9
,1

1
7

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
0
0
.0

%
2
,8

1
1

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

2
,8

1
1

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

D
E

N
A

IR
 F

IR
E

9
,4

2
3

  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  

0
.0

%
9
,4

2
3

  
  
  
  

1
0
0
.0

%
2
6
,3

5
4

  
  
  
  
  
 

-
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

0
.0

%
2
6
,3

5
4

$
  
  
  

1
0
0
.0

%
2
9
,1

1
7

$
  
  
  
  
 

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

0
.0

%
2
9
,1

1
7

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
0
0
.0

%
2
,7

6
3

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

2
,7

6
3

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

W
E

S
T

P
O

R
T

 F
IR

E
2
,7

2
6

  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  

0
.0

%
2
,7

2
6

  
  
  
  

1
0
0
.0

%
1
7
,4

5
7

  
  
  
  
  
 

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

0
.0

%
1
7
,4

5
7

  
  
  
  

1
0
0
.0

%
1
4
,1

0
8

$
  
  
  
  
 

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

0
.0

%
1
4
,1

0
8

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
0
0
.0

%
(3

,3
4
9
)

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

(3
,3

4
9
)

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

M
T

N
 V

IE
W

 F
IR

E
2
,3

9
8

  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  

0
.0

%
2
,3

9
8

  
  
  
  

1
0
0
.0

%
1
2
,5

0
4

  
  
  
  
  
 

-
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

0
.0

%
1
2
,5

0
4

$
  
  
  

1
0
0
.0

%
1
1
,3

0
7

$
  
  
  
  
 

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

0
.0

%
1
1
,3

0
7

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
0
0
.0

%
(1

,1
9
7
)

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

(1
,1

9
7
)

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

T
o

ta
l 
F

ir
e

4
5
2
,3

7
3

  
  
  

3
3
1
,4

0
6

  
  

7
3
.3

%
1
2
0
,9

6
7

  
  
  

2
6
.7

%
2
,7

9
2
,5

8
9

$
  
  

2
,0

8
8
,4

1
4

$
  
  
 

7
4
.8

%
7
0
4
,1

7
5

$
  

2
5
.2

%
2
,8

6
3
,4

7
3

$
  
  

2
,1

8
9
,5

3
3

$
  
  
  
  

7
6
.5

%
6
7
3
,9

4
0

$
  
  
  
 

2
3
.5

%
7
0
,8

8
4

$
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
0
1
,1

1
9

$
  
  
  
  
  
 

(3
0
,2

3
6
)

$
  
  
  

*C
e

re
s
 F

ir
e

, 
O

a
k
d
a

le
 F

ir
e

, 
a

n
d

 N
e

w
m

a
n
 F

ir
e

 w
e

re
 b

e
in

g
 s

u
b
s
id

iz
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n

ty
 u

s
in

g
 a

 p
h
a

s
e
-i

n
 a

p
p

ro
a
c
h

. 
 T

h
e
 s

u
b
s
id

y
 d

is
a

p
p

e
a

rs
 i
n

 F
Y

 2
0
1

6
-2

0
1

7
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 e

x
c
e
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
 $

5
0

,0
0
0

 t
o

 C
e

re
s
 i
n

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 o
f 

W
e

s
tp

o
rt

 F
ir

e
. 

 T
h

is
 

s
u

b
s
id

y
 w

ill
 e

x
p
ir

e
 w

h
e
n

 t
h

e
 a

n
n

e
x
e

d
 a

re
a
 g

e
n

e
ra

te
s
 $

1
0

0
,0

0
0

 o
f 

a
n
n

u
a

l 
p

ro
p
e

rt
y
 a

n
d

 s
a

le
s
 t

a
x
 r

e
v
e

n
u

e
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 C

it
y
 o

f 
C

e
re

s
.

N
o

te
: 

 T
h

is
 i

s
 t

h
e

 F
in

a
l 

A
ll

o
c

a
ti

o
n

 W
o

rk
s

h
e

e
t 

u
s

e
d

 t
o

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 c
o

s
ts

 f
o

r 
F

is
c
a

l 
Y

e
a
r 

2
0
1

9
-2

0
2

0
; 

a
ll

 p
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

 c
o

u
n

ts
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 v
e
ri

fi
e

d
 u

s
in

g
 t

h
e

 f
o

ll
o

w
in

g
 m

e
th

o
d

o
lo

g
y
:

2
0
1

0
 C

e
n
s
u

s
 d

a
ta

 f
o

r 
S

ta
n
is

la
u
s
 C

o
u
n

ty
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 c
it
y
 t

o
ta

ls
 u

s
in

g
 b

lo
c
k
 c

o
u
n

ts
. 

 U
s
in

g
 G

IS
 m

a
p
p

in
g
, 

th
e
s
e

 b
lo

c
k
s
 w

e
re

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 b

y
  

fi
re

 d
is

tr
ic

t 
a

re
a
 w

it
h

 a
d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
e

v
a

lu
a
ti
o

n
 p

e
rf

o
rm

e
d
 o

n
 b

lo
c
k
s
 

th
a
t 

o
v
e

rl
a

p
p

e
d

 m
o

re
 t

h
a
n

 o
n
e

 f
ir

e
 d

is
tr

ic
t.

  
U

s
in

g
 t

h
e
 G

IS
 m

a
s
te

r 
a

d
d

re
s
s
 l
a

y
e

r,
 c

o
u
n

ts
 w

e
re

 a
llo

c
a
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 a

p
p

ro
p
ri

a
te

 d
is

tr
ic

ts
. 

 C
it
y
 c

e
n
s
u

s
 c

o
u
n

ts
 w

e
re

 d
e
d

u
c
te

d
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 t

o
ta

l 
to

 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 t
h

e
 

u
n
in

c
o
rp

o
ra

te
d
 c

o
u
n

t.
  

G
IS

 c
o

u
n

ts
 w

e
re

 u
s
e
d

 t
o

 s
e

p
a

ra
te

 M
o

d
e

s
to

 a
n
d

 C
e

re
s
 i
n

d
u

s
tr

ia
l 
d

is
tr

ic
ts

 f
ro

m
 c

it
y
 c

o
u
n

ts
 t

o
 u

n
in

c
o
rp

o
ra

te
d
 c

o
u
n

ts
.

P
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

F
Y

 2
0

2
4
 F

in
a

l 
B

u
d

g
e

t
F

Y
 2

0
2

5
 F

in
a

l 
B

u
d

g
e

t
N

e
t 

Im
p

a
c
t

In
c
o

rp
o

ra
te

d
U

n
in

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

d
F

u
n

d
e
d

 b
y
 C

it
y
/A

g
e
n

c
y

F
u

n
d

e
d

 b
y
 C

o
u

n
ty

F
u

n
d

e
d

 b
y
 C

it
y
/A

g
e
n

c
y

F
u

n
d

e
d

 b
y
 C

o
u

n
ty

S
ch

e
d
u
le

 8



S
c
h
e

d
u

le
 9

St
an

is
la

u
s 

R
eg

io
n

al
 9

1
1

H
is

to
ri

ca
l I

n
ci

d
e

n
t 

C
o

u
n

ts

A
ge

n
cy

 D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
FY

 2
2

-2
3

FY
 2

1
-2

2
FY

 2
0

-2
1

FY
 1

9
-2

0
FY

 1
8

-1
9

FY
 1

7
-1

8
FY

 1
6

-1
7

M
P

D
 In

ci
d

e
n

t 
C

o
u

n
ts

M
O

D
ES

TO
 P

.D
.

1
3

3
,4

6
5

1
1

6
,3

1
2

1
3

4
,6

0
0

1
4

7
,2

8
2

1
4

3
,2

2
1

1
6

5
,2

4
7

1
5

8
,0

3
9

1
3

3
,4

6
5

1
1

6
,3

1
2

1
3

4
,6

0
0

1
4

7
,2

8
2

1
4

3
,2

2
1

1
6

5
,2

4
7

1
5

8
,0

3
9

Sh
e

ri
ff

/C
o

n
tr

ac
te

d
 A

ge
n

ci
e

s 
In

ci
d

e
n

ts

C
O

U
N

TY
 S

H
ER

IF
F 

(U
N

IN
C

O
R

P
O

R
A

TE
D

)
6

4
,3

4
0

5
9

,0
1

6
6

2
,0

6
6

7
0

,1
3

6
6

7
,1

6
4

7
2

,1
4

6
7

5
,6

1
6

C
IT

Y 
O

F 
R

IV
ER

B
A

N
K

1
1

,6
8

2
1

0
,5

5
4

1
0

,7
6

9
1

2
,2

3
5

1
2

,3
7

1
1

4
,7

9
5

1
4

,4
4

2

C
IT

Y 
O

F 
P

A
TT

ER
SO

N
1

1
,8

1
6

1
1

,1
7

2
1

2
,3

0
5

1
4

,0
9

1
1

3
,6

7
8

1
5

,6
2

5
1

5
,7

2
9

C
IT

Y 
O

F 
W

A
TE

R
FO

R
D

4
,7

9
7

3
,6

0
2

4
,6

6
7

5
,8

0
5

5
,6

0
9

5
,4

6
2

5
,4

5
2

C
IT

Y 
O

F 
H

U
G

H
SO

N
2

,7
2

3
2

,1
5

8
2

,7
5

4
3

,3
8

9
3

,4
3

6
3

,6
6

6
4

,6
2

0

P
R

O
B

A
TI

O
N

1
0

,4
4

9
9

,9
2

5
1

2
,7

6
3

1
2

,3
9

4
1

5
,0

2
0

1
5

,2
8

1
1

6
,9

7
4

1
0

5
,8

0
7

9
6

,4
2

7
1

0
5

,3
2

4
1

1
8

,0
5

0
1

1
7

,2
7

8
1

2
6

,9
7

5
1

3
2

,8
3

3

Fi
re

 D
is

tr
ic

ts
 In

ci
d

e
n

ts

M
O

D
ES

TO
 F

IR
E

3
2

,4
3

5
3

2
,0

3
4

3
0

,5
2

8
3

1
,3

6
7

3
3

,6
1

3
2

9
,6

8
4

2
8

,1
6

3

C
ER

ES
 F

IR
E

5
,4

2
9

5
,7

6
8

5
,5

3
8

5
,3

1
8

5
,4

6
0

5
,5

8
8

5
,4

2
9

ST
A

N
IS

LA
U

S 
C

O
N

SO
LI

D
A

TE
D

5
,5

0
5

5
,4

9
3

5
,2

1
7

4
,9

0
3

5
,4

0
3

5
,0

1
0

4
,7

3
3

O
A

K
D

A
LE

 F
IR

E
2

,3
6

5
2

,2
7

8
2

,1
6

6
1

,8
8

7
2

,0
3

8
1

,9
6

2
1

,8
9

2

P
A

TT
ER

SO
N

 F
IR

E
2

,0
2

5
1

,9
8

5
1

,9
7

7
1

,8
5

3
1

,8
5

9
1

,7
4

4
1

,7
4

2

B
U

R
B

A
N

K
-P

A
R

A
D

IS
E 

FI
R

E
1

,1
2

5
1

,3
5

9
1

,2
7

0
1

,3
5

0
1

,3
8

3
1

,3
5

9
1

,2
8

4

SA
LI

D
A

 F
IR

E
1

,2
6

2
1

,8
5

8
1

,7
8

1
1

,7
4

4
1

,7
8

8
1

,5
7

2
1

,5
2

7

O
A

K
D

A
LE

 R
U

R
A

L 
FI

R
E

1
,0

9
5

1
,1

8
6

1
,0

9
5

9
6

9
9

6
9

1
,0

0
7

9
8

2

H
U

G
H

SO
N

 F
IR

E
9

6
9

1
,0

4
8

8
9

4
9

1
3

9
6

4
8

7
8

8
3

3

W
ES

T 
ST

A
N

IS
LA

U
S 

FI
R

E
1

,0
9

1
1

,1
0

7
1

,1
3

7
1

,1
0

5
1

,0
4

7
1

,1
1

3
1

,0
0

7

K
EY

ES
 F

IR
E

8
9

7
8

8
0

9
4

6
9

0
2

8
3

4
8

7
3

8
2

3

N
EW

M
A

N
 F

IR
E

8
8

2
7

9
7

8
5

7
7

9
5

7
4

7
7

1
6

7
1

4

TU
R

LO
C

K
 R

U
R

A
L 

4
8

4
5

5
7

5
3

6
4

7
5

5
2

0
5

0
6

4
9

3

W
O

O
D

LA
N

D
 F

IR
E

5
8

2
5

4
7

5
2

2
5

0
7

5
9

0
4

8
2

4
6

7

D
EN

A
IR

 F
IR

E
5

8
2

5
4

8
5

5
1

5
3

1
4

9
6

4
3

3
3

7
5

W
ES

TP
O

R
T 

FI
R

E
2

8
2

3
6

3
2

9
4

2
7

6
3

3
7

2
8

2
2

7
1

M
TN

 V
IE

W
 F

IR
E

2
2

6
2

6
0

2
9

6
3

0
7

2
8

7
2

0
1

2
1

6

5
7

,2
3

6
5

8
,0

6
8

5
5

,6
0

5
5

5
,2

0
2

5
8

,3
3

5
5

3
,4

1
0

5
0

,9
5

1

2
9

6
,5

0
8

2
7

0
,8

0
7

2
9

5
,5

2
9

3
2

0
,5

3
4

3
1

8
,8

3
4

3
4

5
,6

3
2

3
4

1
,8

2
3

S
ch

e
d
u
le

 9



 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
3705 Oakdale Road                                                                      Telephone: (209) 552-3900 
Modesto, CA  95357                                                      www.sr911.org                                                                   Fax: (209) 552-3950  
 

 
The professional connection between the community and public safety 

  
       Kasey Young, Interim Executive Director 

________________________________________________________________________ 
 

                                               
          
 

 
AGENDA DATE: June 26, 2024 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
SUBJECT: Authorize the Consolidated Emergency Dispatch Agency 

Commission President and Executive Director to Execute a One (1) 
Year Professional Services Agreement with Jocelyn E. Roland, PH. 
D. for Psychological Screening and Counseling Services in an 
Annual Amount Not to Exceed $21,000  

______________________________________________________________________ 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Jocelyn D. Roland, PH. D. (Dr. Roland) provides psychological screening of candidates 
for local law enforcement and public safety agencies within Stanislaus County, including 
Stanislaus Regional 9-1-1 (SR911).  Additionally, Dr. Roland provides counseling 
services and stress debriefing services to SR911 employees for dispatch-related stress 
incidents.   
 
Dr. Roland has provided a high-level of support and services to SR911 since January 1, 
2015, and staff recommends continuing with the firm.   
 
In order to continue the services needed, it is recommended that the Commission 
approve the agreement with Dr. Roland. 
 
See Attachment A for details of the services that will be performed during Fiscal Year 
2024/2025. 
 
The contract has been reviewed by the Agency’s attorney and is approved to form.   
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
 
The total expense for dispatch applicants is expected not to exceed $9,000.  
Additionally, the monthly counseling services provided for staff is a flat monthly rate of 
$1,000.  Executing an agreement with Dr. Roland, as proposed, would result in an 
annual expense of approximately $21,000.  Funding is available and budgeted in Fiscal 
Year 2024/25. 
 
 
 

CEDAC (JPA) Item 5.5 

Vote Required: Yes No

http://www.sr911.org/


 

Page 2 of 2 

 

______________________________________________________________________ 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Authorize the Consolidated Emergency Dispatch Agency Commission President and 
Executive Director to execute and continue a one (1) year professional services 
agreement with Jocelyn E. Roland, PH. D. for psychological screening and counseling 
services in an annual amount not to exceed $21,000. 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
CONTACT PERSON: Kasey Young, Interim Executive Director 
    Stanislaus Regional 9-1-1, (209) 552-3903 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
ATTACHMENTS:   A-1:   Agreement for Professional Services, Jocelyn D.  

Roland, Ph.D. (11 Pages) 
     

 
  



Prof. Serv. Agmt. (Rev. 2.24.22 gmz) 
Page 1 of 11 pages 

AGREEMENT 
FOR 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
 

This Agreement for Professional Services is made and entered into by and between the 
Consolidated Emergency Dispatch Agency ("JPA") and Jocelyn E Roland, PH.D., ABPP ("Consultant"), 
on July 1, 2024 (the "Agreement"). 
 

Introduction 
 

WHEREAS, the JPA has a need for services involving psychological services; 
 

WHEREAS, the Consultant is specially trained, experienced and competent to perform and has 
agreed to provide such services; and 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises, covenants, terms and conditions 
hereinafter contained, the parties hereby agree as follows: 
 

Terms and Conditions 
 
1. Scope of Work 
 

1.1 The Consultant shall furnish to the JPA upon execution of this Agreement or receipt of the 
JPA's written authorization to proceed, those services and work set forth in Exhibit A, (“Services”) which 
is attached hereto and, by this reference, made a part hereof. 
 

1.2 Any interest, including copyright interests, of Consultant or its contractors or 
subconsultants in studies, reports, memoranda, computational sheets, drawings, plans or any other 
documents, including electronic data, prepared in connection with the Services, shall be the property of 
JPA.  To the extent permitted by law, work product produced under this Agreement shall be deemed 
works for hire and all copyrights in such works shall be the property of the County.  In the event that it is 
ever determined that any works created by Consultant or its subconsultants under this Agreement are not 
works for hire, Consultant hereby assigns to JPA all copyrights to such works.  With the JPA's prior written 
approval, Consultant may retain and use copies of such works for reference and as documentation of 
experience and capabilities. Should the JPA desire to reuse the documents specified above and not use 
the services of the Consultant, then the JPA agrees to require the new consultant to assume any and all 
obligations for the reuse of the documents, and the JPA releases Consultant and its subconsultants from 
all liability associated with the reuse of such documents. 
 

1.3 Services and work provided by the Consultant under this Agreement will be performed in a 
timely manner in accordance with a schedule of work set forth in Exhibit A.  If there is no schedule, the 
hours and times for completion of said services and work are to be set by the Consultant; provided, 
however, that such schedule is subject to review by and concurrence of the JPA. 
 

1.4 The Consultant shall provide services and work under this Agreement consistent with the 
requirements and standards established by applicable federal, state and County laws, ordinances, 
regulations and resolutions.  The Consultant represents and warrants that it will perform its work in 
accordance with generally accepted industry standards and practices for the profession or professions 
that are used in performance of this Agreement and that are in effect at the time of performance of this 
Agreement.  Except for that representation and any representations made or contained in any proposal 
submitted by the Consultant and any reports or opinions prepared or issued as part of the work performed 
by the Consultant under this Agreement, Consultant makes no other warranties, either express or implied, 
as part of this Agreement. 



Prof. Serv. Agmt. (Rev. 2.24.22 gmz) 
Page 2 of 11 pages 

 
 

1.5 If the Consultant deems it appropriate to employ a consultant, expert or investigator in 
connection with the performance of the services under this Agreement, the Consultant will so advise the 
JPA and seek the County’s prior approval of such employment.  Any consultant, expert or investigator 
employed by the Consultant will be the agent of the Consultant not the JPA. 
 
2. Consideration 

 
2.1 The Consultant shall be compensated on either a time and materials basis or a lump sum 

basis, as provided in Exhibit A attached hereto. 
 

2.2 Except as expressly provided in this Agreement, Consultant shall not be entitled to nor 
receive from the JPA any additional consideration, compensation, salary, wages or other type of 
remuneration for services rendered under this Agreement, including, but not limited to, meals, lodging, 
transportation, drawings, renderings or mockups.  Specifically, Consultant shall not be entitled by virtue of 
this Agreement to consideration in the form of overtime, health insurance benefits, retirement benefits, 
disability retirement benefits, sick leave, vacation time, paid holidays or other paid leaves of absence of 
any type or kind whatsoever. 
 

2.3 The Consultant shall provide the JPA with a monthly or a quarterly statement, as services 
warrant, of fees earned and costs incurred for services provided during the billing period, which the JPA 
shall pay in full within 30 days of the date each invoice is approved by the JPA.  The statement will 
generally describe the services performed, the applicable rate or rates, the basis for the calculation of 
fees, and a reasonable itemization of costs. All invoices for services provided shall be forwarded in the 
same manner and to the same person and address that is provided for service of notices herein.  
 

2.4 The JPA will not withhold any Federal or State income taxes or Social Security tax from 
any payments made by the JPA to the Consultant under the terms and conditions of this Agreement.  
Payment of all taxes and other assessments on such sums is the sole responsibility of Consultant.  The 
JPA has no responsibility or liability for payment of Consultant's taxes or assessments. 
 
3. Term 
 

3.1 The term of this Agreement shall be from the date of this Agreement until completion of the 
agreed upon services unless sooner terminated as provided below or unless some other method or time 
of expiration is listed in Exhibit A. 
 

3.2 Should either party default in the performance of this Agreement or materially breach any 
of its provisions, the other party, at that party's option, may terminate this Agreement by giving written 
notification to the other party. 
 

3.3 The JPA may terminate this agreement upon 30 days prior written notice.  Termination of 
this Agreement shall not affect the JPA’s obligation to pay for all fees earned and reasonable costs 
necessarily incurred by the Consultant as provided in Paragraph 2 herein, subject to any applicable 
setoffs. 
 

3.4 This Agreement shall terminate automatically on the occurrence of (a) bankruptcy or 
insolvency of either party, or (b) sale of Consultant's business. 
 
4. Required Licenses, Certificates and Permits and Compliance with Laws 
 

Any licenses, certificates or permits required by the federal, state, county or municipal 



Prof. Serv. Agmt. (Rev. 2.24.22 gmz) 
Page 3 of 11 pages 

governments for Consultant to provide the services and work described in Exhibit A must be procured by 
Consultant and be valid at the time Consultant enters into this Agreement.  Further, during the term of this 
Agreement, Consultant must maintain such licenses, certificates and permits in full force and effect.  
Licenses, certificates and permits may include but are not limited to driver's licenses, professional 
licenses or certificates and business licenses.  Such licenses, certificates and permits will be procured 
and maintained in force by Consultant at no expense to the JPA.   

 
Consultant shall comply will all applicable local state and Federal Laws rules and regulations. 

  
5. Office Space, Supplies, Equipment, Etc. 
 

Unless otherwise provided in this Agreement, Consultant shall provide such office space, supplies, 
equipment, vehicles, reference materials and telephone service as is necessary for Consultant to provide 
the services under this Agreement.  The Consultant--not the JPA--has the sole responsibility for payment 
of the costs and expenses incurred by Consultant in providing and maintaining such items. 
 
6. Insurance 
  

Coverage Required: Consultant shall obtain, and maintain at all times during the term of this 
Agreement, insurance coverage in the amounts and coverage specified in the attached “Exhibit B.” 

 
7. Defense and Indemnification 
 

7.1 To the fullest extent permitted by law, Consultant shall indemnify, hold harmless and 
defend the JPA and its agents, officers and employees from and against all claims, damages, losses, 
judgments, liabilities, expenses and other costs, including litigation costs and attorneys’ fees, arising out 
of, resulting from, or in connection with the performance of this Agreement by the Consultant or 
Consultant's officers, employees, agents, representatives or subcontractors including those resulting in or 
attributable to personal injury, death, or damage or destruction to tangible or intangible property, including 
the loss of use.   
 

7.2 Consultant's obligation to defend, indemnify and hold the JPA and its agents, officers and 
employees harmless under the provisions of this paragraph is not limited to or restricted by any 
requirement in this Agreement for Consultant to procure and maintain a policy of insurance. 
 

7.3 To the fullest extent permitted by law, the JPA shall indemnify, hold harmless and defend 
the Consultant and its officers, employees, agents, representatives or subcontractors from and against all 
claims, damages, losses, judgments, liabilities, expenses and other costs, including litigation costs and 
attorney's fees, arising out of or resulting from the negligence or wrongful acts of the JPA and its officers 
or employees. 
 

7.4 Subject to the limitations in 42 United States Code section 9607 (e), and unless otherwise 
provided in a Scope of Services approved by the parties: 
 

(a) Consultant shall not be responsible for liability caused by the presence or release of 
hazardous substances or contaminants at the site, unless the release results from the negligence of 
Consultant or its subcontractors; 
 

(b) No provision of this Agreement shall be interpreted to permit or obligate Consultant 
to assume the status of “generator,” “owner,” “operator,” “arranger,” or “transporter” under state or federal 
law; and 
 

(c) At no time, shall title to hazardous substances, solid wastes, petroleum 



Prof. Serv. Agmt. (Rev. 2.24.22 gmz) 
Page 4 of 11 pages 

contaminated soils or other regulated substances pass to Consultant. 
 

8. Status of Consultant 
 

8.1 All acts of Consultant and its officers, employees, agents, representatives, subcontractors 
and all others acting on behalf of Consultant relating to the performance of this Agreement, shall be 
performed as independent contractors and not as agents, officers or employees of the JPA.  Consultant, 
by virtue of this Agreement, has no authority to bind or incur any obligation on behalf of the JPA.  Except 
as expressly provided in Exhibit A, Consultant has no authority or responsibility to exercise any rights or 
power vested in the JPA.  No agent, officer or employee of the JPA is to be considered an employee of 
Consultant.  It is understood by both Consultant and the JPA that this Agreement shall not be construed 
or considered under any circumstances to create an employer-employee relationship or a joint venture.   
 

8.2 At all times during the term of this Agreement, the Consultant and its officers, employees, 
agents, representatives or subcontractors are, and shall represent and conduct themselves as, 
independent contractors and not employees of the JPA. 
 

8.3 Consultant shall determine the method, details and means of performing the work and 
services to be provided by Consultant under this Agreement.  Consultant shall be responsible to the JPA 
only for the requirements and results specified in this Agreement and, except as expressly provided in this 
Agreement, shall not be subjected to the JPA's control with respect to the physical action or activities of 
Consultant in fulfillment of this Agreement.  Consultant has control over the manner and means of 
performing the services under this Agreement.  If necessary, Consultant has the responsibility for 
employing other persons or firms to assist Consultant in fulfilling the terms and obligations under this 
Agreement. 
 

8.4 Consultant is permitted to provide services to others during the same period service is 
provided to the JPA under this Agreement; provided, however, such services do not conflict directly or 
indirectly with the performance of the Consultant’s obligations under this Agreement. 
 

8.5 If in the performance of this Agreement any third persons are employed by Consultant, 
such persons shall be entirely and exclusively under the direction, supervision and control of Consultant.  
All terms of employment including hours, wages, working conditions, discipline, hiring and discharging or 
any other term of employment or requirements of law shall be determined by the Consultant. 

 
8.6 It is understood and agreed that as an independent contractor and not an employee of the 

JPA, the Consultant and the Consultant's officers, employees, agents, representatives or subcontractors 
do not have any entitlement as a JPA employee, and, except as expressly provided for in any Scope of 
Services made a part hereof, do not have the right to act on behalf of the JPA in any capacity whatsoever 
as an agent, or to bind the JPA to any obligation whatsoever. 
 

8.7 It is further understood and agreed that Consultant must issue W-2 forms or other forms as 
required by law for income and employment tax purposes for all of Consultant's assigned personnel under 
the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 
 

8.8 As an independent contractor, Consultant hereby indemnifies and holds the JPA harmless 
from any and all claims that may be made against the JPA based upon any contention by any third party 
that an employer-employee relationship exists by reason of this Agreement. 
 
9. Records and Audit 
 

9.1 Consultant shall prepare and maintain all writings, documents and records prepared or 
compiled in connection with the performance of this Agreement for a minimum of four (4) years from the 



Prof. Serv. Agmt. (Rev. 2.24.22 gmz) 
Page 5 of 11 pages 

termination or completion of this Agreement.  This includes any handwriting, typewriting, printing, 
photostatic, photographing and every other means of recording upon any tangible thing, any form of 
communication or representation including letters, words, pictures, sounds or symbols or any combination 
thereof. 
 

9.2 Any authorized representative of the JPA shall have access to any writings as defined 
above for the purposes of making audit, evaluation, examination, excerpts and transcripts during the 
period such records are to be maintained by Consultant.  Further, the JPA has the right at all reasonable 
times to audit, inspect or otherwise evaluate the work performed or being performed under this 
Agreement. 
 
10. Confidentiality 
 

The Consultant shall keep confidential all information obtained or learned during the course of 
furnishing services under this Agreement and to not disclose or reveal such information for any purpose 
not directly connected with the matter for which services are provided. 
 
11. Nondiscrimination 
 

11.1     During the performance of this Agreement, Consultant and its officers, employees, agents, 
representatives or subcontractors shall not unlawfully discriminate in violation of any Federal, State or 
local law, rule or regulation against any employee, applicant for employment or person receiving services 
under this Agreement because of race, religious creed, color, national origin, ancestry, physical or mental 
disability including perception of disability, medical condition, genetic information, pregnancy related 
condition, marital status, gender/sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, gender expression, age (over 
40), political affiliation or belief, or military and veteran status.  Consultant and its officers, employees, 
agents, representatives or subcontractors shall comply with all applicable Federal, State and local laws 
and regulations related to non-discrimination and equal opportunity, including without limitation the JPA’s 
non-discrimination policy; the Fair Employment and Housing Act (Government Code sections 12900 et 
seq.); California Labor Code sections 1101 and 1102; the Federal Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.L. 88-352), 
as amended; and all applicable regulations promulgated in the California Code of Regulations or the Code 
of Federal Regulations. 

 
11.2 Consultant shall include the non-discrimination and compliance provisions of this clause in 

all subcontracts to perform work under this Agreement. 
 
11.3 Consultant shall provide a system by which recipients of service shall have the opportunity 

to express and have considered their views, grievances, and complaints regarding Consultant's delivery 
of services. 
 
12. Assignment 
 

This is an agreement for the services of Consultant.  The JPA has relied upon the skills, 
knowledge, experience and training of Consultant and the Consultant's firm, associates and employees as 
an inducement to enter into this Agreement.  Consultant shall not assign or subcontract this Agreement 
without the express written consent of the JPA.  Further, Consultant shall not assign any monies due or to 
become due under this Agreement without the prior written consent of the JPA. 
 
13. Waiver of Default 
 

Waiver of any default by either party to this Agreement shall not be deemed to be waiver of any 
subsequent default.  Waiver or breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not be deemed to be a 



Prof. Serv. Agmt. (Rev. 2.24.22 gmz) 
Page 6 of 11 pages 

waiver of any other or subsequent breach, and shall not be construed to be a modification of the terms of 
this Agreement unless this Agreement is modified as provided below. 
 
14. Notice 
 

Any notice, communication, amendment, addition or deletion to this Agreement, including change 
of address of either party during the term of this Agreement, which Consultant or the JPA shall be 
required or may desire to make shall be in writing and shall be personally served or, alternatively, sent by 
prepaid first-class mail to the respective parties as follows: 
 
To JPA: To Consultant: 
Kasey Young, Interim Director 
Stanislaus Regional 9-1-1 

Jocelyn E Roland, PH.D. ABPP 
Psychologist 

3705 Oakdale Road 2937 Veneman Ave., Suite B125 
Modesto, CA 95357 Modesto, CA 95356 
 
15. Conflicts 

 
Consultant agrees that it has no interest and shall not acquire any interest direct or indirect which 

would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of the work and services under this 
Agreement. 
 
16. Severability 
 

If any portion of this Agreement or application thereof to any person or circumstance shall be 
declared invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction or if it is found in contravention of any federal, state or 
county statute, ordinance or regulation the remaining provisions of this Agreement or the application 
thereof shall not be invalidated thereby and shall remain in full force and effect to the extent that the 
provisions of this Agreement are severable. 
 
17. Amendment 

 
This Agreement may only be modified, amended, changed, added to or subtracted from by the 

mutual consent of the parties hereto if such amendment or change is in written form and executed with 
the same formalities as this Agreement and attached to the original Agreement to maintain continuity. 
 
18. Entire Agreement 
 

This Agreement supersedes any and all other agreements, either oral or in writing, between any of 
the parties herein with respect to the subject matter hereof and contains all the agreements between the 
parties with respect to such matter.  Each party acknowledges that no representations, inducements, 
promises or agreements, oral or otherwise, have been made by any party, or anyone acting on behalf of 
any party, which are not embodied herein, and that no other agreement, statement or promise not 
contained in this Agreement shall be valid or binding. 
 
19. Advice of Attorney 
 

Each party warrants and represents that in executing this Agreement, it has received independent 
legal advice from its attorneys or the opportunity to seek such advice. 
 
20. Construction 
 

Headings or captions to the provisions of this Agreement are solely for the convenience of the 



Prof. Serv. Agmt. (Rev. 2.24.22 gmz) 
Page 7 of 11 pages 

parties, are not part of this Agreement, and shall not be used to interpret or determine the validity of this 
Agreement.  Any ambiguity in this Agreement shall not be construed against the drafter, but rather the 
terms and provisions hereof shall be given a reasonable interpretation as if both parties had in fact drafted 
this Agreement. 
 
21. Governing Law and Venue 
 

This Agreement shall be deemed to be made under, and shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with, the laws of the State of California.  Any action brought to enforce the terms or provisions 
of this Agreement shall have venue in the County of Stanislaus, State of California. 
 
22.        Electronic Signatures 
 
             Each party agrees that the electronic signatures (whether digital or encrypted) of the parties 
included in this Agreement are intended to authenticate this writing and to have the same force and effect 
as manual signatures. Electronic signature means any electronic sound, symbol, or process attached to or 
logically associated with a record and executed and adopted by a party with the intent to sign such record 
(including facsimile or email electronic signatures) pursuant to the California Uniform Electronic 
Transactions Act (Cal. Civ. Code § 1633.1 et seq.) as amended from time to time. 

 
23.  Certification Regarding Economic Sanctions Pursuant to California State Executive Order N-6-22 
 

23.1 Contractor shall review their investments and contracts to ensure their compliance with 
economic sanctions imposed by the U.S. government in response to Russia's actions in Ukraine, as well 
as any sanctions imposed under state law (collectively, economic sanctions), and to take actions to 
support the Ukrainian government and people, including by refraining from new investments in, and 
financial transactions with, Russian institutions or companies that are headquartered or have their 
principal place of business in Russia (Russian entities), not transferring technology to Russia or Russian 
entities, and by directly providing support to the government and people of Ukraine. 

 
23.2 County shall terminate any contract with any individual or entity that is in violation of 

Executive Order N-6-22 or that is subject to economic sanctions therein, and shall not enter a contract 
with any such individual or entity while the Order is in effect.  
 
 23.3  For contracts valued at $5 million or more, Contractor shall provide a written report to the 
County regarding compliance with economic sanctions and steps taken in response to Russia’s action in 
Ukraine, including but not limited to, desisting from making new investments in, or engaging in financial 
transactions with Russia or Russian entities, and directly providing support to Ukraine, while the Order is 
in effect. 
 

[ signatures appear on following page] 
 



Prof. Serv. Agmt. (Rev. 2.24.22 gmz) 
Page 8 of 11 pages 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties or their duly authorized representatives have executed this 

Agreement on the day and year first hereinabove written. 
 

CONSOLIDATED EMERGENCY DISPATCH 
AGENCY COMMISSION 
 
 
By:______________________________________ 
     President, Consolidated Emergency Dispatch 
     Agency Commission 
 
 "JPA" 
 

JOCELYN E. ROLAND 
 
 
 
By:_____________________________________ 

Jocelyn E. Roland, PH.D, ABPP 
Psychologist 

 
 "Consultant” 

APPROVED AS TO CONTENT: 
 
 
 
By:______________________________________ 

Kasey Young 
SR911 Interim Director 

 

 

  
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
Thomas E. Boze, County Counsel 
 
 
By:______________________________________ 

Lori Sicard 
Deputy County Counsel 

 

 
 



 
Prof. Serv. Agmt. (Rev. 7.22.16 AMD) Exhibit A – Page 9 

EXHIBIT A 
 
A. SCOPE OF WORK 

 
1. Pre-employment Psychological Evaluation. 

The Consultant shall provide pre-employment psychological evaluations of applicants for the 
positions of Lateral Emergency Dispatcher, Emergency Dispatcher Trainee, Emergency 
Call-Taker and part-time/extra help.  The evaluation for all applicants will meet any 
requirements developed by the California Commission of Peace Officer Standards and 
Training (POST) as well as the standards of Government Code Section 1031(f).  This 
service shall include: 

 
a. A formal evaluation to screen out job-relevant psychopathology and assess normal 

personality traits consistent with the (14) psychological screening dimensions offered by 
the California Commission on Peace Officer Standards and Training Public Safety 
Dispatcher Psychological Assessment Resource Document from 1997. 

b. Preparation of a written report to Stanislaus Regional 9-1-1 which includes interview 
data, relevant background information, methods utilized, psychological test results and 
interpretations, and a specific recommendation regarding the applicant’s suitability for 
the position applied for. 
 

2.         Counseling/psychotherapy. 
Consultant shall offer counseling/psychotherapy sessions as follows: 
a. For any full-time, active employee serving in the role of Emergency Dispatcher, 

Emergency Dispatcher Trainee, Emergency Call-Taker, Consultant shall provide 
counseling/debriefing for critical incidents and other job-related events as deemed 
appropriate by the JPA Command Staff (defined as the Operations Manager or higher in 
rank). Employees will be referred by JPA Command Staff to the Consultant, who will 
decide the appropriate number of sessions to address the referral issue. The content of 
the sessions shall remain confidential, unless appropriate consents for the release of 
information are secured at the employee’s request (e.g., to facilitate time-off, for the 
Consultant to discuss relevant job-related matters with the referring supervisor, etc.).   

b. For any active employee, Consultant shall provide on-call services as needed upon the 
request of JPA Command Staff for on-duty Critical Incidents.  Consultant shall be 
available 24-hours per day for these services. 

 
3. Consultation and training. 

a. Consultant may provide consultation to supervisors upon request and as 
Consultant’s schedule permits. Consultation that is outside the referral process for 
an employee needing counseling may be charged for at the agreed upon hourly 
rate. This would primarily be for extended consultation. 

b.  Consultant will provide training presentations as requested on a variety of topics 
(i.e., Peer Support training or program development, stress management, 
understanding physiology under pressure, etc.). The Consultant will bill per hour for 
training preparation/development as well as direct instruction.  

 
4.  Exclusions. 
       a.   The Consultant will not perform Fitness-for-duty Evaluations given the     
                        Consultant’s role as a clinician for the employees of the JPA; however, the 
                        Consultant will assist JPA Command Staff in assessing the need for such a 
                        referral and locating a qualified evaluator to conduct the evaluations when  



 
Prof. Serv. Agmt. (Rev. 7.22.16 AMD) Exhibit A – Page 10 

                        deemed necessary. 
 

5. Schedule and Budget 
 

Consultant shall complete the report on a mutually acceptable schedule. Consultant fee 
schedule is identified in Exhibit C.  Consultant shall only bill for work completed and not in work 
in progress.  

 
B. COMPENSATION 
 

The Consultant shall be compensated for the services provided under this Agreement as 
follows: 
 

1. Consultant will be compensated on a time and materials basis, not to exceed the 
limit of in Paragraph 2 below, based on the hours worked by the Consultant's employees or 
subcontractors at the hourly rates specified in the consultant's Proposal.  The specified hourly rates 
shall include direct salary costs, employee benefits, and overhead.  These rates are not adjustable 
for the performance period set forth in this Agreement.  In addition to the aforementioned fees, 
Consultant will be reimbursed for the following items, plus any expenses agreed by the parties as 
set forth in the Consultant's Proposal attached hereto, that are reasonable, necessary and actually 
incurred by the Consultant in connection with the services.  Travel expenses shall be in accordance 
with the County’s Travel policy, herein incorporated by reference.  No markup shall be paid on 
reimbursed items. 
 

(a) Any filing fees, permit fees, or other fees paid or advanced by the Consultant. 
 

(b) Expenses, fees or charges for printing, reproduction or binding of documents at 
actual costs. 
 

2. The parties hereto acknowledge the maximum amount to be paid by the County for 
services provided shall not exceed $21,000.00, including, without limitation, the cost of any 
subcontractors, consultants, experts or investigators retained by the Consultant to perform or to 
assist in the performance of its work under this Agreement. 
 
C. TERM 
 

Paragraph 3.1 of the body of this Agreement is amended to read as follows: 
 

3.1 The term of this Agreement shall be from July 1, 2023 through June 30, 2024 
unless otherwise terminated as provided below. 

 
D. INVOICE TO: 
 

Invoices shall be submitted to:   
 

  Stanislaus Regional 9-1-1 
                  Attn:  Kasey Young 
                  3705 Oakdale Road 

                        Modesto, CA  95357 
 

  



 
Prof. Serv. Agmt. (Rev. 7.22.16 AMD) Exhibit A – Page 11 

EXHIBIT C 
 

FEE SCHEDULE 
 

 
The Consultant shall be compensated for services under this Agreement as follows: 
 
1. JPA shall pay Consultant $500.00 for each Pre-employment Psychological Evaluation (PPE) 

described in Paragraph 1 of Section A above.  PPE’s that are not cancelled within two (2) 
business days of the scheduled appointment and “no-shows” for appointments will be billed 
at the regular rate.  Consultant shall submit billing statement along with the written report of 
each evaluation. 

 
 
2. JPA shall pay Consultant $250.00 for Pre-Offer Evaluation and $325.00 for Post Offer 

Evaluation. 
 
3. JPA shall pay $1,000.00 per month for other services described in Section A, Subsection 2 

(Counseling/psychotherapy) above, due on the first day of each month, beginning July 1, 
2021. 

 
4. JPA shall pay $450.00 per hour for all other services described in Paragraph 3 of Section A 

above.   
 
 

 
 



 
 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
3705 Oakdale Road                                                                      Telephone: (209) 552-3900 
Modesto, CA  95357                                                      www.sr911.org                                                                  Fax: (209) 552-3950  
 

 
The professional connection between the community and public safety 

 
       Kasey Young, Interim Executive Director 

________________________________________________________________________ 
 

                                               
          
 
 
AGENDA DATE: June 26, 2024 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
SUBJECT: Authorize the Consolidated Emergency Dispatch Agency 

Commission President and Executive Director to Execute a One (1) 
Year Agreement with Simpson Investigation Services Group for 
Background Investigation Services in an Annual Amount Not to 
Exceed $20,000 

______________________________________________________________________ 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Simpson Investigative Services Group provides background investigation of candidates 
for law enforcement and public safety.   
 
In August 2016, Stanislaus Regional 9-1-1(SR911) corresponded with vendors inviting a 
Request for Quote (RFQ) for Background Investigation services.  Simpson Investigative 
Services was one of two agencies that responded.    In January 2017, SR911 entered 
into an Agreement with Simpson Investigative Services to provide Background 
Investigation services.  Staff recommends continuing with the firm for an additional one 
(1) year term. 
 
SR911 continually faces challenges in hiring qualified staff and it is imperative to have 
reputable vendors to examine its applicants. 
 
See Attachment A for details of the services that will be performed.  
 
The contract has been reviewed by the agency’s Attorney and is approved to form.   
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
 
Executing an agreement with Simpson Investigative Services, as proposed, would result 
in an expense of $20,000.  The funding is available and budgeted in Fiscal Year 
2024/25. 
 
 
 
 
 

Vote Required: 

CEDAC (JPA) Item 5.6 

Yes No

http://www.sr911.org/


 
  

Page 2 of 2 

 

______________________________________________________________________ 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Authorize the Consolidated Emergency Dispatch Agency Commission President and 
Executive Director to execute a one (1) year independent contractor agreement with 
Simpson Investigative Services Group for background investigation services in an 
annual amount not to exceed $20,000. 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
CONTACT PERSON: Kasey Young, Interim Executive Director 
    Stanislaus Regional 9-1-1, (209) 552-3903 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
ATTACHMENTS:   A-1:  Agreement for Independent Contractor Services,   

Simpson Investigative Services Group (9 Pages) 



Ind. Con. Agmt. (Rev.2.24.22 gmz) 

Page 1 of 9 
 
 

 

AGREEMENT 
FOR 

INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR SERVICES 
 

This Agreement for Independent Contractor Services (the “Agreement”) is made and entered into 
by and between the Consolidated Emergency Dispatch Agency ("JPA") and Simpson Investigation 
Services Group, ("Contractor") as of July 1, 2024. 
 

Recitals 
 

WHEREAS, the JPA has a need for services involving Background Investigations;  
 

WHEREAS, the Contractor is specially trained, experienced and competent to perform and has 
agreed to provide such services; and 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises, covenants, terms and conditions 
hereinafter contained, the parties hereby agree as follows: 
 

Terms and Conditions 
 
1. Scope of Work 
 

1.1 The Contractor shall furnish to the JPA upon execution of this Agreement or receipt of the 
JPA's written authorization to proceed, those services and work set forth in Exhibit A. 
 

1.2 All documents, drawings and written work product prepared or produced by the Contractor 
under this Agreement, including without limitation electronic data files, are the property of the Contractor; 
provided, however, the JPA shall have the right to reproduce, publish and use all such work, or any part 
thereof, in any manner and for any purposes whatsoever and to authorize others to do so.  If any such 
work is copyrightable, the Contractor may copyright the same, except that, as to any work which is 
copyrighted by the Contractor, the JPA reserves a royalty-free, non-exclusive, and irrevocable license to 
reproduce, publish, and use such work, or any part thereof, and to authorize others to do so. 
 

1.3 Services and work provided by the Contractor at the JPA's request under this Agreement 
will be performed in a timely manner consistent with the requirements and standards established by 
applicable federal, state and County laws, ordinances, regulations and resolutions, and in accordance 
with a schedule of work set forth in Exhibit A.  If there is no schedule, the hours and times for completion 
of said services and work are to be set by the Contractor; provided, however, that such schedule is 
subject to review by and concurrence of the JPA. 
 
2. Consideration 

 
2.1 JPA shall pay Contractor as set forth in Exhibit A. 

 
2.2 Except as expressly provided in Exhibit A of this Agreement, Contractor shall not be 

entitled to nor receive from the JPA any additional consideration, compensation, salary, wages or other 
type of remuneration for services rendered under this Agreement.  Specifically, Contractor shall not be 
entitled by virtue of this Agreement to consideration in the form of overtime, health insurance benefits, 
retirement benefits, disability retirement benefits, sick leave, vacation time, paid holidays or other paid 
leaves of absence of any type or kind whatsoever. 
 



Ind. Con. Agmt. (Rev.2.24.22 gmz) 

Page 2 of 9 
 
 

 

2.3 The JPA will not withhold any Federal or State income taxes or Social Security tax from 
any payments made by County to Contractor under the terms and conditions of this Agreement.  Payment 
of all taxes and other assessments on such sums is the sole responsibility of Contractor.  The JPA has no 
responsibility or liability for payment of Contractor's taxes or assessments. 
 

2.4 Pursuant to Penal Code section 484b and to Business and Professions Code section 
7108.5, the Contractor must apply all funds and progress payments received by the Contractor from the 
JPA for payment of services, labor, materials or equipment to pay for such services, labor, materials or 
equipment.  Pursuant to Civil Code section 1479, the Contractor shall direct or otherwise manifest the 
Contractor’s intention and desire that payments made by the Contractor to subcontractors, suppliers and 
materialmen shall be applied to retire and extinguish the debts or obligations resulting from the 
performance of this Agreement. 
 
3. Term 
 

3.1 The term of this Agreement shall be from the date of approval of this Agreement until 
completion of the agreed upon services unless sooner terminated as provided below or unless some other 
method or time of termination is listed in Exhibit A. 
 

3.2 Should either party default in the performance of this Agreement or materially breach any 
of its provisions, the other party, at that party's option, may terminate this Agreement by giving written 
notification to the other party. 
 

3.3 This Agreement shall terminate automatically on the occurrence of (a) bankruptcy or 
insolvency of either party, (b) sale of Contractor's business, (c) cancellation of insurance required under 
the terms of this Agreement, and (d) if, for any reason, Contractor ceases to be licensed or otherwise 
authorized to do business in the State of California, and the Contractor fails to remedy such defect or 
defects within thirty (30) days of receipt of notice of such defect or defects. 
 

3.4 The JPA may terminate this agreement upon 30 days prior written notice to the Contractor. 
 Termination of this Agreement shall not affect the JPA’s obligation to pay for all fees earned and 
reasonable costs necessarily incurred by the Contractor as provided in Paragraph 2 herein, subject to any 
applicable setoffs. 
 
4. Required Licenses, Certificates and Permits 
 

4.1 Any licenses, certificates or permits required by the federal, state, county or municipal 
governments for Contractor to provide the services and work described in Exhibit A must be procured by 
Contractor and be valid at the time Contractor enters into this Agreement.  Further, during the term of this 
Agreement, Contractor must maintain such licenses, certificates and permits in full force and effect.  
Licenses, certificates and permits may include but are not limited to driver's licenses, professional 
licenses or certificates and business licenses.  Such licenses, certificates and permits will be procured 
and maintained in force by Contractor at no expense to the JPA.   

 
4.2 Contractor further certifies to the JPA that it and its principals are not debarred, suspended, 

or otherwise excluded or ineligible for participation in federal, state or county government contracts.  
Contractor certifies that it shall not contract with a subcontractor that is so debarred or suspended. 
 
5. Office Space, Supplies, Equipment, Etc. 
 

Unless otherwise provided in Exhibit A, Contractor shall provide such office space, supplies, 



Ind. Con. Agmt. (Rev.2.24.22 gmz) 

Page 3 of 9 
 
 

 

equipment, vehicles, reference materials and telephone service as is necessary for Contractor to provide 
the services identified in Exhibit A to this Agreement.  The JPA is not obligated to reimburse or pay 
Contractor for any expense or cost incurred by Contractor in procuring or maintaining such items.  
Responsibility for the costs and expenses incurred by Contractor in providing and maintaining such items 
is the sole responsibility and obligation of Contractor. 
 
6. Insurance 
  

Coverage Required: Contractor shall obtain, and maintain at all times during the term of this 
Agreement, insurance coverage in the amounts and coverage specified in the attached “Exhibit B.” 
 
7. Defense and Indemnification 

 
7.1 To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall indemnify, hold harmless and 

defend the JPA and its agents, officers and employees from and against all claims, damages, losses, 
judgments, liabilities, expenses and other costs, including litigation costs and attorneys’ fees, arising out 
of, resulting from, or in connection with the performance of this Agreement by the Contractor or 
Contractor's officers, employees, agents, representatives or subcontractors including those resulting in or 
attributable to personal injury, death, or damage or destruction to tangible or intangible property, including 
the loss of use. 
 

7.2 Contractor's obligation to defend, indemnify and hold the JPA and its agents, officers and 
employees harmless under the provisions of this paragraph is not limited to or restricted by any 
requirement in this Agreement for Contractor to procure and maintain a policy of insurance. 

 
7.3  Contractor   shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless and shall be responsible for any 

and all federal, state and local taxes, fees, or contributions required to be paid with respect to Contractor 
and Contractor’s officers, employees, and agents engaged in the performance of this Agreement, 
including and without limitation unemployment insurance, social security and payroll tax withholding. 
 
8. Status of Contractor 
 

8.1 All acts of Contractor and its officers, employees, agents, representatives, subcontractors 
and all others acting on behalf of Contractor relating to the performance of this Agreement, shall be 
performed as independent contractors and not as agents, officers or employees of the JPA.  Contractor, 
by virtue of this Agreement, has no authority to bind or incur any obligation on behalf of the JPA.  Except 
as expressly provided in Exhibit A, Contractor has no authority or responsibility to exercise any rights or 
power vested in the JPA.  No agent, officer or employee of the JPA is to be considered an employee of 
Contractor.  It is understood by both Contractor and JPA that this Agreement shall not be construed or 
considered under any circumstances to create an employer-employee relationship or a joint venture.   
 

8.2 At all times during the term of this Agreement, the Contractor and its officers, employees, 
agents, representatives or subcontractors are, and shall represent and conduct themselves as, 
independent contractors and not employees of the JPA. 
 

8.3 Contractor shall determine the method, details and means of performing the work and 
services to be provided by Contractor under this Agreement.  Contractor shall be responsible to the JPA 
only for the requirements and results specified in this Agreement and, except as expressly provided in this 
Agreement, shall not be subjected to JPA's control with respect to the physical action or activities of 
Contractor in fulfillment of this Agreement.  Contractor has control over the manner and means of 
performing the services under this Agreement.  Contractor is permitted to provide services to others 



Ind. Con. Agmt. (Rev.2.24.22 gmz) 

Page 4 of 9 
 
 

 

during the same period service is provided to the JPA under this Agreement.  If necessary, Contractor has 
the responsibility for employing other persons or firms to assist Contractor in fulfilling the terms and 
obligations under this Agreement. 
 

8.4 If in the performance of this Agreement any third persons are employed by Contractor, 
such persons shall be entirely and exclusively under the direction, supervision and control of Contractor.  
All terms of employment including hours, wages, working conditions, discipline, hiring and discharging or 
any other term of employment or requirements of law shall be determined by the Contractor. 
 

8.5 It is understood and agreed that as an independent Contractor and not an employee of the 
JPA, the Contractor and the Contractor's officers, employees, agents, representatives or subcontractors 
do not have any entitlement as a JPA employee, and do not have the right to act on behalf of the JPA in 
any capacity whatsoever as an agent, or to bind the JPA to any obligation whatsoever. 
 

8.6 It is further understood and agreed that Contractor must issue W-2 forms or other forms as 
required by law for income and employment tax purposes for all of Contractor's assigned personnel under 
the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 

 
8.7 Contractor retains all of their powers and authority to direct and control to the full extent of 

the law.  Included in but not limited to those duties and powers are the rights to:  direct the work of its 
employees; establish the developmental philosophy, goals, and objectives; ensure the rights and 
opportunities of children and families; determine the staffing patterns; determine the number and kinds of 
personnel required; determine the classification of positions; maintain the efficiency of the program 
operation; determine the curriculum; develop a budget; develop and implement budget procedures.  In 
addition, the Contractors retain the right to hire, assign, evaluate, promote, terminate, and discipline 
employees, and to take action on any matter in the event of an emergency.  The exercise of the foregoing 
powers, rights, authority, duties, and responsibilities by the Contractors, the adoption of policies, rules, 
regulation, and practices in furtherance thereof, and the use of judgment and discretion in connection 
therewith, shall be limited only by the specific and express terms of this Agreement, and then only to the 
extent such specific and express terms are in conformance with the laws of the State of California. 
 

8.8 As an independent Contractor, Contractor hereby indemnifies and holds the JPA harmless 
from any and all claims that may be made against the JPA based upon any contention by any third party 
that an employer-employee relationship exists by reason of this Agreement. 
 
9. Records and Audit 
 

9.1 Contractor shall prepare and maintain all writings, documents and records prepared or 
compiled in connection with the performance of this Agreement for a minimum of four (4) years from the 
termination or completion of this Agreement.  This includes any handwriting, typewriting, printing, 
photostatic, photographing and every other means of recording upon any tangible thing, any form of 
communication or representation including letters, words, pictures, sounds or symbols or any combination 
thereof. 

 
9.2 Any authorized representative of the JPA shall have access to any writings as defined 

above for the purposes of making audit, evaluation, examination, excerpts and transcripts during the 
period such records are to be maintained by Contractor.  Further, the JPA has the right at all reasonable 
times to audit, inspect or otherwise evaluate the work performed or being performed under this 
Agreement. 
 



Ind. Con. Agmt. (Rev.2.24.22 gmz) 

Page 5 of 9 
 
 

 

10. Confidentiality 
 

The Contractor agrees to keep confidential all information obtained or learned during the course of 
furnishing services under this Agreement and to not disclose or reveal such information for any purpose 
not directly connected with the matter for which services are provided. 
 
11. Nondiscrimination 
 

11.1 Non-Discrimination. During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor and its officers 
employees, agents, representatives or subcontractors shall not unlawfully discriminate in violation of any 
Federal, State or local law, rule or regulation against any employee, applicant for employment or person 
receiving services under this Agreement because of race, religious creed, color, national origin, ancestry, 
physical or mental disability including perception of a disability, medical condition, genetic information, 
pregnancy related condition, marital status, gender/sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, gender 
expression, age (over 40), political affiliation or belief, or military and veteran status.  Contractor and its 
officers, employees, agents, representatives or subcontractors shall comply with all applicable Federal, 
State and local laws and regulations related to non-discrimination and equal opportunity, including without 
limitation the JPA’s non-discrimination policy; the Fair Employment and Housing Act (Government Code 
sections 12900 et seq.); California Labor Code sections 1101, and 1102; the Federal Civil Rights Act of 
1964 (P.L. 88-352), as amended; and all applicable regulations promulgated in the California Code of 
Regulations or the Code of Federal Regulations. 

 
11.2 Contractor shall include the non-discrimination and compliance provisions of this clause in 

all subcontracts to perform work under this Agreement. 
 
11.3 Contractor shall provide a system by which recipients of service shall have the opportunity 

to express and have considered their views, grievances, and complaints regarding Contractor's delivery of 
services. 
 
12. Assignment 
 

This is an agreement for the services of Contractor.  The JPA has relied upon the skills, 
knowledge, experience and training of Contractor and the Contractor's firm, associates and employees as 
an inducement to enter into this Agreement.  Contractor shall not assign or subcontract this Agreement 
without the express written consent of the JPA.  Further, Contractor shall not assign any monies due or to 
become due under this Agreement without the prior written consent of the JPA. 
 
13. Waiver of Default 
 

Waiver of any default by either party to this Agreement shall not be deemed to be waiver of any 
subsequent default.  Waiver or breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not be deemed to be a 
waiver of any other or subsequent breach and shall not be construed to be a modification of the terms of 
this Agreement unless this Agreement is modified as provided below. 
 
14. Notice 
 

Any notice, communication, amendment, addition or deletion to this Agreement, including change 
of address of either party during the term of this Agreement, which Contractor or the JPA shall be required 
or may desire to make shall be in writing and may be personally served or, alternatively, sent by prepaid 
first-class mail to the respective parties as follows: 
 



Ind. Con. Agmt. (Rev.2.24.22 gmz) 

Page 6 of 9 
 
 

 

To JPA: To Contractor: 
Stanislaus Regional 9-1-1 
Kasey Young, Interim Director 
3705 Oakdale Road 
Modesto, CA  95357 

Simpson Investigative Services Group 
Terry Simpson, Owner 
P.O. Box 232786 
Pleasant Hill, CA 94523-0786 

 
15. Conflicts 

 
Contractor agrees that it has no interest and shall not acquire any interest direct or indirect which 

would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of the work and services under this 
Agreement. 
 
16. Severability 
 

If any portion of this Agreement or application thereof to any person or circumstance shall be 
declared invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction or if it is found in contravention of any federal, state or 
county statute, ordinance or regulation; the remaining provisions of this Agreement or the application 
thereof shall not be invalidated thereby and shall remain in full force and effect to the extent that the 
provisions of this Agreement are severable. 
 
17. Amendment 

 
This Agreement may be modified, amended, changed, added to or subtracted from by the mutual 

consent of the parties hereto if such amendment or change is in written form and executed with the same 
formalities as this Agreement and attached to the original Agreement to maintain continuity. 
 
18. Entire Agreement 
 

This Agreement supersedes any and all other agreements, either oral or in writing, between any of 
the parties herein with respect to the subject matter hereof and contains all the agreements between the 
parties with respect to such matter.  Each party acknowledges that no representations, inducements, 
promises or agreements, oral or otherwise, have been made by any party, or anyone acting on behalf of 
any party, which are not embodied herein, and that no other agreement, statement or promise not 
contained in this Agreement shall be valid or binding. 
 
19. Advice of Attorney 
 

Each party warrants and represents that in executing this Agreement, it has received independent 
legal advice from its attorneys or the opportunity to seek such advice. 
 
20. Construction 
 

Headings or captions to the provisions of this Agreement are solely for the convenience of the 
parties, are not part of this Agreement, and shall not be used to interpret or determine the validity of this 
Agreement.  Any ambiguity in this Agreement shall not be construed against the drafter, but rather the 
terms and provisions hereof shall be given a reasonable interpretation as if both parties had in fact drafted 
this Agreement. 
 
21. Governing Law and Venue 
 

This Agreement shall be deemed to be made under and shall be governed by and construed in 



Ind. Con. Agmt. (Rev.2.24.22 gmz) 

Page 7 of 9 
 
 

 

accordance with, the laws of the State of California.  Any action brought to enforce the terms or provisions 
of this Agreement shall have venue in the County of Stanislaus, State of California. 
 
22. Authorized Signature 
 
 The person signing this Agreement (“Signatory”) represents and warrants that he or she is 
duly authorized and has legal capacity to execute this Agreement. Signatory represents and warrants 
that the execution and delivery of the Agreement and the performance of Contractor’s obligations 
hereunder has been duly authorized and that the Agreement is a valid and legal agreement binding 
on Contractor and enforceable in accordance with its terms. 
 
23.          Electronic Signatures 
 
                Each party agrees that the electronic signatures (whether digital or encrypted) of the parties 
included in this Agreement are intended to authenticate this writing and to have the same force and 
effect as manual signatures. Electronic signature means any electronic sound, symbol, or process 
attached to or logically associated with a record and executed and adopted by a party with the intent 
to sign such record (including facsimile or email electronic signatures) pursuant to the California 
Uniform Electronic Transactions Act (Cal. Civ. Code § 1633.1 et seq.) as amended from time to time. 
 
24.  Certification Regarding Economic Sanctions Pursuant to California State Executive Order N-6-22 
 

24.1 Contractor shall review their investments and contracts to ensure their compliance with 
economic sanctions imposed by the U.S. government in response to Russia's actions in Ukraine, as well 
as any sanctions imposed under state law (collectively, economic sanctions), and to take actions to 
support the Ukrainian government and people, including by refraining from new investments in, and 
financial transactions with, Russian institutions or companies that are headquartered or have their 
principal place of business in Russia (Russian entities), not transferring technology to Russia or Russian 
entities, and by directly providing support to the government and people of Ukraine. 

 
24.2 County shall terminate any contract with any individual or entity that is in violation of 

Executive Order N-6-22 or that is subject to economic sanctions therein, and shall not enter a contract 
with any such individual or entity while the Order is in effect.  
 
 24.3  For contracts valued at $5 million or more, Contractor shall provide a written report to the 
County regarding compliance with economic sanctions and steps taken in response to Russia’s action in 
Ukraine, including but not limited to, desisting from making new investments in, or engaging in financial 
transactions with Russia or Russian entities, and directly providing support to Ukraine, while the Order is 
in effect. 
 
 
 

[SIGNATURES SET FORTH ON FOLLOWING PAGE] 
 



Ind. Con. Agmt. (Rev.2.24.22 gmz) 

Page 8 of 9 
 
 

 

 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties or their duly authorized representatives have executed this 
Agreement on the day and year first hereinabove written. 
 

CONSOLIDATED EMERGENCY DISPATCH 
AGENCY COMMISSION 
 
By:__________________________________ 

President 
Consolidated Emergency Dispatch Agency 
Commission 

 
 "JPA" 
 
 

SIMPSON INVESTIGATIVE SERVICES GROUP 
 
 
By: _________________________________ 
 
Printed name: Terry Simpson 
Title:  Owner 
 
 "Contractor” 

APPROVED AS TO CONTENT: 
Stanislaus Regional 9-1-1 
 
 
By:____________________________________ 
Printed name: Kasey Young 
Title:  SR911 Interim Director 
 

 

 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
Thomas E. Boze, County Counsel 
 
 
By:____________________________________ 

 Lori Sicard, Deputy County Counsel 

 

 
 



Ind. Con. Agmt. (Rev.2.24.22 gmz) 

Page 9 of 9 
 
 

 

EXHIBIT A 
 
 

A. SCOPE OF WORK 

The Contractor shall provide services under this Agreement as follows: 
1. To conduct comprehensive Pre-Employment Background Investigations on the 
candidate(s) for Public Safety employment with Stanislaus Regional 9-1-1. 
 
2. To conduct the background investigations in a manner that meets and/or exceeds all 
standards and regulations governing such pre-employment background investigations, in 
compliance with all State and Federal laws related to such investigations. 
 
3. To conduct the background investigations in a matter that meets all of the requirements for 
employment as specified by Stanislaus Regional 9-1-1. 
 
4. To provide the Stanislaus Regional 9-1-1 with a written report an all supporting documents 
as required by Federal and State regulations related to pre-employment background 
investigations on Public Safety employees. 
 
5. The estimated time for project completion is expected to be within 30 days from the 
investigators initial interview with the candidate. 
 

B. COMPENSATION 
 

The Contractor shall be compensated for the services provided under this Agreement as follows: 
 
1. Compensation will include a one-time flat fee, plus actual expenses supported by receipts related to 
travel, lodging, and/or meals pre-approved by Stanislaus Regional 9-1-1 prior to the expense being 
incurred.  Personal vehicle mileage is to be compensated at the IRS rate at the time that the work is 
performed.  Background investigation flat fee schedule includes: 

• Police Officer/Deputy Sheriff/Firefighter:  $2,000.00 
 

• Public Safety Dispatcher:  $ 1,800.00 
 

• Any other non-sworn positions: $1800.00  
 

• Executive/Management positions, sworn and non-sworn, may exceed the above stated fee 
schedule and will be negotiated with Stanislaus Regional 9-1-1 before beginning the 
background investigation. 

2.  Payment for services and expenses is requested within 30 days of project completion and the 
submission of invoice or in accordance with normal vendor payment schedules deemed appropriate 
by Stanislaus Regional 9-1-1.  
 
3. The parties hereto acknowledge the maximum amount to be paid by the JPA for services 
provided under the term of this Agreement shall not exceed $20,000.00, including, 
without limitation, the cost of any subcontractors, consultants, experts or investigators                
retained by the Contractor to perform or to assist in the performance of its work under this Agreement.  
 



 
 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
3705 Oakdale Road                                                                      Telephone: (209) 552-3900 
Modesto, CA  95357                                                      www.sr911.org                                                                  Fax: (209) 552-3950  
 

 
The professional connection between the community and public safety 

 
       Kasey Young, Interim Executive Director 

________________________________________________________________________ 
 

                                               
          
 
 
AGENDA DATE: June 26, 2024 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
SUBJECT: Authorize the Consolidated Emergency Dispatch Agency 

Commission President and Executive Director to Execute a One (1) 
Year Agreement with Rank Investigation and Protection Inc. for 
Background Investigation Services in an Annual Amount Not to 
Exceed $20,000 

______________________________________________________________________ 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Rank Investigation and Protection Inc. provides background investigation of candidates 
for law enforcement and public safety.   
 
Regional 9-1-1(SR911) corresponded with vendors inviting a Request for Quote (RFQ) 
for Background Investigation services.  Rank Investigations was one of two agencies 
that responded.  In January 2017, SR911 entered into an Agreement with Rank 
Investigation and Protection to provide Background Investigation services.  Staff 
recommends continuing with the firm for an additional one (1) year term. 
 
SR911 continually faces challenges in hiring qualified staff and it is imperative to have 
reputable vendors to examine its applicants. 
 
See Attachment A for details of the services that will be performed.  
 
The contract has been reviewed by the agency’s Attorney and is approved to form.   
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
 
Executing an agreement with Rank Investigation, as proposed, would result in a total 
expense of approximately $20,000.  The of funding is available and budgeted in Fiscal 
Year 2024/2025. 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Authorize the Consolidated Emergency Dispatch Agency Commission President and 
Executive Director to execute a one (1) year independent contractor agreement with  

CEDAC (JPA) Item 5.7 

Vote Required: Yes No

http://www.sr911.org/


 

Page 2 of 2 

 

 
Rank Investigation and Protection Inc. for background investigation services in an 
annual amount not to exceed $20,000. 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
CONTACT PERSON: Kasey Young, Interim Executive Director    
    Stanislaus Regional 9-1-1, (209) 552-3903 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
ATTACHMENTS:   A-1:  Agreement for Independent Contractor Services,  

Rank Investigation and Protection Inc. (9 Pages) 



Ind. Con. Agmt. (Rev.2.24.22 gmz) 

Page 1 of 9 
 
 

 

AGREEMENT 
FOR 

INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR SERVICES 
 

This Agreement for Independent Contractor Services (the “Agreement”) is made and entered into 
by and between the Consolidated Emergency Dispatch Agency ("JPA") and Rank Investigations and 
Protection Inc., ("Contractor") as of July 1, 2024. 
 

Recitals 
 

WHEREAS, the JPA has a need for services involving Background Investigations;  
 

WHEREAS, the Contractor is specially trained, experienced and competent to perform and has 
agreed to provide such services; and 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises, covenants, terms and conditions 
hereinafter contained, the parties hereby agree as follows: 
 

Terms and Conditions 
 
1. Scope of Work 
 

1.1 The Contractor shall furnish to the JPA upon execution of this Agreement or receipt of the 
JPA's written authorization to proceed, those services and work set forth in Exhibit A. 
 

1.2 All documents, drawings and written work product prepared or produced by the Contractor 
under this Agreement, including without limitation electronic data files, are the property of the Contractor; 
provided, however, the JPA shall have the right to reproduce, publish and use all such work, or any part 
thereof, in any manner and for any purposes whatsoever and to authorize others to do so.  If any such 
work is copyrightable, the Contractor may copyright the same, except that, as to any work which is 
copyrighted by the Contractor, the JPA reserves a royalty-free, non-exclusive, and irrevocable license to 
reproduce, publish, and use such work, or any part thereof, and to authorize others to do so. 
 

1.3 Services and work provided by the Contractor at the JPA's request under this Agreement 
will be performed in a timely manner consistent with the requirements and standards established by 
applicable federal, state and County laws, ordinances, regulations and resolutions, and in accordance 
with a schedule of work set forth in Exhibit A.  If there is no schedule, the hours and times for completion 
of said services and work are to be set by the Contractor; provided, however, that such schedule is 
subject to review by and concurrence of the JPA. 
 
2. Consideration 

 
2.1 JPA shall pay Contractor as set forth in Exhibit A. 

 
2.2 Except as expressly provided in Exhibit A of this Agreement, Contractor shall not be 

entitled to nor receive from the JPA any additional consideration, compensation, salary, wages or other 
type of remuneration for services rendered under this Agreement.  Specifically, Contractor shall not be 
entitled by virtue of this Agreement to consideration in the form of overtime, health insurance benefits, 
retirement benefits, disability retirement benefits, sick leave, vacation time, paid holidays or other paid 
leaves of absence of any type or kind whatsoever. 
 



Ind. Con. Agmt. (Rev.2.24.22 gmz) 

Page 2 of 9 
 
 

 

2.3 The JPA will not withhold any Federal or State income taxes or Social Security tax from 
any payments made by County to Contractor under the terms and conditions of this Agreement.  Payment 
of all taxes and other assessments on such sums is the sole responsibility of Contractor.  The JPA has no 
responsibility or liability for payment of Contractor's taxes or assessments. 
 

2.4 Pursuant to Penal Code section 484b and to Business and Professions Code section 
7108.5, the Contractor must apply all funds and progress payments received by the Contractor from the 
JPA for payment of services, labor, materials or equipment to pay for such services, labor, materials or 
equipment.  Pursuant to Civil Code section 1479, the Contractor shall direct or otherwise manifest the 
Contractor’s intention and desire that payments made by the Contractor to subcontractors, suppliers and 
materialmen shall be applied to retire and extinguish the debts or obligations resulting from the 
performance of this Agreement. 
 
3. Term 
 

3.1 The term of this Agreement shall be from the date of approval of this Agreement until 
completion of the agreed upon services unless sooner terminated as provided below or unless some other 
method or time of termination is listed in Exhibit A. 
 

3.2 Should either party default in the performance of this Agreement or materially breach any 
of its provisions, the other party, at that party's option, may terminate this Agreement by giving written 
notification to the other party. 
 

3.3 This Agreement shall terminate automatically on the occurrence of (a) bankruptcy or 
insolvency of either party, (b) sale of Contractor's business, (c) cancellation of insurance required under 
the terms of this Agreement, and (d) if, for any reason, Contractor ceases to be licensed or otherwise 
authorized to do business in the State of California, and the Contractor fails to remedy such defect or 
defects within thirty (30) days of receipt of notice of such defect or defects. 
 

3.4 The JPA may terminate this agreement upon 30 days prior written notice to the Contractor. 
 Termination of this Agreement shall not affect the JPA’s obligation to pay for all fees earned and 
reasonable costs necessarily incurred by the Contractor as provided in Paragraph 2 herein, subject to any 
applicable setoffs. 
 
4. Required Licenses, Certificates and Permits 
 

4.1 Any licenses, certificates or permits required by the federal, state, county or municipal 
governments for Contractor to provide the services and work described in Exhibit A must be procured by 
Contractor and be valid at the time Contractor enters into this Agreement.  Further, during the term of this 
Agreement, Contractor must maintain such licenses, certificates and permits in full force and effect.  
Licenses, certificates and permits may include but are not limited to driver's licenses, professional 
licenses or certificates and business licenses.  Such licenses, certificates and permits will be procured 
and maintained in force by Contractor at no expense to the JPA.   

 
4.2 Contractor further certifies to the JPA that it and its principals are not debarred, suspended, 

or otherwise excluded or ineligible for participation in federal, state or county government contracts.  
Contractor certifies that it shall not contract with a subcontractor that is so debarred or suspended. 
 
5. Office Space, Supplies, Equipment, Etc. 
 

Unless otherwise provided in Exhibit A, Contractor shall provide such office space, supplies, 



Ind. Con. Agmt. (Rev.2.24.22 gmz) 

Page 3 of 9 
 
 

 

equipment, vehicles, reference materials and telephone service as is necessary for Contractor to provide 
the services identified in Exhibit A to this Agreement.  The JPA is not obligated to reimburse or pay 
Contractor for any expense or cost incurred by Contractor in procuring or maintaining such items.  
Responsibility for the costs and expenses incurred by Contractor in providing and maintaining such items 
is the sole responsibility and obligation of Contractor. 
 
6. Insurance 
  

Coverage Required: Contractor shall obtain, and maintain at all times during the term of this 
Agreement, insurance coverage in the amounts and coverage specified in the attached “Exhibit B.” 
 
7. Defense and Indemnification 

 
7.1 To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall indemnify, hold harmless and 

defend the JPA and its agents, officers and employees from and against all claims, damages, losses, 
judgments, liabilities, expenses and other costs, including litigation costs and attorneys’ fees, arising out 
of, resulting from, or in connection with the performance of this Agreement by the Contractor or 
Contractor's officers, employees, agents, representatives or subcontractors including those resulting in or 
attributable to personal injury, death, or damage or destruction to tangible or intangible property, including 
the loss of use. 
 

7.2 Contractor's obligation to defend, indemnify and hold the JPA and its agents, officers and 
employees harmless under the provisions of this paragraph is not limited to or restricted by any 
requirement in this Agreement for Contractor to procure and maintain a policy of insurance. 

 
7.3  Contractor   shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless and shall be responsible for any 

and all federal, state and local taxes, fees, or contributions required to be paid with respect to Contractor 
and Contractor’s officers, employees, and agents engaged in the performance of this Agreement, 
including and without limitation unemployment insurance, social security and payroll tax withholding. 
 
8. Status of Contractor 
 

8.1 All acts of Contractor and its officers, employees, agents, representatives, subcontractors 
and all others acting on behalf of Contractor relating to the performance of this Agreement, shall be 
performed as independent contractors and not as agents, officers or employees of the JPA.  Contractor, 
by virtue of this Agreement, has no authority to bind or incur any obligation on behalf of the JPA.  Except 
as expressly provided in Exhibit A, Contractor has no authority or responsibility to exercise any rights or 
power vested in the JPA.  No agent, officer or employee of the JPA is to be considered an employee of 
Contractor.  It is understood by both Contractor and JPA that this Agreement shall not be construed or 
considered under any circumstances to create an employer-employee relationship or a joint venture.   
 

8.2 At all times during the term of this Agreement, the Contractor and its officers, employees, 
agents, representatives or subcontractors are, and shall represent and conduct themselves as, 
independent contractors and not employees of the JPA. 
 

8.3 Contractor shall determine the method, details and means of performing the work and 
services to be provided by Contractor under this Agreement.  Contractor shall be responsible to the JPA 
only for the requirements and results specified in this Agreement and, except as expressly provided in this 
Agreement, shall not be subjected to JPA's control with respect to the physical action or activities of 
Contractor in fulfillment of this Agreement.  Contractor has control over the manner and means of 
performing the services under this Agreement.  Contractor is permitted to provide services to others 



Ind. Con. Agmt. (Rev.2.24.22 gmz) 

Page 4 of 9 
 
 

 

during the same period service is provided to the JPA under this Agreement.  If necessary, Contractor has 
the responsibility for employing other persons or firms to assist Contractor in fulfilling the terms and 
obligations under this Agreement. 
 

8.4 If in the performance of this Agreement any third persons are employed by Contractor, 
such persons shall be entirely and exclusively under the direction, supervision and control of Contractor.  
All terms of employment including hours, wages, working conditions, discipline, hiring and discharging or 
any other term of employment or requirements of law shall be determined by the Contractor. 
 

8.5 It is understood and agreed that as an independent Contractor and not an employee of the 
JPA, the Contractor and the Contractor's officers, employees, agents, representatives or subcontractors 
do not have any entitlement as a JPA employee, and do not have the right to act on behalf of the JPA in 
any capacity whatsoever as an agent, or to bind the JPA to any obligation whatsoever. 
 

8.6 It is further understood and agreed that Contractor must issue W-2 forms or other forms as 
required by law for income and employment tax purposes for all of Contractor's assigned personnel under 
the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 

 
8.7 Contractor retains all of their powers and authority to direct and control to the full extent of 

the law.  Included in but not limited to those duties and powers are the rights to:  direct the work of its 
employees; establish the developmental philosophy, goals, and objectives; ensure the rights and 
opportunities of children and families; determine the staffing patterns; determine the number and kinds of 
personnel required; determine the classification of positions; maintain the efficiency of the program 
operation; determine the curriculum; develop a budget; develop and implement budget procedures.  In 
addition, the Contractors retain the right to hire, assign, evaluate, promote, terminate, and discipline 
employees, and to take action on any matter in the event of an emergency.  The exercise of the foregoing 
powers, rights, authority, duties, and responsibilities by the Contractors, the adoption of policies, rules, 
regulation, and practices in furtherance thereof, and the use of judgment and discretion in connection 
therewith, shall be limited only by the specific and express terms of this Agreement, and then only to the 
extent such specific and express terms are in conformance with the laws of the State of California. 
 

8.8 As an independent Contractor, Contractor hereby indemnifies and holds the JPA harmless 
from any and all claims that may be made against the JPA based upon any contention by any third party 
that an employer-employee relationship exists by reason of this Agreement. 
 
9. Records and Audit 
 

9.1 Contractor shall prepare and maintain all writings, documents and records prepared or 
compiled in connection with the performance of this Agreement for a minimum of four (4) years from the 
termination or completion of this Agreement.  This includes any handwriting, typewriting, printing, 
photostatic, photographing and every other means of recording upon any tangible thing, any form of 
communication or representation including letters, words, pictures, sounds or symbols or any combination 
thereof. 

 
9.2 Any authorized representative of the JPA shall have access to any writings as defined 

above for the purposes of making audit, evaluation, examination, excerpts and transcripts during the 
period such records are to be maintained by Contractor.  Further, the JPA has the right at all reasonable 
times to audit, inspect or otherwise evaluate the work performed or being performed under this 
Agreement. 
 



Ind. Con. Agmt. (Rev.2.24.22 gmz) 

Page 5 of 9 
 
 

 

10. Confidentiality 
 

The Contractor agrees to keep confidential all information obtained or learned during the course of 
furnishing services under this Agreement and to not disclose or reveal such information for any purpose 
not directly connected with the matter for which services are provided. 
 
11. Nondiscrimination 
 

11.1 Non-Discrimination. During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor and its officers 
employees, agents, representatives or subcontractors shall not unlawfully discriminate in violation of any 
Federal, State or local law, rule or regulation against any employee, applicant for employment or person 
receiving services under this Agreement because of race, religious creed, color, national origin, ancestry, 
physical or mental disability including perception of a disability, medical condition, genetic information, 
pregnancy related condition, marital status, gender/sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, gender 
expression, age (over 40), political affiliation or belief, or military and veteran status.  Contractor and its 
officers, employees, agents, representatives or subcontractors shall comply with all applicable Federal, 
State and local laws and regulations related to non-discrimination and equal opportunity, including without 
limitation the JPA’s non-discrimination policy; the Fair Employment and Housing Act (Government Code 
sections 12900 et seq.); California Labor Code sections 1101, and 1102; the Federal Civil Rights Act of 
1964 (P.L. 88-352), as amended; and all applicable regulations promulgated in the California Code of 
Regulations or the Code of Federal Regulations. 

 
11.2 Contractor shall include the non-discrimination and compliance provisions of this clause in 

all subcontracts to perform work under this Agreement. 
 
11.3 Contractor shall provide a system by which recipients of service shall have the opportunity 

to express and have considered their views, grievances, and complaints regarding Contractor's delivery of 
services. 
 
12. Assignment 
 

This is an agreement for the services of Contractor.  The JPA has relied upon the skills, 
knowledge, experience and training of Contractor and the Contractor's firm, associates and employees as 
an inducement to enter into this Agreement.  Contractor shall not assign or subcontract this Agreement 
without the express written consent of the JPA.  Further, Contractor shall not assign any monies due or to 
become due under this Agreement without the prior written consent of the JPA. 
 
13. Waiver of Default 
 

Waiver of any default by either party to this Agreement shall not be deemed to be waiver of any 
subsequent default.  Waiver or breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not be deemed to be a 
waiver of any other or subsequent breach and shall not be construed to be a modification of the terms of 
this Agreement unless this Agreement is modified as provided below. 
 
14. Notice 
 

Any notice, communication, amendment, addition or deletion to this Agreement, including change 
of address of either party during the term of this Agreement, which Contractor or the JPA shall be required 
or may desire to make shall be in writing and may be personally served or, alternatively, sent by prepaid 
first-class mail to the respective parties as follows: 
 



Ind. Con. Agmt. (Rev.2.24.22 gmz) 

Page 6 of 9 
 
 

 

To JPA: To Contractor: 
Stanislaus Regional 9-1-1 
Kasey Young, Interim Director 
3705 Oakdale Road 
Modesto, CA  95357 

Rank Investigation and Protection Inc. 
1301 K Street, Suite G 
Modesto, CA 95354 

 
15. Conflicts 

 
Contractor agrees that it has no interest and shall not acquire any interest direct or indirect which 

would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of the work and services under this 
Agreement. 
 
16. Severability 
 

If any portion of this Agreement or application thereof to any person or circumstance shall be 
declared invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction or if it is found in contravention of any federal, state or 
county statute, ordinance or regulation; the remaining provisions of this Agreement or the application 
thereof shall not be invalidated thereby and shall remain in full force and effect to the extent that the 
provisions of this Agreement are severable. 
 
17. Amendment 

 
This Agreement may be modified, amended, changed, added to or subtracted from by the mutual 

consent of the parties hereto if such amendment or change is in written form and executed with the same 
formalities as this Agreement and attached to the original Agreement to maintain continuity. 
 
18. Entire Agreement 
 

This Agreement supersedes any and all other agreements, either oral or in writing, between any of 
the parties herein with respect to the subject matter hereof and contains all the agreements between the 
parties with respect to such matter.  Each party acknowledges that no representations, inducements, 
promises or agreements, oral or otherwise, have been made by any party, or anyone acting on behalf of 
any party, which are not embodied herein, and that no other agreement, statement or promise not 
contained in this Agreement shall be valid or binding. 
 
19. Advice of Attorney 
 

Each party warrants and represents that in executing this Agreement, it has received independent 
legal advice from its attorneys or the opportunity to seek such advice. 
 
20. Construction 
 

Headings or captions to the provisions of this Agreement are solely for the convenience of the 
parties, are not part of this Agreement, and shall not be used to interpret or determine the validity of this 
Agreement.  Any ambiguity in this Agreement shall not be construed against the drafter, but rather the 
terms and provisions hereof shall be given a reasonable interpretation as if both parties had in fact drafted 
this Agreement. 
 
21. Governing Law and Venue 
 

This Agreement shall be deemed to be made under and shall be governed by and construed in 



Ind. Con. Agmt. (Rev.2.24.22 gmz) 

Page 7 of 9 
 
 

 

accordance with, the laws of the State of California.  Any action brought to enforce the terms or provisions 
of this Agreement shall have venue in the County of Stanislaus, State of California. 
 
22. Authorized Signature 
 
 The person signing this Agreement (“Signatory”) represents and warrants that he or she is 
duly authorized and has legal capacity to execute this Agreement. Signatory represents and warrants 
that the execution and delivery of the Agreement and the performance of Contractor’s obligations 
hereunder has been duly authorized and that the Agreement is a valid and legal agreement binding 
on Contractor and enforceable in accordance with its terms. 
 
23.          Electronic Signatures 
 
                Each party agrees that the electronic signatures (whether digital or encrypted) of the parties 
included in this Agreement are intended to authenticate this writing and to have the same force and 
effect as manual signatures. Electronic signature means any electronic sound, symbol, or process 
attached to or logically associated with a record and executed and adopted by a party with the intent 
to sign such record (including facsimile or email electronic signatures) pursuant to the California 
Uniform Electronic Transactions Act (Cal. Civ. Code § 1633.1 et seq.) as amended from time to time. 
 
24.  Certification Regarding Economic Sanctions Pursuant to California State Executive Order N-6-22 
 

24.1 Contractor shall review their investments and contracts to ensure their compliance with 
economic sanctions imposed by the U.S. government in response to Russia's actions in Ukraine, as well 
as any sanctions imposed under state law (collectively, economic sanctions), and to take actions to 
support the Ukrainian government and people, including by refraining from new investments in, and 
financial transactions with, Russian institutions or companies that are headquartered or have their 
principal place of business in Russia (Russian entities), not transferring technology to Russia or Russian 
entities, and by directly providing support to the government and people of Ukraine. 

 
24.2 County shall terminate any contract with any individual or entity that is in violation of 

Executive Order N-6-22 or that is subject to economic sanctions therein, and shall not enter a contract 
with any such individual or entity while the Order is in effect.  
 
 24.3  For contracts valued at $5 million or more, Contractor shall provide a written report to the 
County regarding compliance with economic sanctions and steps taken in response to Russia’s action in 
Ukraine, including but not limited to, desisting from making new investments in, or engaging in financial 
transactions with Russia or Russian entities, and directly providing support to Ukraine, while the Order is 
in effect. 
 
 
 

[SIGNATURES SET FORTH ON FOLLOWING PAGE] 
 



Ind. Con. Agmt. (Rev.2.24.22 gmz) 

Page 8 of 9 
 
 

 

 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties or their duly authorized representatives have executed this 
Agreement on the day and year first hereinabove written. 
 

CONSOLIDATED EMERGENCY DISPATCH 
AGENCY COMMISSION 
 
By:__________________________________ 

President 
Consolidated Emergency Dispatch Agency 
Commission 

 
 "JPA" 
 
 

RANK INVESTIGATION AND PROTECTION 
Inc. 
 
By: _________________________________ 
 
Printed name: Steven Rank 
Title:  President/CEO 
 
 "Contractor” 

APPROVED AS TO CONTENT: 
Stanislaus Regional 9-1-1 
 
 
By:____________________________________ 
Printed name: Kasey Young 
Title:  SR911 Interim Director 
 

 

 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
Thomas E. Boze, County Counsel 
 
 
By:____________________________________ 

 Lori Sicard, Deputy County Counsel 

 

 
 



Ind. Con. Agmt. (Rev.2.24.22 gmz) 

Page 9 of 9 
 
 

 

EXHIBIT A 
A. SCOPE OF WORK 

The Contractor shall provide services under this Agreement as follows: 
1. To conduct comprehensive Pre-Employment Background Investigations on the 
candidate(s) for Public Safety employment with Stanislaus Regional 9-1-1. 
 
2. To conduct the background investigations in a manner that meets and/or exceeds all 
standards and regulations governing such pre-employment background investigations, in 
compliance with all State and Federal laws related to such investigations. 
 
3. To conduct the background investigations in a matter that meets all of the requirements for 
employment as specified by Stanislaus Regional 9-1-1. 
 
4. To provide the Stanislaus Regional 9-1-1 with a written report an all supporting documents 
as required by Federal and State regulations related to pre-employment background 
investigations on Public Safety employees. 
 
5. The estimated time for project completion is expected to be within 30 days from the 
investigators initial interview with the candidate. 
 

B. COMPENSATION 
 

The Contractor shall be compensated for the services provided under this Agreement as 
follows: 
 
1.Compensation will $45.00 per hour plus actual expenses supported by receipts 
related to travel, lodging, and/or meals pre-approved by Stanislaus Regional 9-1-1 prior to 
the expense being incurred. Personal vehicle mileage is to be compensated at the IRS 
rate at the time that the work is performed. Background investigation shall not exceed 
$1600.00 for a Public Safety Dispatcher plus preapproved expenses and mileage. If the 
Background is estimated to exceed $1600.00 at the hourly rate then preapproval will be 
obtained  
This rate paragraph would apply to non-sworn personnel. 
 
2. Contractor will be compensated for services and expenses is requested within 30 days of 
project completion and the submission of invoice or in accordance with normal vendor 
payment schedules deemed appropriate by Stanislaus Regional 9-1-1. 
 
3. The parties hereto acknowledge the maximum amount to be paid by the JPA for services 
provided under the term of this Agreement shall not exceed $20,000.00, including, 
without limitation, the cost of any subcontractors, consultants, experts or investigators 
retained by the Contractor to perform or to assist in the performance of its work under this 
Agreement. 



 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
3705 Oakdale Road                                                                      Telephone: (209) 552-3900 
Modesto, CA  95357                                                      www.sr911.org                                                                  Fax: (209) 552-3950  
 

 
The professional connection between the community and public safety 

 
       Kasey Young, Interim Executive Director 

________________________________________________________________________ 
 

                                               
          
 

 
AGENDA DATE: June 26, 2024 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
SUBJECT: Authorize the Consolidated Emergency Dispatch Agency 

Commission President and Executive Director to Execute a One (1) 
Year Professional Services Agreement with Cordico Psychological 
Corporation for Psychological Screening Services in an Annual 
Amount Not to Exceed $9,000.  

______________________________________________________________________ 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Cordico Psychological Corporation provides psychological screening of candidates for 
local law enforcement and public safety agencies in Northern California, including 
Stanislaus County Probation Department.   
 
In order to continue the services needed to recruit emergency dispatcher and 
emergency call-taker applicants, it is recommended that the Commission approve the 
agreement with Cordico Psychological Corporation. 
 
See Attachment A for details of the services that will be performed during Fiscal Year 
2024/2025. 
 
The contract has been reviewed by the Agency’s attorney and is approved to form.   
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
 
The total expense for psychological screening of dispatch applicants is expected not to 
exceed $9.000.    Funding of is available and budgeted in Fiscal Year 2023/24. 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Authorize the Consolidated Emergency Dispatch Agency Commission President and 
Executive Director to execute and continue a one (1) year professional services 
agreement with Cordico Psychological Corporation for psychological screening services 
in an annual amount not to exceed $9,000. 
 
 

CEDAC (JPA) Item 5.8 

Vote Required: Yes No

http://www.sr911.org/


Page 2 of 2 

 

______________________________________________________________________ 
 
CONTACT PERSON: Kasey Young, Interim Executive Director 
    Stanislaus Regional 9-1-1, (209) 552-3903 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
ATTACHMENTS:   A-1:   Agreement for Professional Services, Cordico  

Psychological Corporation (11 Pages) 
    

 
  



Prof. Serv. Agmt. (Rev. 2.24.22 gmz) 
Page 1 of 11 pages 

AGREEMENT 
FOR 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
 

This Agreement for Professional Services is made and entered into by and between the 
Consolidated Emergency Dispatch Agency ("JPA") and Cordico Psychological Corporation ("Consultant"), 
on July 1, 2024 (the "Agreement"). 
 

Introduction 
 

WHEREAS, the JPA has a need for services involving professional psychological evaluation 
services; 
 

WHEREAS, the Consultant is specially trained, experienced and competent to perform and has 
agreed to provide such services; and 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises, covenants, terms and conditions 
hereinafter contained, the parties hereby agree as follows: 
 

Terms and Conditions 
 
1. Scope of Work 
 

1.1 The Consultant shall furnish to the JPA upon execution of this Agreement or receipt of the 
JPA's written authorization to proceed, those services and work set forth in Exhibit A, (“Services”) which 
is attached hereto and, by this reference, made a part hereof. 
 

1.2 Any interest, including copyright interests, of Consultant or its contractors or 
subconsultants in studies, reports, memoranda, computational sheets, drawings, plans or any other 
documents, including electronic data, prepared in connection with the Services, shall be the property of 
JPA.  To the extent permitted by law, work product produced under this Agreement shall be deemed 
works for hire and all copyrights in such works shall be the property of the County.  In the event that it is 
ever determined that any works created by Consultant or its subconsultants under this Agreement are not 
works for hire, Consultant hereby assigns to JPA all copyrights to such works.  With the JPA's prior written 
approval, Consultant may retain and use copies of such works for reference and as documentation of 
experience and capabilities. Should the JPA desire to reuse the documents specified above and not use 
the services of the Consultant, then the JPA agrees to require the new consultant to assume any and all 
obligations for the reuse of the documents, and the JPA releases Consultant and its subconsultants from 
all liability associated with the reuse of such documents. 
 

1.3 Services and work provided by the Consultant under this Agreement will be performed in a 
timely manner in accordance with a schedule of work set forth in Exhibit A.  If there is no schedule, the 
hours and times for completion of said services and work are to be set by the Consultant; provided, 
however, that such schedule is subject to review by and concurrence of the JPA. 
 

1.4 The Consultant shall provide services and work under this Agreement consistent with the 
requirements and standards established by applicable federal, state and County laws, ordinances, 
regulations and resolutions.  The Consultant represents and warrants that it will perform its work in 
accordance with generally accepted industry standards and practices for the profession or professions 
that are used in performance of this Agreement and that are in effect at the time of performance of this 
Agreement.  Except for that representation and any representations made or contained in any proposal 
submitted by the Consultant and any reports or opinions prepared or issued as part of the work performed 
by the Consultant under this Agreement, Consultant makes no other warranties, either express or implied, 



Prof. Serv. Agmt. (Rev. 2.24.22 gmz) 
Page 2 of 11 pages 

as part of this Agreement. 
 
 

1.5 If the Consultant deems it appropriate to employ a consultant, expert or investigator in 
connection with the performance of the services under this Agreement, the Consultant will so advise the 
JPA and seek the County’s prior approval of such employment.  Any consultant, expert or investigator 
employed by the Consultant will be the agent of the Consultant not the JPA. 
 
2. Consideration 

 
2.1 The Consultant shall be compensated on either a time and materials basis or a lump sum 

basis, as provided in Exhibit A attached hereto. 
 

2.2 Except as expressly provided in this Agreement, Consultant shall not be entitled to nor 
receive from the JPA any additional consideration, compensation, salary, wages or other type of 
remuneration for services rendered under this Agreement, including, but not limited to, meals, lodging, 
transportation, drawings, renderings or mockups.  Specifically, Consultant shall not be entitled by virtue of 
this Agreement to consideration in the form of overtime, health insurance benefits, retirement benefits, 
disability retirement benefits, sick leave, vacation time, paid holidays or other paid leaves of absence of 
any type or kind whatsoever. 
 

2.3 The Consultant shall provide the JPA with a monthly or a quarterly statement, as services 
warrant, of fees earned and costs incurred for services provided during the billing period, which the JPA 
shall pay in full within 30 days of the date each invoice is approved by the JPA.  The statement will 
generally describe the services performed, the applicable rate or rates, the basis for the calculation of 
fees, and a reasonable itemization of costs. All invoices for services provided shall be forwarded in the 
same manner and to the same person and address that is provided for service of notices herein.  
 

2.4 The JPA will not withhold any Federal or State income taxes or Social Security tax from 
any payments made by the JPA to the Consultant under the terms and conditions of this Agreement.  
Payment of all taxes and other assessments on such sums is the sole responsibility of Consultant.  The 
JPA has no responsibility or liability for payment of Consultant's taxes or assessments. 
 
3. Term 
 

3.1 The term of this Agreement shall be from the date of this Agreement until completion of the 
agreed upon services unless sooner terminated as provided below or unless some other method or time 
of expiration is listed in Exhibit A. 
 

3.2 Should either party default in the performance of this Agreement or materially breach any 
of its provisions, the other party, at that party's option, may terminate this Agreement by giving written 
notification to the other party. 
 

3.3 The JPA may terminate this agreement upon 30 days prior written notice.  Termination of 
this Agreement shall not affect the JPA’s obligation to pay for all fees earned and reasonable costs 
necessarily incurred by the Consultant as provided in Paragraph 2 herein, subject to any applicable 
setoffs. 
 

3.4 This Agreement shall terminate automatically on the occurrence of (a) bankruptcy or 
insolvency of either party, or (b) sale of Consultant's business. 
 
4. Required Licenses, Certificates and Permits and Compliance with Laws 
 



Prof. Serv. Agmt. (Rev. 2.24.22 gmz) 
Page 3 of 11 pages 

Any licenses, certificates or permits required by the federal, state, county or municipal 
governments for Consultant to provide the services and work described in Exhibit A must be procured by 
Consultant and be valid at the time Consultant enters into this Agreement.  Further, during the term of this 
Agreement, Consultant must maintain such licenses, certificates and permits in full force and effect.  
Licenses, certificates and permits may include but are not limited to driver's licenses, professional 
licenses or certificates and business licenses.  Such licenses, certificates and permits will be procured 
and maintained in force by Consultant at no expense to the JPA.   

 
Consultant shall comply will all applicable local state and Federal Laws rules and regulations. 

  
5. Office Space, Supplies, Equipment, Etc. 
 

Unless otherwise provided in this Agreement, Consultant shall provide such office space, supplies, 
equipment, vehicles, reference materials and telephone service as is necessary for Consultant to provide 
the services under this Agreement.  The Consultant--not the JPA--has the sole responsibility for payment 
of the costs and expenses incurred by Consultant in providing and maintaining such items. 
 
6. Insurance 
  

Coverage Required: Consultant shall obtain, and maintain at all times during the term of this 
Agreement, insurance coverage in the amounts and coverage specified in the attached “Exhibit B.” 

 
7. Defense and Indemnification 
 

7.1 To the fullest extent permitted by law, Consultant shall indemnify, hold harmless and 
defend the JPA and its agents, officers and employees from and against all claims, damages, losses, 
judgments, liabilities, expenses and other costs, including litigation costs and attorneys’ fees, arising out 
of, resulting from, or in connection with the performance of this Agreement by the Consultant or 
Consultant's officers, employees, agents, representatives or subcontractors including those resulting in or 
attributable to personal injury, death, or damage or destruction to tangible or intangible property, including 
the loss of use.   
 

7.2 Consultant's obligation to defend, indemnify and hold the JPA and its agents, officers and 
employees harmless under the provisions of this paragraph is not limited to or restricted by any 
requirement in this Agreement for Consultant to procure and maintain a policy of insurance. 
 

7.3 To the fullest extent permitted by law, the JPA shall indemnify, hold harmless and defend 
the Consultant and its officers, employees, agents, representatives or subcontractors from and against all 
claims, damages, losses, judgments, liabilities, expenses and other costs, including litigation costs and 
attorney's fees, arising out of or resulting from the negligence or wrongful acts of the JPA and its officers 
or employees. 
 

7.4 Subject to the limitations in 42 United States Code section 9607 (e), and unless otherwise 
provided in a Scope of Services approved by the parties: 
 

(a) Consultant shall not be responsible for liability caused by the presence or release of 
hazardous substances or contaminants at the site, unless the release results from the negligence of 
Consultant or its subcontractors; 
 

(b) No provision of this Agreement shall be interpreted to permit or obligate Consultant 
to assume the status of “generator,” “owner,” “operator,” “arranger,” or “transporter” under state or federal 
law; and 
 



Prof. Serv. Agmt. (Rev. 2.24.22 gmz) 
Page 4 of 11 pages 

(c) At no time, shall title to hazardous substances, solid wastes, petroleum 
contaminated soils or other regulated substances pass to Consultant. 

 
8. Status of Consultant 
 

8.1 All acts of Consultant and its officers, employees, agents, representatives, subcontractors 
and all others acting on behalf of Consultant relating to the performance of this Agreement, shall be 
performed as independent contractors and not as agents, officers or employees of the JPA.  Consultant, 
by virtue of this Agreement, has no authority to bind or incur any obligation on behalf of the JPA.  Except 
as expressly provided in Exhibit A, Consultant has no authority or responsibility to exercise any rights or 
power vested in the JPA.  No agent, officer or employee of the JPA is to be considered an employee of 
Consultant.  It is understood by both Consultant and the JPA that this Agreement shall not be construed 
or considered under any circumstances to create an employer-employee relationship or a joint venture.   
 

8.2 At all times during the term of this Agreement, the Consultant and its officers, employees, 
agents, representatives or subcontractors are, and shall represent and conduct themselves as, 
independent contractors and not employees of the JPA. 
 

8.3 Consultant shall determine the method, details and means of performing the work and 
services to be provided by Consultant under this Agreement.  Consultant shall be responsible to the JPA 
only for the requirements and results specified in this Agreement and, except as expressly provided in this 
Agreement, shall not be subjected to the JPA's control with respect to the physical action or activities of 
Consultant in fulfillment of this Agreement.  Consultant has control over the manner and means of 
performing the services under this Agreement.  If necessary, Consultant has the responsibility for 
employing other persons or firms to assist Consultant in fulfilling the terms and obligations under this 
Agreement. 
 

8.4 Consultant is permitted to provide services to others during the same period service is 
provided to the JPA under this Agreement; provided, however, such services do not conflict directly or 
indirectly with the performance of the Consultant’s obligations under this Agreement. 
 

8.5 If in the performance of this Agreement any third persons are employed by Consultant, 
such persons shall be entirely and exclusively under the direction, supervision and control of Consultant.  
All terms of employment including hours, wages, working conditions, discipline, hiring and discharging or 
any other term of employment or requirements of law shall be determined by the Consultant. 

 
8.6 It is understood and agreed that as an independent contractor and not an employee of the 

JPA, the Consultant and the Consultant's officers, employees, agents, representatives or subcontractors 
do not have any entitlement as a JPA employee, and, except as expressly provided for in any Scope of 
Services made a part hereof, do not have the right to act on behalf of the JPA in any capacity whatsoever 
as an agent, or to bind the JPA to any obligation whatsoever. 
 

8.7 It is further understood and agreed that Consultant must issue W-2 forms or other forms as 
required by law for income and employment tax purposes for all of Consultant's assigned personnel under 
the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 
 

8.8 As an independent contractor, Consultant hereby indemnifies and holds the JPA harmless 
from any and all claims that may be made against the JPA based upon any contention by any third party 
that an employer-employee relationship exists by reason of this Agreement. 
 



Prof. Serv. Agmt. (Rev. 2.24.22 gmz) 
Page 5 of 11 pages 

9. Records and Audit 
 

9.1 Consultant shall prepare and maintain all writings, documents and records prepared or 
compiled in connection with the performance of this Agreement for a minimum of four (4) years from the 
termination or completion of this Agreement.  This includes any handwriting, typewriting, printing, 
photostatic, photographing and every other means of recording upon any tangible thing, any form of 
communication or representation including letters, words, pictures, sounds or symbols or any combination 
thereof. 
 

9.2 Any authorized representative of the JPA shall have access to any writings as defined 
above for the purposes of making audit, evaluation, examination, excerpts and transcripts during the 
period such records are to be maintained by Consultant.  Further, the JPA has the right at all reasonable 
times to audit, inspect or otherwise evaluate the work performed or being performed under this 
Agreement. 
 
10. Confidentiality 
 

The Consultant shall keep confidential all information obtained or learned during the course of 
furnishing services under this Agreement and to not disclose or reveal such information for any purpose 
not directly connected with the matter for which services are provided. 
 
11. Nondiscrimination 
 

11.1     During the performance of this Agreement, Consultant and its officers, employees, agents, 
representatives or subcontractors shall not unlawfully discriminate in violation of any Federal, State or 
local law, rule or regulation against any employee, applicant for employment or person receiving services 
under this Agreement because of race, religious creed, color, national origin, ancestry, physical or mental 
disability including perception of disability, medical condition, genetic information, pregnancy related 
condition, marital status, gender/sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, gender expression, age (over 
40), political affiliation or belief, or military and veteran status.  Consultant and its officers, employees, 
agents, representatives or subcontractors shall comply with all applicable Federal, State and local laws 
and regulations related to non-discrimination and equal opportunity, including without limitation the JPA’s 
non-discrimination policy; the Fair Employment and Housing Act (Government Code sections 12900 et 
seq.); California Labor Code sections 1101 and 1102; the Federal Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.L. 88-352), 
as amended; and all applicable regulations promulgated in the California Code of Regulations or the Code 
of Federal Regulations. 

 
11.2 Consultant shall include the non-discrimination and compliance provisions of this clause in 

all subcontracts to perform work under this Agreement. 
 
11.3 Consultant shall provide a system by which recipients of service shall have the opportunity 

to express and have considered their views, grievances, and complaints regarding Consultant's delivery 
of services. 
 
12. Assignment 
 

This is an agreement for the services of Consultant.  The JPA has relied upon the skills, 
knowledge, experience and training of Consultant and the Consultant's firm, associates and employees as 
an inducement to enter into this Agreement.  Consultant shall not assign or subcontract this Agreement 
without the express written consent of the JPA.  Further, Consultant shall not assign any monies due or to 
become due under this Agreement without the prior written consent of the JPA. 
 



Prof. Serv. Agmt. (Rev. 2.24.22 gmz) 
Page 6 of 11 pages 

13. Waiver of Default 
 

Waiver of any default by either party to this Agreement shall not be deemed to be waiver of any 
subsequent default.  Waiver or breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not be deemed to be a 
waiver of any other or subsequent breach, and shall not be construed to be a modification of the terms of 
this Agreement unless this Agreement is modified as provided below. 
 
14. Notice 
 

Any notice, communication, amendment, addition or deletion to this Agreement, including change 
of address of either party during the term of this Agreement, which Consultant or the JPA shall be 
required or may desire to make shall be in writing and shall be personally served or, alternatively, sent by 
prepaid first-class mail to the respective parties as follows: 
 
To JPA: To Consultant: 
Kasey Young, Interim Director 
Stanislaus Regional 9-1-1 

Cordico Psychological Corporation 

3705 Oakdale Road 2377 Gold Meadow Way, Suite 100 
Modesto, CA 95357 Gold River, California 95670 
 
15. Conflicts 

 
Consultant agrees that it has no interest and shall not acquire any interest direct or indirect which 

would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of the work and services under this 
Agreement. 
 
16. Severability 
 

If any portion of this Agreement or application thereof to any person or circumstance shall be 
declared invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction or if it is found in contravention of any federal, state or 
county statute, ordinance or regulation the remaining provisions of this Agreement or the application 
thereof shall not be invalidated thereby and shall remain in full force and effect to the extent that the 
provisions of this Agreement are severable. 
 
17. Amendment 

 
This Agreement may only be modified, amended, changed, added to or subtracted from by the 

mutual consent of the parties hereto if such amendment or change is in written form and executed with 
the same formalities as this Agreement and attached to the original Agreement to maintain continuity. 
 
18. Entire Agreement 
 

This Agreement supersedes any and all other agreements, either oral or in writing, between any of 
the parties herein with respect to the subject matter hereof and contains all the agreements between the 
parties with respect to such matter.  Each party acknowledges that no representations, inducements, 
promises or agreements, oral or otherwise, have been made by any party, or anyone acting on behalf of 
any party, which are not embodied herein, and that no other agreement, statement or promise not 
contained in this Agreement shall be valid or binding. 
 
19. Advice of Attorney 
 

Each party warrants and represents that in executing this Agreement, it has received independent 
legal advice from its attorneys or the opportunity to seek such advice. 



Prof. Serv. Agmt. (Rev. 2.24.22 gmz) 
Page 7 of 11 pages 

 
20. Construction 
 

Headings or captions to the provisions of this Agreement are solely for the convenience of the 
parties, are not part of this Agreement, and shall not be used to interpret or determine the validity of this 
Agreement.  Any ambiguity in this Agreement shall not be construed against the drafter, but rather the 
terms and provisions hereof shall be given a reasonable interpretation as if both parties had in fact drafted 
this Agreement. 
 
21. Governing Law and Venue 
 

This Agreement shall be deemed to be made under, and shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with, the laws of the State of California.  Any action brought to enforce the terms or provisions 
of this Agreement shall have venue in the County of Stanislaus, State of California. 
 
22.        Electronic Signatures 
 
             Each party agrees that the electronic signatures (whether digital or encrypted) of the parties 
included in this Agreement are intended to authenticate this writing and to have the same force and effect 
as manual signatures. Electronic signature means any electronic sound, symbol, or process attached to or 
logically associated with a record and executed and adopted by a party with the intent to sign such record 
(including facsimile or email electronic signatures) pursuant to the California Uniform Electronic 
Transactions Act (Cal. Civ. Code § 1633.1 et seq.) as amended from time to time. 

 
23.  Certification Regarding Economic Sanctions Pursuant to California State Executive Order N-6-22 
 

23.1 Contractor shall review their investments and contracts to ensure their compliance with 
economic sanctions imposed by the U.S. government in response to Russia's actions in Ukraine, as well 
as any sanctions imposed under state law (collectively, economic sanctions), and to take actions to 
support the Ukrainian government and people, including by refraining from new investments in, and 
financial transactions with, Russian institutions or companies that are headquartered or have their 
principal place of business in Russia (Russian entities), not transferring technology to Russia or Russian 
entities, and by directly providing support to the government and people of Ukraine. 

 
23.2 County shall terminate any contract with any individual or entity that is in violation of 

Executive Order N-6-22 or that is subject to economic sanctions therein, and shall not enter a contract 
with any such individual or entity while the Order is in effect.  
 
 23.3  For contracts valued at $5 million or more, Contractor shall provide a written report to the 
County regarding compliance with economic sanctions and steps taken in response to Russia’s action in 
Ukraine, including but not limited to, desisting from making new investments in, or engaging in financial 
transactions with Russia or Russian entities, and directly providing support to Ukraine, while the Order is 
in effect. 
 

[ signatures appear on following page] 
 



Prof. Serv. Agmt. (Rev. 2.24.22 gmz) 
Page 8 of 11 pages 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties or their duly authorized representatives have executed this 

Agreement on the day and year first hereinabove written. 
 

CONSOLIDATED EMERGENCY DISPATCH 
AGENCY COMMISSION 
 
 
By:______________________________________ 
     President, Consolidated Emergency Dispatch 
     Agency Commission 
 
 "JPA" 
 

CORDICO PSYCHOLOGICAL CORPORATION 
 
 
 
By:_____________________________________ 

  
 

 
 "Consultant” 

APPROVED AS TO CONTENT: 
 
 
 
By:______________________________________ 

Kasey Young 
SR911 Interim Executive Director 

 

 

  
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
Thomas E. Boze, County Counsel 
 
 
By:______________________________________ 

Lori Sicard 
Deputy County Counsel 

 

 
 



 
Prof. Serv. Agmt. (Rev. 7.22.16 AMD) Exhibit A – Page 9 

EXHIBIT A 
 
A. SCOPE OF WORK 

 
1. Pre-employment Psychological Evaluation. 

The Consultant shall provide pre-employment psychological evaluations of applicants for the 
positions of Lateral Emergency Dispatcher, Emergency Dispatcher Trainee, Emergency 
Call-Taker and part-time/extra help.  The evaluation for all applicants will meet any 
requirements developed by the California Commission of Peace Officer Standards and 
Training (POST) as well as the standards of Government Code Section 1031(f).  This 
service shall include: 

 
a. A formal evaluation to screen out job-relevant psychopathology and assess normal 

personality traits consistent with the (14) psychological screening dimensions offered by 
the California Commission on Peace Officer Standards and Training Public Safety 
Dispatcher Psychological Assessment Resource Document from 1997. 

b. Preparation of a written report to Stanislaus Regional 9-1-1 which includes interview 
data, relevant background information, methods utilized, psychological test results and 
interpretations, and a specific recommendation regarding the applicant’s suitability for 
the position applied for. 

 
B. COMPENSATION 
 

The Consultant shall be compensated for the services provided under this Agreement as 
follows: 
 

1. Consultant will be compensated on a time and materials basis, not to exceed the 
limit of in Paragraph 2 below, based on the hours worked by the Consultant's employees or 
subcontractors at the hourly rates specified in the consultant's Proposal.  The specified hourly rates 
shall include direct salary costs, employee benefits, and overhead.  These rates are not adjustable 
for the performance period set forth in this Agreement.  In addition to the aforementioned fees, 
Consultant will be reimbursed for the following items, plus any expenses agreed by the parties as 
set forth in the Consultant's Proposal attached hereto, that are reasonable, necessary and actually 
incurred by the Consultant in connection with the services.  Travel expenses shall be in accordance 
with the County’s Travel policy, herein incorporated by reference.  No markup shall be paid on 
reimbursed items. 
 

(a) Any filing fees, permit fees, or other fees paid or advanced by the Consultant. 
 

(b) Expenses, fees or charges for printing, reproduction or binding of documents at 
actual costs. 
 

2. The parties hereto acknowledge the maximum amount to be paid by the County for 
services provided shall not exceed $9,000.00, including, without limitation, the cost of any 
subcontractors, consultants, experts or investigators retained by the Consultant to perform or to 
assist in the performance of its work under this Agreement. 
 
C. TERM 
 

Paragraph 3.1 of the body of this Agreement is amended to read as follows: 
 



 
Prof. Serv. Agmt. (Rev. 7.22.16 AMD) Exhibit A – Page 10 

3.1 The term of this Agreement shall be from July 1, 2024 through June 30, 2025 
unless otherwise terminated as provided below. 

 
D. INVOICE TO: 
 

Invoices shall be submitted to:   
 

  Stanislaus Regional 9-1-1 
                  Attn:  Kasey Young 
                  3705 Oakdale Road 

                        Modesto, CA  95357 
 

  



 
Prof. Serv. Agmt. (Rev. 7.22.16 AMD) Exhibit A – Page 11 

EXHIBIT C 
 

FEE SCHEDULE 
 

 
The Consultant shall be compensated for services under this Agreement as follows: 
 
1. JPA shall pay Consultant $500.00 for each Pre-employment Psychological Evaluation (PPE) 

described in Paragraph 1 of Section A above.  PPE’s that are not cancelled within two (2) 
business days of the scheduled appointment and “no-shows” for appointments will be billed 
at the regular rate.  Consultant shall submit billing statement along with the written report of 
each evaluation. 

 
  

 
 



 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
3705 Oakdale Road                                                                      Telephone: (209) 552-3900 
Modesto, CA  95357                                                      www.sr911.org                                                                   Fax: (209) 552-3950  
 

 
The professional connection between the community and public safety. 

 
       Kasey Young, Interim Executive Director 

________________________________________________________________________ 
 

                                               
          
 
 
AGENDA DATE: June 26, 2024 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
SUBJECT: Consider the Approval of the Computer Aided Dispatch (CAD) 

System Procurement Options and Authorize Staff to Pursue 
Procurement Through the Approved Options  

______________________________________________________________________ 
 
DISCUSSION: 
  
Background 
In October 2022, Stanislaus Regional 9-1-1 (SR911) received a letter from Central 
Square Technologies that the Dispatch Now CAD system was scheduled to be retired on 
November 1, 2023. Beginning November 1, 2022, Central Square would only support 
critical system functionality. After November 1, 2023, no support would be provided for 
the Dispatch Now CAD product. SR911 and other U.S.-based users of Dispatch Now 
expressed concern over the timing of this notice, and thus, Central Square rescinded the 
letter and stated they would continue to provide support for an extended time.  
  
Current Situation 
The current Dispatch Now product is two major software versions behind, and there is no 
option to update it. The technology is antiquated, and the potential for system failure 
exists. SR911 is severely limited in its ability to support the functionality that other CAD 
systems have today. These services include live streaming video, picture, and file 
sharing, advanced geographical information (GIS) data sharing, cloud-based data 
sharing, connection to new third-party applications, and advanced database query. 
Options for future growth are limited and, in some cases, impossible. The level of service 
to the community and first responders is negatively impacted due to these limitations. For 
these reasons, SR911 needed to expedite the timeline for a replacement CAD product to 
support a large multi-discipline, multi-agency dispatch center and all the JPA partners. 
On November 3, 2023, Kasey Young, Interim Director of SR911, sent the following update 
on the Dispatch Now CAD system, reinforcing the need to select a new CAD system 
immediately. 
 

1. SR911 is unable to add more CAD terminals. 
2. SR911 is unable to add more mobile terminals. 
3. Reports are not working correctly due to an update needed for an agency change 

request. 
4. Most modern applications are unable to be connected due to the old architecture 

of the current system. 

CEDAC (JPA) Item 5.9 

Vote Required: Yes No

http://www.sr911.org/


 

Page 2 of 5 
 

5. The CAD system is currently running on unsupported hardware.  
6. The CAD system is running on an unsupported Windows Operating System. 
7. The CAD system is not currently replicated off-site. 
8. Dispatch CAD workstations are locking up and require rebooting twice a day. The 

PD01 workstation station has been replaced to minimize lockups. 
9. SR911 is unable to use Google Maps with the current CAD system. 
10. Units are locking up periodically, requiring the dispatcher to employ workarounds 

while attempting to free locked units. 
 
SR911 began evaluating CAD systems in collaboration with user agencies to identify a 
system that would meet the dispatch centers’ and partners' needs. Several vendors were 
considered, including Mark 43, Motorola Solutions, Sunridge Systems (RIMS), EMERES, 
Oracle America Inc., and Central Square Technologies.  
 
Central Square Technologies 
Central Square Technologies Enterprise CAD stands out above the competitors with a 
complete public safety and justice suite offering solutions from CAD to RMS, JMS, and 
public administration. The Enterprise CAD system is currently used in the U.S.; no 
development would be required. All features of the CAD system are tested before 
deployment, and each agency can choose which features they want to turn on and use. 
Any new features or upgrades that are developed are included in the contract for the 
CAD. Central Square gives a timeline of 12-15 months for implementation, but the 
timeline can be shortened if more staff time is dedicated. The Central Square CAD system 
provides advanced features that can support next-generation technology that our current 
system does not support today. It can support large, multi-discipline, multi-agency 
dispatch centers. There are agencies within Stanislaus County and in adjacent counties 
that are using Central Square today. The City of Turlock and Valley Regional Emergency 
Communications Center (AMR) use Central Square. San Joaquin County Sheriff's Office, 
Stockton PD, and Stockton Fire are all Central Square customers. The Central Square 
CAD system would allow for state-of-the-art CAD-to-CAD interfaces and streamline 
county and adjacent agencies' interoperability. Interfaces would immediately exist, and 
this platform would have an expedited implementation schedule. 
 
As a result of this comprehensive evaluation, it became apparent Central Square 
Technologies would be the best fit for interoperability, implementation, and configuration. 
Therefore, the Central Square product is recommended as the replacement CAD System. 
Central Square offers the technology SR911, and partners require and continuously 
develops its products to stay up-to-date with current standards and ahead of emerging 
technologies. The future success of SR911 and its partners hinges on advanced 
technology and interoperability. 
 
At the Commission meeting on April 24th, 2024, the Commission voted to approve the 
Central Square CAD system to replace the current CAD system and directed staff to 
return with procurement options. 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Page 3 of 5 
 

Purchasing 
City of Modesto staff has identified a cooperative purchasing agreement to procure the 
Central Square Technologies CAD system. The City Attorney and County  
Counsel agrees there are options available to SR911 to obtain the CAD system through 
the identified cooperative purchasing agreement. Staff have identified the following 
options to procure the system. 
 

SR911 Purchase 

Considerations 

1. SR911 tech staff will have a direct connection to Central Square should the need arise to 
escalate support needs.  This is ideal when the CAD system is not operational or degraded, as 
it will help minimize operational time lost due to communication complexities. 

2. The County may be able to provide project management resources at a more cost-effective 
rate than a contract project manager. 

3. The city is unclear on how it can support the procurement of a CAD system with its grant 
funding. City staff is currently researching the viability of applying for a joint purchase of a 
CAD System, or procuring a system for another organization that is not specific to the City 

4. The contract must be assigned should the JPA be dissolved. Per Counsel and City Attorney, 
this is a minor concern. 

City of Modesto Purchase 

Considerations 

1. A clear path exists for the City to use earmarked grant funds to purchase the CAD system. 
2. The City’s CAD ownership will be protected in the event of an SR911 dissolution. An 

agreement would need to protect the County’s CAD use should dissolution occur. 
3. The City may be able to provide project management resources at a more cost-effective rate 

than a contract project manager. 
4. In the support agreement, SR911 staff can be identified as first line support staff with direct 

contact to the vendor. A partnered escalation approach can be established.  
5. SR911 will incur additional annual overhead costs as the City will administer the agreement 

with Central Square. 

 
Funding Options 

1. Leverage the City of Modesto grant funding to procure the CAD system OR 
2. Use partner contributions. 
 

Method of Procurement 
1a. If option 1 is available, then procure through SR911 (preferred) or the City of 
Modesto. 
2a. If option 2, staff will return to the commission with a budget adjustment and cost 
allocation to partners. 
 

Staff recommends SR911 purchase the new CAD system. Staff is currently working with 
the City of Modesto to confirm the requirements of the grant funding that could be used 
to offset costs to partner agencies. If staff confirms the City of Modesto needs to be the 
agency that purchases the CAD system, then staff will work with the City to procure the 
CAD system. 
 
 
 

 



 

Page 4 of 5 
 

______________________________________________________________________ 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
 
The fiscal impact of the new CAD system can be broken into two categories. The first 
category is the core CAD system, which SR911 will need to operate, and represents the 
cost allocated to partner agencies based on the cost distribution model. The second 
component is the agency licenses that must be procured for each agency, which will be 
charged directly to each agency based on the licenses needed. 
  
The core CAD system is expected to have a total five-year cost of $3,280,796. One-time 
implementation costs are expected to total $1,744,396, of which $1,213,536 is expected 
to be one-time Central Square costs to implement the system and $530,860 for staff 
support, project management, and contingency costs. The balance of the cost is the 
licensing cost totaling $307,280 per year. The total estimated cost of the new CAD system 
is reflected in the table below. 
 

 
 
The current system provides unlimited licenses for agency mobile data computers (MDC) 
at no additional cost.  With the new CAD system, a license will need to be purchased for 
each MDC. Agency licensing costs have been estimated based on current MDC counts 
pulled from the current CAD system and are estimated to be approximately $429,100 
annually, for an estimated five-year total of $2,145,500. As the current CAD system 
counts reflect total available licenses, not total active licenses, staff will work with partner 
agencies to refine these counts and identify actual needs. As each agency will be 
responsible for the costs associated with the licenses needed by the agency, each agency 
will be able to manage this expense to their preferred service level. 
 
The current CAD system’s total ongoing cost is $287,744 annually. The new Core CAD 
ongoing cost is $307,280 annually, plus the cost of individual agency licenses currently 
estimated at $429,100, for a total of $736,380. This is a difference of $448,636. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  

1. Direct staff to pursue the procurement of the Central Square CAD system and 
return with the necessary agreements to effectuate the procurement. 

2. Direct staff to work with the City of Modesto to confirm the availability of grant funds 
in support of the procurement. 

Activity Cost
Core CAD One-Time Central Square Cost 1,213,536       
Core CAD One-Time Other Implementation Cost 530,860          

Total One-Time Implementation Costs 1,744,396       
Core CAD Ongoing Cost 307,280          

Total Year 1 Cost (One-time plus Ongoing) 2,051,676       
Total Year 2 Cost 307,280          
Total Year 3 Cost 307,280          
Total Year 4 Cost 307,280          
Total Year 5 Cost 307,280          

Total 5 Year Cost 3,280,796       



Page 5 of 5 

______________________________________________________________________ 

CONTACT PERSON: Kasey Young, Interim Executive Director 
Stanislaus Regional 9-1-1, (209) 552-3903 

______________________________________________________________________ 

ATTACHMENTS: A-1 5 Year CAD Cost Summary (1 page) 
A-2 Total CAD Cost Detail (1 page) 
A-3 Core CAD Cost Details (1 page) 
A-4 Agency Annual Licensing Costs (1 page) 
A-5 CEDAC CAD Item April 2024 (4 pages) 



SR
 9

11
 - 

C
en

tra
l S

qu
ar

e 
C

AD
 Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

C
os

ts
Pr

in
te

d:
 6

/2
1/

20
24

C
or

e 
C

AD
 C

os
ts

O
th

er
 P

ot
en

tia
l C

os
ts

Ac
tiv

ity
C

os
t

Ac
tiv

ity
C

os
t

C
or

e 
C

AD
 O

ne
-T

im
e 

C
en

tra
l S

qu
ar

e 
C

os
t

1,
21

3,
53

6
   

   
Sh

er
iff

 H
an

dh
el

d 
W

/O
 M

ap
pi

ng
 R

eq
ue

st
 o

f 3
50

70
,0

00
   

 
C

or
e 

C
AD

 O
ne

-T
im

e 
O

th
er

 Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
C

os
t

53
0,

86
0

   
   

   
Pr

ob
at

io
n 

H
an

dh
el

d 
W

/O
 M

ap
pi

ng
 R

eq
ue

st
 o

f 8
8

17
,6

00
   

 
To

ta
l O

ne
-T

im
e 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
C

os
ts

1,
74

4,
39

6
   

   
Sh

er
iff

 IC
JI

S 
U

pg
ra

de
 to

 c
on

ne
ct

 to
 n

ew
 C

AD
24

,5
00

   
 

C
or

e 
C

AD
 O

ng
oi

ng
 C

os
t

30
7,

28
0

   
   

   
Sh

er
iff

 R
M

S 
In

te
rfa

ce
4,

10
0

   
   

To
ta

l Y
ea

r 1
 C

os
t (

O
ne

-ti
m

e 
pl

us
 O

ng
oi

ng
)

2,
05

1,
67

6
   

   
Sh

er
iff

 A
xo

n 
Ev

id
en

ce
 In

te
gr

at
io

n
4,

10
0

   
   

To
ta

l Y
ea

r 2
 C

os
t

30
7,

28
0

   
   

   
To

ta
l 5

 Y
ea

r C
os

t
12

0,
30

0
  

To
ta

l Y
ea

r 3
 C

os
t

30
7,

28
0

   
   

   
To

ta
l Y

ea
r 4

 C
os

t
30

7,
28

0
   

   
   

To
ta

l Y
ea

r 5
 C

os
t

30
7,

28
0

   
   

   
To

ta
l 5

 Y
ea

r C
os

t
3,

28
0,

79
6

   
   

Ag
en

cy
 A

nn
ua

l L
ic

en
se

 C
os

ts
1

Ye
ar

C
os

t
Ye

ar
 1

42
9,

10
0

   
   

   
Ye

ar
 2

42
9,

10
0

   
   

   
Ye

ar
 3

42
9,

10
0

   
   

   
Ye

ar
 4

42
9,

10
0

   
   

   
Ye

ar
 5

42
9,

10
0

   
   

   
To

ta
l 5

 Y
ea

r C
os

t
2,

14
5,

50
0

   
   

Fo
ot

no
te

s:
1  T

he
se

 c
os

ts
 a

re
 e

st
im

at
es

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
cu

rre
nt

 c
ou

nt
s 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
C

AD
 s

ys
te

m
. T

he
 c

ur
re

nt
 C

AD
 s

ys
te

m
 c

ou
nt

s 
re

fle
ct

 to
ta

l a
va

ila
bl

e 
lic

en
ce

s,
 n

ot
 li

ce
ns

es
 in

 u
se

.
Ag

en
ci

es
 w

ill 
lik

el
y 

ad
ju

st
 th

e 
nu

m
be

r o
f l

ic
en

se
s 

ba
se

d 
on

 th
ei

r n
ee

ds
, p

ot
en

tia
lly

 tr
an

si
tio

ni
ng

 to
 c

os
t-e

ffe
ct

iv
e 

lic
en

se
s.

Ite
m

 5
.9

a 
- A

tta
ch

m
en

t C
en

tra
l S

qu
ar

e 
C

AD
 Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

C
os

ts
 [5

-Y
ea

r C
AD

 C
os

t S
um

m
ar

y]
1 

of
 1

At
ta

ch
m

et
 A

-1



SR
 9

11
 - 

C
en

tr
al

 S
qu

ar
e 

C
AD

 Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
C

os
ts

Pr
in

te
d:

 6
/2

1/
20

24

Su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 T
ot

al
 C

en
tr

al
 S

qu
ar

e 
C

AD
 C

os
ts

 b
y 

Ag
en

cy

Ag
en

cy
2

Co
re

 C
AD

 O
ne

-
Ti

m
e 

Ce
nt

ra
l 

Sq
ua

re
 C

os
t

Co
re

 C
AD

 O
ne

-
Ti

m
e 

O
th

er
1  C

os
t

Co
re

 C
AD

 
O

ng
oi

ng
 C

os
t

Ag
en

cy
 

An
nu

al
 

Li
ce

ns
e 

Co
st

To
ta

l Y
ea

r 1
 

Co
st

To
ta

l Y
ea

r 2
 

Co
st

To
ta

l Y
ea

r 3
 

Co
st

To
ta

l Y
ea

r 4
 

Co
st

To
ta

l Y
ea

r 5
 

Co
st

To
ta

l 5
 Y

ea
r 

Co
st

M
od

es
to

 P
ol

ic
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t

43
9,

94
4

$ 
  

19
2,

45
3

$ 
  

11
1,

39
8

$ 
  

10
2,

70
0

   
   

84
6,

49
5

$ 
   

 
21

4,
09

8
$ 

   
21

4,
09

8
$ 

   
21

4,
09

8
$ 

   
21

4,
09

8
$ 

   
1,

70
2,

88
9

$ 
  

St
an

is
la

us
 C

ou
nt

y 
Sh

er
iff

 - 
U

ni
nc

or
po

ra
te

d
25

0,
31

6
 

10
9,

50
1

 
63

,3
83

 
18

9,
80

0
   

   
61

3,
00

0
   

   
 

25
3,

18
3

   
   

25
3,

18
3

   
   

25
3,

18
3

   
   

25
3,

18
3

   
   

1,
62

5,
73

0
   

   
  

C
ity

 o
f R

iv
er

ba
nk

45
,4

49
 

19
,8

82
 

11
,5

08
 

20
,0

00
   

   
  

96
,8

39
   

   
   

31
,5

08
   

   
  

31
,5

08
   

   
  

31
,5

08
   

   
  

31
,5

08
   

   
  

22
2,

87
2

 
C

ity
 o

f P
at

te
rs

on
45

,9
70

 
20

,1
10

 
11

,6
40

 
20

,5
00

   
   

  
98

,2
20

   
   

   
32

,1
40

   
   

  
32

,1
40

   
   

  
32

,1
40

   
   

  
32

,1
40

   
   

  
22

6,
78

1
 

C
ity

 o
f W

at
er

fo
rd

18
,6

63
 

8,
16

4
 

4,
72

6
 

8,
50

0
   

   
   

 
40

,0
53

   
   

   
13

,2
26

   
   

  
13

,2
26

   
   

  
13

,2
26

   
   

  
13

,2
26

   
   

  
92

,9
55

 
C

ity
 o

f H
ug

hs
on

10
,5

94
 

4,
63

4
 

2,
68

2
 

4,
50

0
   

   
   

 
22

,4
11

   
   

   
7,

18
2

   
   

   
 

7,
18

2
   

   
   

 
7,

18
2

   
   

   
 

7,
18

2
   

   
   

 
51

,1
41

 
St

an
is

la
us

 C
ou

nt
y 

Pr
ob

at
io

n 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t
40

,6
52

 
17

,7
83

 
10

,2
94

 
27

,5
00

   
   

  
96

,2
29

   
   

   
37

,7
94

   
   

  
37

,7
94

   
   

  
37

,7
94

   
   

  
37

,7
94

   
   

  
24

7,
40

3
 

D
is

tri
ct

 A
tto

rn
ey

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

M
od

es
to

 F
ire

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

19
5,

45
0

 
85

,4
99

 
49

,4
90

 
13

,3
41

   
   

  
34

3,
77

9
   

   
 

62
,8

30
   

   
  

62
,8

30
   

   
  

62
,8

30
   

   
  

62
,8

30
   

   
  

59
5,

10
1

 
C

er
es

 F
ire

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

19
,2

18
 

8,
40

7
 

4,
86

6
 

2,
52

9
   

   
   

 
35

,0
19

   
   

   
7,

39
5

   
   

   
 

7,
39

5
   

   
   

 
7,

39
5

   
   

   
 

7,
39

5
   

   
   

 
64

,6
00

 
St

an
is

la
us

 C
on

so
lid

at
ed

 F
ire

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

24
,7

73
 

10
,8

37
 

6,
27

3
 

6,
54

7
   

   
   

 
48

,4
29

   
   

   
12

,8
20

   
   

  
12

,8
20

   
   

  
12

,8
20

   
   

  
12

,8
20

   
   

  
99

,7
07

 
O

ak
da

le
 F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t
14

,9
56

 
6,

54
2

 
3,

78
7

 
2,

60
0

   
   

   
 

27
,8

85
   

   
   

6,
38

7
   

   
   

 
6,

38
7

   
   

   
 

6,
38

7
   

   
   

 
6,

38
7

   
   

   
 

53
,4

33
 

Pa
tte

rs
on

 F
ire

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t

12
,8

06
 

5,
60

2
 

3,
24

3
 

4,
40

0
   

   
   

 
26

,0
50

   
   

   
7,

64
3

   
   

   
 

7,
64

3
   

   
   

 
7,

64
3

   
   

   
 

7,
64

3
   

   
   

 
56

,6
20

 
Bu

rb
an

k 
Pa

ra
di

se
 F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
Sa

lid
a 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

O
ak

da
le

 R
ur

al
 F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
H

ug
hs

on
 F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
3,

98
1

 
1,

74
2

 
1,

00
8

 
1,

04
0

   
   

   
 

7,
77

0
 

2,
04

8
   

   
   

 
2,

04
8

   
   

   
 

2,
04

8
   

   
   

 
2,

04
8

   
   

   
 

15
,9

61
 

W
es

t S
ta

ni
sl

au
s 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

Ke
ye

s 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
N

ew
m

an
 F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t
5,

57
8

 
2,

44
0

 
1,

41
2

 
2,

40
0

   
   

   
 

11
,8

30
   

   
   

3,
81

2
   

   
   

 
3,

81
2

   
   

   
 

3,
81

2
   

   
   

 
3,

81
2

   
   

   
 

27
,0

79
 

Tu
rlo

ck
 R

ur
al

 F
ire

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

W
oo

dl
an

d 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
D

en
ai

r F
ire

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

W
es

tp
or

t F
ire

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

M
ou

nt
ai

n 
Vi

ew
 F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
Fi

re
 In

ve
st

ig
at

io
n 

U
ni

t
- 

- 
- 

80
0

 
80

0
 

80
0

 
80

0
 

80
0

 
80

0
 

4,
00

0
 

O
ES

-F
W

85
,1

87
 

37
,2

65
 

21
,5

70
 

21
,9

44
   

   
  

16
5,

96
6

   
   

 
43

,5
14

   
   

  
43

,5
14

   
   

  
43

,5
14

   
   

  
43

,5
14

   
   

  
34

0,
02

3
 

Ch
ar

ge
s 

to
 P

ar
tic

ip
at

in
g 

Ag
en

ci
es

1,
21

3,
53

6
$ 

  
53

0,
86

0
$ 

  
30

7,
28

0
$ 

  
42

9,
10

0
$ 

  
2,

48
0,

77
6

$ 
 

73
6,

38
0

$ 
  

73
6,

38
0

$ 
  

73
6,

38
0

$ 
  

73
6,

38
0

$ 
  

5,
42

6,
29

6
$ 

  
e

rr
 c

h
k

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

Fo
ot

no
te

s
1  In

cl
ud

es
 1

.7
 F

TE
 o

f I
nf

ra
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

En
gi

ne
er

 II
, p

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l s

er
vi

ce
s,

 a
nd

 c
on

tin
ge

nc
y 

co
st

s 
es

tim
at

ed
 to

 im
pl

em
en

t
2 

 F
ire

 In
ve

st
ig

at
io

n 
U

ni
t a

nd
 O

ES
-F

W
 in

cl
ud

e 
pa

id
 li

ce
ns

es
 fo

r t
he

 d
ep

ar
tm

en
t/u

ni
t b

as
ed

 o
n 

cu
rre

nt
 c

ou
nt

s.

Ite
m

 5
.9

a 
- A

tta
ch

m
en

t C
en

tra
l S

qu
ar

e 
C

AD
 Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

C
os

ts
 [1

-T
ot

al
 C

AD
 C

os
t D

et
ai

l]
1 

of
 1

At
ta

ch
m

en
t A

-2



SR
 9

11
 - 

C
en

tra
l S

qu
ar

e 
C

AD
 Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

C
os

ts
Pr

in
te

d:
 6

/2
1/

20
24

Co
re

 C
AD

 C
os

t D
is

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
(C

en
tr

al
 S

qu
ar

e 
Co

st
s)

Ag
en

cy
FY

 2
5 

Fi
na

l B
ud

ge
t

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
O

ne
-T

im
e

Ye
ar

-1
O

th
er

 C
os

ts
1

Ye
ar

 1
 T

ot
al

Ye
ar

 2
Ye

ar
 3

Ye
ar

 4
Ye

ar
 5

To
ta

l C
os

t
M

od
es

to
 P

ol
ic

e 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t
3,

48
0,

52
8

$ 
 

  
36

.3
%

43
9,

94
4

$ 
   

 
11

1,
39

8
$ 

   
19

2,
45

3
$ 

   
 

74
3,

79
5

$ 
   

 
11

1,
39

8
$ 

   
11

1,
39

8
$ 

   
11

1,
39

8
$ 

   
11

1,
39

8
$ 

   
1,

18
9,

38
9

$ 
   

 
St

an
is

la
us

 C
ou

nt
y 

Sh
er

iff
 - 

U
ni

nc
or

po
ra

te
d

1,
98

0,
32

7
 

20
.6

%
25

0,
31

6
   

   
63

,3
83

   
   

  
10

9,
50

1
   

   
 

42
3,

20
0

$ 
   

 
63

,3
83

   
   

  
63

,3
83

   
   

  
63

,3
83

   
   

  
63

,3
83

   
   

  
67

6,
73

0
$ 

 
  

C
ity

 o
f R

iv
er

ba
nk

35
9,

56
1

 
3.

7%
45

,4
49

   
   

  
11

,5
08

   
   

  
19

,8
82

   
   

   
76

,8
39

$ 
 

  
11

,5
08

   
   

  
11

,5
08

   
   

  
11

,5
08

   
   

  
11

,5
08

   
   

  
12

2,
87

2
$ 

 
  

C
ity

 o
f P

at
te

rs
on

36
3,

68
6

 
3.

8%
45

,9
70

   
   

  
11

,6
40

   
   

  
20

,1
10

   
   

   
77

,7
20

$ 
 

  
11

,6
40

   
   

  
11

,6
40

   
   

  
11

,6
40

   
   

  
11

,6
40

   
   

  
12

4,
28

1
$ 

 
  

C
ity

 o
f W

at
er

fo
rd

14
7,

64
7

 
1.

5%
18

,6
63

   
   

  
4,

72
6

   
   

   
 

8,
16

4
 

31
,5

53
$ 

 
  

4,
72

6
   

   
   

 
4,

72
6

   
   

   
 

4,
72

6
   

   
   

 
4,

72
6

   
   

   
 

50
,4

55
$ 

 
  

C
ity

 o
f H

ug
hs

on
83

,8
11

 
0.

9%
10

,5
94

   
   

  
2,

68
2

   
   

   
 

4,
63

4
 

17
,9

11
$ 

 
  

2,
68

2
   

   
   

 
2,

68
2

   
   

   
 

2,
68

2
   

   
   

 
2,

68
2

   
   

   
 

28
,6

41
$ 

 
  

St
an

is
la

us
 C

ou
nt

y 
Pr

ob
at

io
n 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t

32
1,

61
1

 
3.

3%
40

,6
52

   
   

  
10

,2
94

   
   

  
17

,7
83

   
   

   
68

,7
29

$ 
 

  
10

,2
94

   
   

  
10

,2
94

   
   

  
10

,2
94

   
   

  
10

,2
94

   
   

  
10

9,
90

3
$ 

 
  

M
od

es
to

 F
ire

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

1,
54

6,
26

1
 

16
.1

%
19

5,
45

0
   

   
49

,4
90

   
   

  
85

,4
99

   
   

   
33

0,
43

9
$ 

   
 

49
,4

90
   

   
  

49
,4

90
   

   
  

49
,4

90
   

   
  

49
,4

90
   

   
  

52
8,

39
9

$ 
 

  
C

er
es

 F
ire

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

15
2,

03
6

 
1.

6%
19

,2
18

   
   

  
4,

86
6

   
   

   
 

8,
40

7
 

32
,4

90
$ 

 
  

4,
86

6
   

   
   

 
4,

86
6

   
   

   
 

4,
86

6
   

   
   

 
4,

86
6

   
   

   
 

51
,9

55
$ 

 
  

St
an

is
la

us
 C

on
so

lid
at

ed
 F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
19

5,
98

5
 

2.
0%

24
,7

73
   

   
  

6,
27

3
   

   
   

 
10

,8
37

   
   

   
41

,8
82

$ 
 

  
6,

27
3

   
   

   
 

6,
27

3
   

   
   

 
6,

27
3

   
   

   
 

6,
27

3
   

   
   

 
66

,9
73

$ 
 

  
O

ak
da

le
 F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t
11

8,
31

9
 

1.
2%

14
,9

56
   

   
  

3,
78

7
   

   
   

 
6,

54
2

 
25

,2
85

$ 
 

  
3,

78
7

   
   

   
 

3,
78

7
   

   
   

 
3,

78
7

   
   

   
 

3,
78

7
   

   
   

 
40

,4
33

$ 
 

  
Pa

tte
rs

on
 F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t
10

1,
30

9
 

1.
1%

12
,8

06
   

   
  

3,
24

3
   

   
   

 
5,

60
2

 
21

,6
50

$ 
 

  
3,

24
3

   
   

   
 

3,
24

3
   

   
   

 
3,

24
3

   
   

   
 

3,
24

3
   

   
   

 
34

,6
20

$ 
 

  
Bu

rb
an

k 
Pa

ra
di

se
 F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
- 

0.
0%

- 
- 

- 
-

$ 
 

  
- 

- 
- 

- 
-

$ 
 

   
Sa

lid
a 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

- 
0.

0%
- 

- 
- 

-
$ 

 
  

- 
- 

- 
- 

-
$ 

 
   

O
ak

da
le

 R
ur

al
 F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
- 

0.
0%

- 
- 

- 
-

$ 
 

  
- 

- 
- 

- 
-

$ 
 

   
H

ug
hs

on
 F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
31

,4
97

 
0.

3%
3,

98
1

 
1,

00
8

   
   

   
 

1,
74

2
 

6,
73

1
$ 

 
  

1,
00

8
   

   
   

 
1,

00
8

   
   

   
 

1,
00

8
   

   
   

 
1,

00
8

   
   

   
 

10
,7

63
$ 

 
  

W
es

t S
ta

ni
sl

au
s 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

- 
0.

0%
- 

- 
- 

-
$ 

 
  

- 
- 

- 
- 

-
$ 

 
   

Ke
ye

s 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t  
- 

0.
0%

- 
- 

- 
-

$ 
 

  
- 

- 
- 

- 
-

$ 
 

   
N

ew
m

an
 F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t
44

,1
26

 
0.

5%
5,

57
8

 
1,

41
2

   
   

   
 

2,
44

0
 

9,
43

0
$ 

 
  

1,
41

2
   

   
   

 
1,

41
2

   
   

   
 

1,
41

2
   

   
   

 
1,

41
2

   
   

   
 

15
,0

79
$ 

 
  

Tu
rlo

ck
 R

ur
al

 F
ire

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

- 
0.

0%
- 

- 
- 

-
$ 

 
  

- 
- 

- 
- 

-
$ 

 
   

W
oo

dl
an

d 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
- 

0.
0%

- 
- 

- 
-

$ 
 

  
- 

- 
- 

- 
-

$ 
 

   
D

en
ai

r F
ire

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

- 
0.

0%
- 

- 
- 

-
$ 

 
  

- 
- 

- 
- 

-
$ 

 
   

W
es

tp
or

t F
ire

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

- 
0.

0%
- 

- 
- 

-
$ 

 
  

- 
- 

- 
- 

-
$ 

 
   

M
ou

nt
ai

n 
Vi

ew
 F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
- 

0.
0%

- 
- 

- 
-

$ 
 

  
- 

- 
- 

- 
-

$ 
 

   
O

ES
-F

W
67

3,
94

0
 

7.
0%

85
,1

87
   

   
  

21
,5

70
   

   
  

37
,2

65
   

   
   

14
4,

02
2

$ 
   

 
21

,5
70

   
   

  
21

,5
70

   
   

  
21

,5
70

   
   

  
21

,5
70

   
   

  
23

0,
30

3
$ 

 
  

C
ha

rg
es

 to
 P

ar
tic

ip
at

in
g 

Ag
en

ci
es

9,
60

0,
64

5
$ 

 
  

10
0.

0%
1,

21
3,

53
6

$ 
 

30
7,

28
0

$ 
   

53
0,

86
0

$ 
   

 
2,

05
1,

67
6

$ 
 

30
7,

28
0

$ 
   

30
7,

28
0

$ 
   

30
7,

28
0

$ 
   

30
7,

28
0

$ 
   

3,
28

0,
79

6
$ 

   
 

e
rr

 c
h
k

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 

O
ES

 - 
Fi

re
 W

ar
de

n 
(C

ou
nt

y 
Su

bs
id

y)
 D

et
ai

l -
 C

en
tr

al
 S

qu
ar

e 
Co

st
s

Ag
en

cy
FY

 2
5 

Fi
na

l B
ud

ge
t

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
O

ne
-T

im
e

Ye
ar

-1
O

th
er

 C
os

ts
1

Ye
ar

 1
 T

ot
al

Ye
ar

 2
Ye

ar
 3

Ye
ar

 4
Ye

ar
 5

To
ta

l C
os

t
M

od
es

to
 F

ire
**

76
,4

37
 

11
.3

%
9,

66
2

 
2,

44
6

   
   

   
 

4,
22

6
 

16
,3

35
$ 

 
  

2,
44

6
   

   
   

 
2,

44
6

   
   

   
 

2,
44

6
   

   
   

 
2,

44
6

   
   

   
 

26
,1

20
$ 

 
  

C
er

es
 F

ire
**

11
9,

57
3

 
17

.7
%

15
,1

14
   

   
  

3,
82

7
   

   
   

 
6,

61
2

 
25

,5
53

$ 
 

  
3,

82
7

   
   

   
 

3,
82

7
   

   
   

 
3,

82
7

   
   

   
 

3,
82

7
   

   
   

 
40

,8
61

$ 
 

  
St

an
is

la
us

 C
on

so
lid

at
ed

**
79

,4
26

 
11

.8
%

10
,0

40
   

   
  

2,
54

2
   

   
   

 
4,

39
2

 
16

,9
73

$ 
 

  
2,

54
2

   
   

   
 

2,
54

2
   

   
   

 
2,

54
2

   
   

   
 

2,
54

2
   

   
   

 
27

,1
42

$ 
 

  
O

ak
da

le
 F

ire
- 

0.
0%

- 
- 

- 
-

$ 
 

  
- 

- 
- 

- 
-

$ 
 

   
Pa

tte
rs

on
 F

ire
- 

0.
0%

- 
- 

- 
-

$ 
 

  
- 

- 
- 

- 
-

$ 
 

   
Bu

rb
an

k-
Pa

ra
di

se
 F

ire
**

56
,2

83
 

8.
4%

7,
11

4
 

1,
80

1
   

   
   

 
3,

11
2

 
12

,0
28

$ 
 

  
1,

80
1

   
   

   
 

1,
80

1
   

   
   

 
1,

80
1

   
   

   
 

1,
80

1
   

   
   

 
19

,2
33

$ 
 

  
Sa

lid
a 

Fi
re

**
63

,1
37

 
9.

4%
7,

98
1

 
2,

02
1

   
   

   
 

3,
49

1
 

13
,4

92
$ 

 
  

2,
02

1
   

   
   

 
2,

02
1

   
   

   
 

2,
02

1
   

   
   

 
2,

02
1

   
   

   
 

21
,5

76
$ 

 
  

O
ak

da
le

 R
ur

al
 F

ire
**

54
,7

82
 

8.
1%

6,
92

5
 

1,
75

3
   

   
   

 
3,

02
9

 
11

,7
07

$ 
 

  
1,

75
3

   
   

   
 

1,
75

3
   

   
   

 
1,

75
3

   
   

   
 

1,
75

3
   

   
   

 
18

,7
20

$ 
 

  
H

ug
hs

on
 F

ire
**

16
,9

82
 

2.
5%

2,
14

7
 

54
4

 
93

9
 

3,
62

9
$ 

 
  

54
4

 
54

4
 

54
4

 
54

4
 

5,
80

3
$ 

 
  

W
es

t S
ta

ni
sl

au
s 

Fi
re

**
54

,5
82

 
8.

1%
6,

89
9

 
1,

74
7

   
   

   
 

3,
01

8
 

11
,6

64
$ 

 
  

1,
74

7
   

   
   

 
1,

74
7

   
   

   
 

1,
74

7
   

   
   

 
1,

74
7

   
   

   
 

18
,6

52
$ 

 
  

Ke
ye

s 
Fi

re
**

44
,8

76
 

6.
7%

5,
67

2
 

1,
43

6
   

   
   

 
2,

48
1

 
9,

59
0

$ 
 

  
1,

43
6

   
   

   
 

1,
43

6
   

   
   

 
1,

43
6

   
   

   
 

1,
43

6
   

   
   

 
15

,3
35

$ 
 

  
N

ew
m

an
 F

ire
- 

0.
0%

- 
- 

- 
-

$ 
 

  
- 

- 
- 

- 
-

$ 
 

   
Tu

rlo
ck

 R
ur

al
 **

24
,2

14
 

3.
6%

3,
06

1
 

77
5

 
1,

33
9

 
5,

17
5

$ 
 

  
77

5
 

77
5

 
77

5
 

77
5

 
8,

27
5

$ 
 

  
W

oo
dl

an
d 

Fi
re

**
29

,1
17

 
4.

3%
3,

68
0

 
93

2
 

1,
61

0
 

6,
22

2
$ 

 
  

93
2

 
93

2
 

93
2

 
93

2
 

9,
95

0
$ 

 
  

D
en

ai
r F

ire
**

29
,1

17
 

4.
3%

3,
68

0
 

93
2

 
1,

61
0

 
6,

22
2

$ 
 

  
93

2
 

93
2

 
93

2
 

93
2

 
9,

95
0

$ 
 

  
W

es
tp

or
t F

ire
**

14
,1

08
 

2.
1%

1,
78

3
 

45
2

 
78

0
 

3,
01

5
$ 

 
  

45
2

 
45

2
 

45
2

 
45

2
 

4,
82

1
$ 

 
  

M
tn

 V
ie

w
 F

ire
**

11
,3

07
 

1.
7%

1,
42

9
 

36
2

 
62

5
 

2,
41

6
$ 

 
  

36
2

 
36

2
 

36
2

 
36

2
 

3,
86

4
$ 

 
  

C
ha

rg
es

 to
 P

ar
tic

ip
at

in
g 

Ag
en

ci
es

67
3,

94
0

$ 
 

  
10

0.
0%

85
,1

87
$ 

 
  

21
,5

70
$ 

 
  

37
,2

65
$ 

 
   

14
4,

02
2

$ 
   

 
21

,5
70

$ 
 

  
21

,5
70

$ 
 

  
21

,5
70

$ 
 

  
21

,5
70

$ 
 

  
23

0,
30

3
$ 

 
  

er
r c

hk
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

Fo
ot

no
te

s
1  In

cl
ud

es
 1

.7
 F

TE
 o

f I
nf

ra
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

En
gi

ne
er

 II
, p

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l s

er
vi

ce
s,

 a
nd

 c
on

tin
ge

nc
y 

co
st

s 
es

tim
at

ed
 to

 im
pl

em
en

t

Ite
m

 5
.9

a 
- A

tta
ch

m
en

t C
en

tra
l S

qu
ar

e 
C

AD
 Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

C
os

ts
 [2

-C
or

e 
C

AD
 C

os
t D

et
ai

ls
]

1 
of

 1

At
ta

ch
m

en
t A

-3



SR
 9

11
 - 

C
en

tra
l S

qu
ar

e 
C

AD
 Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

C
os

ts
Pr

in
te

d:
 6

/2
1/

20
24

C
en

tra
l S

qu
ar

e 
C

AD
 A

ge
nc

y 
Li

ce
ns

es
 a

nd
 C

os
ts

Ag
en

cy
La

w
-M

ob
ile

 
W

/M
ap

pi
ng

Fi
re

 M
ob

ile
 

W
/M

ap
pi

ng
W

or
ks

ta
tio

n/
M

ap
pi

ng
H

an
dh

el
d 

W
/O

 
M

ap
pi

ng
LP

R
 In

te
rf

ac
e

R
M

S 
In

te
rf

ac
e

Ax
on

 
Ev

id
en

ce
 

In
te

gr
at

io
n

IC
JI

S
To

ta
l 

Li
ce

ns
es

To
ta

l C
os

t
C

ou
nt

y 
Su

bs
id

y
Ag

en
cy

 
Al

lo
ca

tio
n

M
od

es
to

 P
ol

ic
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t

12
0

 
5 

20 
1 

1 
1 

14
8

 
10

2,
70

0
$ 

 
   

-
$ 

 
  

10
2,

70
0

$ 
 

   
St

an
is

la
us

 C
ou

nt
y 

Sh
er

iff
 - 

U
ni

nc
or

po
ra

te
d

22
1

 
- 

14 
- 

1 
1 

23
7

 
18

9,
80

0
   

   
   

 
- 

18
9,

80
0

   
   

   
 

C
ity

 o
f R

iv
er

ba
nk

40 
- 

- 
- 

40 
20

,0
00

 
- 

20
,0

00
 

C
ity

 o
f P

at
te

rs
on

41 
- 

- 
- 

41 
20

,5
00

 
- 

20
,5

00
 

C
ity

 o
f W

at
er

fo
rd

17 
- 

- 
- 

17 
8,

50
0

 
- 

8,
50

0
 

C
ity

 o
f H

ug
hs

on
9 

- 
- 

- 
9 

4,
50

0
 

- 
4,

50
0

 
St

an
is

la
us

 C
ou

nt
y 

Pr
ob

at
io

n 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t
55 

- 
- 

- 
55 

27
,5

00
 

- 
27

,5
00

 
D

is
tri

ct
 A

tto
rn

ey
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

M
od

es
to

 F
ire

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

- 
25 

- 
20 

45 
14

,0
00

 
65

9
 

13
,3

41
 

C
er

es
 F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
- 

6 
- 

5 
11 

3,
40

0
 

87
1

 
2,

52
9

 
St

an
is

la
us

 C
on

so
lid

at
ed

 F
ire

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

- 
23 

- 
- 

23 
9,

20
0

 
2,

65
3

 
6,

54
7

 
O

ak
da

le
 F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t
- 

4 
- 

5 
9 

2,
60

0
 

- 
2,

60
0

 
Pa

tte
rs

on
 F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t
- 

11 
- 

- 
11 

4,
40

0
 

- 
4,

40
0

 
Bu

rb
an

k 
Pa

ra
di

se
 F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
- 

5 
- 

- 
5 

2,
00

0
 

2,
00

0
 

- 
Sa

lid
a 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

- 
3 

- 
2 

5 
1,

60
0

 
1,

60
0

 
- 

O
ak

da
le

 R
ur

al
 F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
- 

3 
- 

4 
7 

2,
00

0
 

2,
00

0
 

- 
H

ug
hs

on
 F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
- 

4 
- 

- 
4 

1,
60

0
 

56
0

 
1,

04
0

 
W

es
t S

ta
ni

sl
au

s 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
Ke

ye
s 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t  

- 
4 

- 
- 

4 
1,

60
0

 
1,

60
0

 
- 

N
ew

m
an

 F
ire

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t

- 
6 

- 
- 

6 
2,

40
0

 
- 

2,
40

0
 

Tu
rlo

ck
 R

ur
al

 F
ire

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

- 
4 

- 
- 

4 
1,

60
0

 
1,

60
0

 
- 

W
oo

dl
an

d 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
D

en
ai

r F
ire

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

- 
6 

- 
- 

6 
2,

40
0

 
2,

40
0

 
- 

W
es

tp
or

t F
ire

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

- 
2 

- 
- 

2 
80

0
 

80
0

 
- 

M
ou

nt
ai

n 
Vi

ew
 F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
- 

3 
- 

- 
3 

1,
20

0
 

1,
20

0
 

- 
Fi

re
 In

ve
st

ig
at

io
n 

U
ni

t
- 

2 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
2 

80
0

 
- 

80
0

 
O

ES
-F

W
- 

10 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
10 

4,
00

0
 

4,
00

0
 

- 
To

ta
l

50
3

 
12

1
 

19 
56 

2 
1 

1 
1 

70
4

 
42

9,
10

0
$ 

 
   

21
,9

44
$ 

 
   

40
7,

15
6

$ 
 

   
e
rr

 c
h
k

- 
e
rr

 c
h
k

- 

Ite
m

 5
.9

a 
- A

tta
ch

m
en

t C
en

tra
l S

qu
ar

e 
C

AD
 Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

C
os

ts
 [3

-A
ge

nc
y 

An
nu

al
 L

ic
en

si
ng

 C
os

ts
]

1 
of

 1

At
ta

ch
m

en
t A

-4



_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
3705 Oakdale Road                                                                      Telephone: (209) 552-3900 
Modesto, CA  95357                                                      www.sr911.org                                                                   Fax: (209) 552-3950 

The professional connection between the community and public safety. 

Kasey Young, Interim Executive Director 
________________________________________________________________________

AGENDA DATE: April 24, 2024 
______________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT: Update on the Stanislaus Regional 9-1-1 Computer Aided Dispatch (CAD) 
System and Possible Direction Regarding Replacement of SR911 
Computer Aided Dispatch System. 

______________________________________________________________________ 

DISCUSSION: 

Background 
In October of 2022, Stanislaus Regional 9-1-1 (SR911) received a letter from Central 
Square Technologies that the Dispatch Now CAD system was scheduled to be retired on 
November 1, 2023. Beginning November 1, 2022, Central Square would only support 
critical system functionality. After November 1, 2023, no support would be provided for 
the Dispatch Now CAD product. SR911 and other U.S.-based users of Dispatch Now 
expressed concern over the timing of this notice, and thus, Central Square rescinded the 
letter and stated they would continue to provide support for an extended time.  

Current Situation 
The current Dispatch Now product is two software versions behind, and there is no option 
to update it. The technology is antiquated, and the potential for system failure exists. 
SR911 is unable to support the functionality that other CAD systems have today. These 
services include live streaming video, picture, and file sharing, advanced geographical 
information (GIS) data sharing, cloud-based data sharing, connection to new third-party 
applications, and advanced database query. Options for future growth are limited and, in 
some cases, impossible. The level of service to the community and first responders is 
negatively impacted due to outdated technology and lack of functionality. For these 
reasons, SR911 needed to expedite the timeline for a replacement CAD product to 
support a large multi-discipline, multi-agency dispatch center and all the JPA partners. 

On November 3, 2023, Kasey Young, Interim Director of SR911, sent the following update 
on the Dispatch Now CAD system, reinforcing the need to select a new CAD system 
immediately. 

1. SR911 is unable to add more CAD terminals.
2. SR911 is unable to add more mobile terminals.
3. Reports are not working correctly due to an update needed for an agency change

request.

CEDAC (JPA) Item 5.4 

Vote Required: Yes No

Attachment A-5

http://www.sr911.org/


Page 2 of 4 

4. Most modern applications are unable to be connected due to the old architecture
of the current system.

5. The CAD system is currently running on unsupported hardware.
6. The CAD system is running on an unsupported Windows Operating System.
7. The CAD system is not currently replicated off-site.
8. Dispatch CAD workstations are locking up and require rebooting twice a day. The

PD01 workstation station has been replaced to minimize lockups.
9. SR911 is unable to use Google Maps with the current CAD system.
10. Units are locking up periodically, requiring the dispatcher to employ workarounds

while attempting to free locked units.

Next Steps 
SR911 began evaluating CAD systems to meet the dispatch centers and partners' needs. 
Several vendors were considered, including Mark 43, Motorola Solutions, Sunridge 
Systems (RIMS), EMERES, Oracle America Inc., and Central Square Technologies.  

Mark 43 
Mark 43 was not able to provide all the features needed to support a multi-discipline, 
multi-agency dispatch center. One of the most critical features, which was not offered, is 
the ability to dispatch units based on their AVL (automatic vehicle location) and closest 
unit recommendations. This would cause dispatch to run static recommendations instead 
of sending the closest, most appropriate unit to the call, providing no improvement in 
service from the current CAD capabilities. 

Motorola Solutions 
Motorola Solutions declined to demonstrate its Premier One product and wanted to 
present a lower-level product with fewer features and capabilities. This product would not 
meet the needs of SR911 and its partners.  

Sunridge Systems 
Sunridge Systems (RIMS) is single agency CAD system and, therefore, would not meet 
the needs of SR911 and its partners. Other agencies that use the RIMS product confirmed 
they were unable to use the CAD system for multi-agency dispatching and had to do 
manual dispatching. This reinforced the RIMS product as not being a viable solution. 

The options were narrowed down to three vendors: Oracle America Inc., EMERES, and 
Central Square Technologies.  

All JPA partners were invited to attend demonstrations and provide feedback. EMERES 
provided demonstrations on 9/13/23 and 2/15/24. They also held discussions with 
partners on 12/12/23. Oracle America Inc. held demonstrations on 9/20/22, 1/26/23, and 
12/20/23. Central Square Technologies held demonstrations on 2/7/23, 4/27/23, 8/2/23, 
12/14/23, and 2/13/24.  

Oracle America Inc. 
In November 2021, the Stanislaus County Sheriff’s Office began working with Oracle 
America Inc. to develop a public safety suite. Since then, the Sheriff’s Office and 
Stanislaus Regional 911 have spent hundreds of research and design hours assisting in 



Page 3 of 4 

the development of an Oracle public safety suite, which would include an RMS (record 
management system), JMS (jail management system), and a CAD system.  
Oracle’s public safety suite has some features that are consistent with other CAD 
applications available today, but not all features are available as they are still in 
development. Oracle CAD is live with a school district in Texas and recently went live with 
a small dispatch agency in Archuleta, Colorado, which has a total population of 12,244 
and an annual call volume of 24,000. For comparison, SR911 handles 24,000 calls in 
about a two-week period and 550,000-600,000 calls annually. At this time, Oracle does 
not have a fully functional CAD that can support a large, multi-discipline, multi-agency 
dispatch center. There is no EMS module, and it does not have the ability to support IAED 
dispatch protocols necessary for EMD (emergency medical dispatch), EPD (emergency 
police dispatch), and EFD (emergency fire dispatch) triage systems. The current 
application still needs further configuration and testing. Therefore, Oracle America Inc. is 
not recommended.  

EMERES 
EMERES is a Canadian-based company made up of employees from the original 
Dispatch Now CAD product that SR911 uses today. EMERES is preparing to deploy a 
new CAD product called Cirrus. During the demonstrations, EMERES stated that their 
new Cirrus product was not ready for US deployment. Development and testing of the 
CAD still needs to take place. Their goal is to be ready to deploy by the end of 2024. They 
stated they would not want to go live with an agency the size of SR911 initially. Their goal 
would be to go live and test with a smaller agency first. With a system in development 
and untested and no true time frame available, EMERES is not recommended. 

Central Square Technologies 
Central Square Technologies Enterprise CAD stands out above the rest with a complete 
public safety and justice suite offering solutions from CAD to RMS and JMS and public 
administration. The Enterprise CAD system is currently used in the U.S.; no development 
would be required. All features of the CAD system are tested before deployment, and 
each agency can choose which features they want to turn on and use. Any new features 
or upgrades that are developed are included in the contract for the CAD. Central Square 
gives a timeline of 12-15 months for implementation, but the timeline can be shortened if 
more staff time is dedicated. The Central Square CAD system provides advanced 
features that can support next-generation technology that our current system does not 
support today. It can support large, multi-discipline, multi-agency dispatch centers. There 
are agencies within Stanislaus County and in adjacent counties that are using Central 
Square today. The City of Turlock and Valley Regional Emergency Communications 
Center (AMR) use Central Square. San Joaquin County Sheriff's Office, Stockton PD, 
and Stockton Fire are all Central Square customers. If SR911 were to select a Central 
Square CAD, it would allow for state-of-the-art CAD-to-CAD interfaces and streamline 
interoperability in-county and with adjacent county agencies. Interfaces would 
immediately exist and there would be an expedited implementation schedule with this 
platform.  

As a result of this comprehensive evaluation, it became obvious Central Square 
Technologies would be the best fit for interoperability, implementation, and configuration. 
Therefore, the Central Square product is recommended as the replacement CAD System. 
Central Square offers the technology SR911, and partners require and continuously 
develops its products to stay up-to-date with current standards and ahead of emerging 



Page 4 of 4 

technologies. The future success of SR911 and its partners hinges on advanced 
technology and interoperability. 

Purchasing 
A cooperative purchasing agreement has been identified by City of Modesto staff to 
procure the Central Square Technologies CAD system. The City Attorney and County  
Counsel agrees there are options available to SR911 to obtain the CAD system through 
the identified cooperative purchasing agreement. Should the Commission provide 
direction to SR911 staff to further pursue the Central Square CAD system, staff will work 
with leadership from City of Modesto and Stanislaus County to evaluate specific options 
for contracting these services and will return to the Commission for consideration and 
approval. 
______________________________________________________________________ 

FISCAL IMPACT:  

There is no fiscal impact at this time. 
______________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Commission to provide direction to SR911 Staff regarding a replacement CAD system. 
_____________________________________________________________________ 

CONTACT PERSON: Kasey Young, Interim Executive Director 
Stanislaus Regional 9-1-1, (209) 552-3903 

_____________________________________________________________________ 

ATTACHMENTS: None 



 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
3705 Oakdale Road                                                                      Telephone: (209) 552-3900 
Modesto, CA  95357                                                      www.sr911.org                                                                  Fax: (209) 552-3950  

 
The professional connection between the community and public safety. 

 
       Kasey Young, Interim Executive Director 

________________________________________________________________________ 
 

                                               
          
 
 
AGENDA DATE: June 26, 2024 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
SUBJECT:  Executive Director Report 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
DISCUSSION:  
 
Stanislaus Regional 9-1-1 (SR911) Operations Reports highlight operational statistics 
each month.  The attached monthly statistics report represents the period of May 1 – May 
31, 2024. 
 
As of June 21, 2024, SR911 Dispatch Operations has two (2) Emergency Dispatcher I/II 
vacancies and three (3) Emergency Dispatcher III vacancies, resulting in a total of 27 
Emergency Dispatchers and 13 Call Takers. A total of 40 of 45 allocations filled. 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
 
None. 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Monthly Operations and Staffing Reports Update 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
CONTACT PERSON: Kasey Young, Interim Executive Director 

Stanislaus Regional 911, (209) 552-3903 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 

ATTACHMENTS:  A-1:  Dispatcher Staff Report (1 page) 
A-2: Monthly Operations Report May 2024 (12 pages) 

      
 

 
 
 
  

CEDAC (JPA) Item 6.2 

Vote Required: Yes No

http://www.sr911.org/


Stanislaus Regional 9-1-1
Current Dispatch Staff
As of May 31, 2024

Position Years of Service Notes
Emergency Dispatcher 23.3
Emergency Dispatcher Supervisor 10.9 0.3 yrs in new position
Emergency Dispatcher 8.7
Emergency Dispatcher  7.5
Emergency Dispatcher 7.1
Emergency Dispatcher 7.1
Emergency Dispatcher Supervisor 4.5 0.0 yrs in new position
Emergency Dispatcher Supervisor 4.2 0.3 yrs in new position
Emergency Dispatcher 4.1
Emergency Dispatcher 2.6
Emergency Dispatcher 2.1
Emergency Dispatcher 1.9
Emergency Dispatcher Supervisor 1.9 0.3 yrs in new position
Emergency Dispatcher 1.6
Emergency Dispatcher 1.5 LOA
Emergency Dispatcher 1.4
Emergency Dispatcher 1.4
Emergency Dispatcher 1.3
Emergency Dispatcher 1.0
Emergency Dispatcher 0.8
Emergency Dispatcher 0.4
Emergency Dispatcher 0.4
Emergency Dispatcher 0.4
Emergency Dispatcher 0.3
Emergency Dispatcher 0.1
Emergency Dispatcher 0.0 Training
Emergency Dispatcher 0.0 Conditional Offer
Emergency Dispatcher 0.0 Vacant
Emergency Dispatcher 0.0 Vacant
Emergency Dispatcher III 0.0 Vacant
Emergency Dispatcher III 0.0 Vacant
Emergency Dispatcher III 0.0 Vacant
Emergency Call-Taker 19.6
Emergency Call-Taker 2.6
Emergency Call-Taker 1.2
Emergency Call-Taker 0.5
Emergency Call-Taker 0.4 Training
Emergency Call-Taker 0.4 Training
Emergency Call-Taker 0.4 Training
Emergency Call-Taker 0.4 Training
Emergency Call-Taker 0.0 Training
Emergency Call-Taker 0.1 Training
Emergency Call-Taker 0.0 Training
Emergency Call-Taker 0.0 Training
Emergency Call-Taker 0.0 Backgrounds

Occupied Position Summary
Emergency Dispatcher
Deployable Dispatchers
Emergency Call-Taker
Deployable Call-Taker

27 out of 32 Positions

13 out of 13 Positions
24 out of 32 Positions

4 out of 13 Positions



1 | P a g e  
 

MONTHLY REPORT 
MAY 2024 

 

Number of CAD Responses:  29,590 (Law: 23,311/Fire: 6,279) 

 

 
Number of Phone Calls:  48,627 (911: 17,636/10 Digit Emer: 12,965/Admin: 18,026) 

 

5,926

21,812

27,738

5,911

20,979

26,890

6,279

23,311

29,590

0 10,000 20,000 30,000 40,000 50,000 60,000

Fire Responses

Law Responses

Total Responses

CAD Responses

May 2024

April 2024

May 2023

20,195

12,373

18,345

50,913

15,519

11,921

16,239

43,679

17,636

12,965

18,026

48,627

0 10,000 20,000 30,000 40,000 50,000 60,000

911 Calls

10 Digit Emergency

Admin Calls

Total Calls

Total Phone Calls

May 2024

April 2024

May 2023



2 | P a g e  
 

 

 

 

 

39
46

65

74

82 83
87 85

88
92

99
93

88 90

78 79

63

55

47

35
30 28

24 26
21

27

40
47

52 53
56 54 55

58
64

58 57
61

50 51

41
36

29

21
17 17 15 1618 19

25 27
30 30 31 31 33 34 35 35

31 29 28 28
22

19 18
14 13 11 9 10

May 2024 Average Calls per Hour

Total 911 & 10 Digit Emergency Admin

32

53

74
77

89 87
84

92
96 98 100

97
94 94

89

78

70

55

45

35

27 26
21

27
20

32

47
50

58 56 54
57

61 63 65
62

59 60
57

50
47

36
29

22
16 16

13
17

12

21
27 27

31 31 30
35 35 35 35 35 35 34 32

28
23

19
16

13 11 10 8 10

May 2023 Average Calls per Hour

Total 911 & 10 Digit Emergency Admin



3 | P a g e  
 

 

 

 
Average Fire dispatch times: 

 

 All Calls EMS Calls 

Rural 00:00:33 00:00:39 
MST 00:00:42 00:00:43 

MST: Modesto, Stanislaus Consolidated, Turlock 

443

41
10

231
720

2,272

13,912

38

Types of 911 Calls

Business Landline (including PBX,
Centrex, etc.)
No Class of Service*

Pay Phone

Residential Landline

Voice over IP (VoIP)

Wireless Phase 1

Wireless Phase 2

Text to 9-1-1

*Includes calls with ANI Failure, No Record Found, or calls abandonded before an ALI dip can be done

39 42
51

60

113

52
58

84

52
46 49 53

100

122

102

127

107

138

102

117

79

132

112

143

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

May-23 June-23 July-23 Aug-23 Sept-23 Oct-23 Nov-23 Dec-23 Jan-24 Feb-24 Mar-24 Apr-24

Modesto Police Priority 1 Calls

Dispatch Time (in seconds) # of Calls



4 | P a g e  
 

 
Dispatch Operations Overtime Hours 

 

+- 
 

 

 

 

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

Overtime Hours

2022 2023 2024

  

2023 2024 

Total Hours Voluntary* Mandatory Total Hours MOU Time** 

January 565 286 348 634 523 

February 770 268 588 856 799 

March 605 307 494 801 629 

April 535 225 391 616 637 

May 582 357 596 953 718 

June 722     

July 713     

August 678     

September 628     

October 790     

November 712     

December 644     

Totals 7,944 1,443 2,417 3,860 3,306 

*Voluntary hours include compensation for missed lunch breaks during regular and overtime shifts. 

**MOU time encompasses additional straight time, typically on-call pay, as outlined in the SREDA MOU.  

This category is not included in the total overtime hours calculations. 



5 | P a g e  
 

Work Distribution 

May 2024 

  Phone Calls Phone Interactions Radio Interactions Total Interactions 

FD01 4,733 5,875     

FD02 4,630 7,493     

FD03*** 4,558 5,359     

FIRE PHONE LINE TOTAL 18,727 

DISPATCH     5,037   

COMMAND 2     6,288   

COMMAND 3     160   

COMMAND 4     5,388   

COMMAND 5     0   

FIRE RADIO TRANSMISSIONS TOTAL 16,873 

TOTAL FIRE PHONE LINE/RADIO TRANSMISSIONS 35,600 

PD01 521 581 14,581   

PD02 4,962 5,416 9,614   

PD03 731 803 523   

MPD PHONE LINE/RADIO TRANSMISSIONS TOTAL 31,518 

SO01 901 974 12,041   

SO02 4,078 4,415 10,528   

SHERIFF PHONE LINE/RADIO TRANSMISSION TOTAL 27,958 

CALL TAKERS 22,258 29,113     

911 ABANDONED 1,255       

TOTALS 48,627 60,029 64,160 124,189 

• The data reflects the total number of individual interactions by way of either picking up a phone line (either when it 
rings initially and/or from a hold status) or transmitting/monitoring a radio transmission. 
• Data for radio transmission count is by frequency. 
• FD03 and PD03 are utilized for lunch break relief and training and may include transmission for any radio frequencies. 
  

 

 

 

 

 



6 | P a g e  
 

  

7

976

279

19

720

1538

1504

1481

1801

1478

2030

1260

1075

523

1737

55

1153

103

689

202

213

528

875

1131

1665

1665

1351

1193

935

1297

388

763

26

300

411

3305

254

670

2835

764

2104

1905

1101

980

1145

687

680

278

542

25

394

0 500 1000 1500 2000 2500 3000 3500

PD01

PD02

PD03

SO01

SO02

SO03

FD01

FD02

FD03

CT01

CT02

CT03

CT04

CT05

CT06

SM01

Abandoned

Phone Calls per Station

911 10 Digit Emergency Admin & Outbound



7 | P a g e  
 

Call Summary 

    Jan 2024 Feb 2024 March 2024 April 2024 May 2024 Total 

91
1 

Inbound 14,270 13,604 14,499 14,345 16,381 73,099 

Abandoned 1,213 1,035 1,270 1,174 1,255 5,947 

Abandoned % 7.83% 7.07% 8.05% 7.56% 7.12% 7.52% 

NSI % 7.47% 5.94% 5.92% 5.72% 5.70% 6.14% 

Unparsed 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Total 15,483 14,639 15,769 15,519 17,636 79,046 

91
1 

N
on

-N
SI

 Inbound 13,358 12,873 13,723 13,602 15,532 69,088 

Abandoned 969 896 1,113 1,029 1,098 5,105 

Abandoned % 6.76% 6.51% 7.50% 7.03% 6.60% 6.88% 

Total 14,327 13,769 14,836 14,631 16,630 74,193 

91
1 

N
SI

 

Inbound 912 731 776 743 849 4,011 

Abandoned 244 139 157 145 157 842 

Abandoned % 21.11% 15.98% 16.83% 16.33% 15.61% 17.35% 

Total 1,156 870 933 888 1,006 4,853 

10
-D

ig
it 

Em
er

g 

Inbound 9,711 10,480 10,967 11,715 12,611 55,484 

Abandoned 87 107 116 165 300 775 

Outbound 50 40 43 41 54 228 

Unparsed 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Total 9,848 10,627 11,126 11,921 12,965 56,487 

A
dm

in
is

tr
at

iv
e 

Inbound 6,051 5,173 5,573 5,650 6,108 28,555 

Abandoned 27 23 17 21 32 120 

Outbound 10,070 9,757 10,526 10,568 11,886 52,807 

Unparsed 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Total 16,148 14,953 16,116 16,239 18,026 81,482 

  
Avg Call Duration 97.3 108.0 105.1 105.8 104.5 104.2 

Total 41,479 40,219 43,011 43,679 48,627 217,015 

 

 

 

NSI (Non-service-initialized): Commonly known as “911 only phones”, these are callers who cannot be called back 

should their line disconnect.  

 



8 | P a g e  
 

 



9 | P a g e  
 

 

Text to 9-1-1 

January 51 

February 45 

 March 46 

April 12 

May 38 

June  

July  

August  

September  

October  

November  

December  

Total 154 

 

Trunk Line Utilization 

Agency April 2024 May 2024 

Modesto Police Department 8,485 9,420 

Sheriff’s Department 4,151 4,655 

Contract Cities 436 420 

Fire Agencies 1,101 1,153 

Valley Com 3,960 4,149 

911 15,519 17,629 

Misc. Agency Inbound 2,394 2,561 

Outbound 7,633 8,629 

Total 43,679 48,616* 

   
*There is currently an error in the analytics software used to pull this report.  The report shows 11 

fewer calls for the month.  A support ticket has been submitted with the vendor. 



10 | P a g e  
 

  

G
ro

w
th

: 0
%

A
b

an
d

o
n

e
d

: I
n

cl
u

d
e

d

St
an

is
la

u
s 

R
eg

io
n

al
 9

11
En

d
 D

at
e:

 0
6/

30
/2

02
4

St
ar

t 
D

at
e:

 0
6/

01
/2

02
4

Te
xt

 D
at

a:
 In

cl
u

d
e

d
O

u
tb

o
u

n
d

: I
n

cl
u

d
e

d

Se
rv

ic
e 

Le
ve

l G
o

al
: 9

0%
A

n
sw

e
r 

Ti
m

e
 G

o
al

: 1
5

 S
e

c
C

al
l D

u
ra

ti
o

n
: 1

0
5 

Se
c

W
ra

p
 U

p
/R

e
st

: 1
20

 S
e

c

6
:0

0
7

:0
0

8
:0

0
9

:0
0

1
0

:0
0

1
1

:0
0

1
2

:0
0

1
3

:0
0

1
4

:0
0

1
5

:0
0

1
6

:0
0

1
7

:0
0

1
8

:0
0

1
9

:0
0

2
0

:0
0

2
1

:0
0

2
2

:0
0

2
3

:0
0

0
:0

0
1

:0
0

2
:0

0
3

:0
0

4
:0

0
5

:0
0

M
o

n
d

a
y

6
6

8
9

9
9

1
0

9
1

0
1

0
1

0
1

1
1

0
1

0
1

0
8

7
6

6
6

5
5

4
4

T
u

e
sd

ay
5

6
8

9
1

0
8

9
1

0
1

1
1

0
1

0
1

0
1

0
8

8
9

7
6

6
5

5
4

4
5

W
e

d
n

e
sd

ay
6

8
8

8
1

0
1

0
1

0
1

0
1

0
1

0
1

1
1

0
9

9
8

8
6

6
5

4
4

5
4

4

T
h

u
rs

d
a

y
6

7
9

9
1

0
1

0
1

0
9

1
0

1
0

1
1

1
0

1
0

9
9

9
7

6
6

5
4

5
4

5

Fr
id

a
y

6
6

8
8

1
0

9
1

1
1

0
1

0
1

1
1

1
9

9
1

0
8

1
0

1
0

8
6

5
5

5
4

5

Sa
tu

rd
a

y
6

5
6

8
8

8
8

9
8

8
1

0
9

8
9

9
9

9
9

7
6

6
5

3
4

Su
n

d
a

y
5

6
7

7
9

8
8

9
9

9
9

9
9

9
1

0
9

8
7

6
6

6
5

5
4

 A
ve

ra
ge

6
6

8
8

9
9

9
9

1
0

1
0

1
0

1
0

9
9

9
9

8
7

6
5

5
5

4
4

6

6

8

8

9

9

9
9

1
0

1
0

1
0

1
0

9
9

9
9

8

7

6

5
5

5

4

4

02468

1012 Call Takers Per Hour



11 | P a g e  
 

 

G
ro

w
th

: 0
%

A
b

an
d

o
n

e
d

: I
n

cl
u

d
e

d

St
an

is
la

u
s 

R
eg

io
n

al
 9

11
En

d
 D

at
e:

 0
7/

31
/2

02
4

St
ar

t 
D

at
e:

 0
7/

01
/2

02
4

Te
xt

 D
at

a:
 In

cl
u

d
e

d
O

u
tb

o
u

n
d

: I
n

cl
u

d
e

d

Se
rv

ic
e 

Le
ve

l G
o

al
: 9

0%
A

n
sw

e
r 

Ti
m

e
 G

o
al

: 1
5

 S
e

c
C

al
l D

u
ra

ti
o

n
: 1

0
5 

Se
c

W
ra

p
 U

p
/R

e
st

: 1
20

 S
e

c

6
:0

0
7

:0
0

8
:0

0
9

:0
0

1
0

:0
0

1
1

:0
0

1
2

:0
0

1
3

:0
0

1
4

:0
0

1
5

:0
0

1
6

:0
0

1
7

:0
0

1
8

:0
0

1
9

:0
0

2
0

:0
0

2
1

:0
0

2
2

:0
0

2
3

:0
0

0
:0

0
1

:0
0

2
:0

0
3

:0
0

4
:0

0
5

:0
0

M
o

n
d

a
y

5
6

8
9

9
9

9
1

0
9

1
1

1
0

1
0

8
1

0
9

8
7

6
6

5
5

4
4

4

T
u

e
sd

ay
5

5
8

9
9

8
9

1
0

1
1

1
0

1
0

1
0

1
0

9
9

9
7

6
6

5
5

4
4

5

W
e

d
n

e
sd

ay
5

8
9

8
1

0
9

1
1

1
1

1
0

1
0

1
1

9
9

9
8

8
8

7
6

4
5

4
4

4

T
h

u
rs

d
a

y
5

6
9

8
9

9
1

0
9

1
0

1
0

1
0

1
0

1
0

1
0

9
9

7
6

6
5

4
4

4
5

Fr
id

a
y

6
7

8
9

1
0

9
1

1
1

0
1

0
1

0
1

1
1

1
1

0
1

0
9

9
1

0
8

6
5

4
4

5
5

Sa
tu

rd
a

y
5

6
7

8
8

9
9

9
9

9
1

0
9

9
8

9
8

1
0

9
8

6
6

5
4

5

Su
n

d
a

y
5

5
6

7
7

8
9

9
9

8
8

8
8

9
9

8
7

7
6

6
6

5
4

4

 A
ve

ra
ge

5
6

8
8

9
9

1
0

1
0

1
0

1
0

1
0

1
0

9
9

9
8

8
7

6
5

5
4

4
5

5

6

8

8

9
9

1
0

1
0

1
0

1
0

1
0

1
0

9
9

9

8

8

7

6

5
5

4
4

5

02468

1012 Call Takers Per Hour



12 | P a g e  
 

 


	06.26.2024-CEDAC (JPA) Agenda
	04.24.2024-CEDAC Minutes
	Item 4.2 - New JPA Governance Structure
	Item 4.2 A1 - Attachment - 5th Amendment to City-County Emergency Dispatch JPA
	Item 4.2 A2 - Attachment -  New Governance Structure
	Slide Number 1

	Item 4.2 A3 - Attachment - BOS 5th-Board Agenda Item-06.04.2024
	 : SR-911 JPA Agreement Amendment 5

	Item 4.2 A4 - Attachment - Modesto City Council Agenda Item
	Item 5.1 - Elect President and Vice President, Effective 6-1-2024
	Item 5.2 - FY 2024.2025 CEDAC Meeting Dates
	Item 5.3 - FY 2024 YE Adjustment
	Item 5.3 A-1 - Attachment - FY 2024 YE Adjustment Attachment
	Item 5.4 - FY 2025 Final Budget
	Item 5.4 A-1 - Attachment FY 2025 SR911
	Item 5.5 - Execute Agreement with Jocelyn Roland
	Item 5.5 A-1 - Attachment - Dr Roland Contract 24-25
	Item 5.6 - Execute Agreement with Simpson Investigations
	Item 5.6 A-1- Attachment - Contract 24-25 Simpson Investigations Contract
	24.  UCertification Regarding Economic Sanctions Pursuant to California State Executive Order N-6-22
	24.3  For contracts valued at $5 million or more, Contractor shall provide a written report to the County regarding compliance with economic sanctions and steps taken in response to Russia’s action in Ukraine, including but not limited to, desisting ...

	Item 5.7 - Execute Agreement with Rank Investigations
	Item 5.7 A-1 - Attachment - 24-25 Rank Investigations Contract
	Item 5.8 - Execute Agreement with Cordico Psychological Corporation
	Item 5.8 A-1 - Attachment - Cordico Contract 24-25 Psych Evals
	Item 5.9 A1 - Attachment - 5 Year CAD Cost Summary
	Item 5.9 A2 - Attachment - Total CAD Cost Details
	Item 5.9 A3 - Attachment - Core CAD Cost Details
	Item 5.9 A4 - Attachment - Agency Annual Licensing Costs
	Item 5.9 A5 - Attachment - CEDAC CAD Item April



